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CORPORATE PROFILE
FITHEN

OUR VISION

OUR MISSION

N L O

and services

To be the trusted and preferred banking partner in
Greater China and beyond

RARPEREMREFEELEENRITEN

To ensure every customer experience is positive.
We achieve this by providing best in class financial products

Ap REHEEERENSHEDRBYE  BRSEMEFEY
TERBOMIRKES o

Incorporated in 1918, The Bank of East Asia, Limited (“BEA") is
a leading Hong Kong-based financial services group with total
consolidated assets of HK$907.47 billion (US$116.39 billion) as of
31st December, 2021.

BEA provides a comprehensive range of corporate banking,
personal banking, wealth management, and investment services to
customers throughout Greater China and beyond.

The Bank maintains one of the largest retail networks in Hong
Kong, with full-service branches; SupremeGold and SupremeGold
Private Centres for affluent and premium affluent customers
respectively; and innovative, extended-hour i-Financial Centres
conveniently located throughout the city.

In Mainland China, BEA’s wholly-owned subsidiary, The Bank
of East Asia (China) Limited operates one of the most extensive
networks of any foreign bank in China, with outlets in 38 cities
nationwide.

Overseas, the Bank maintains an active presence in Southeast Asia,
the United Kingdom, and the United States. Worldwide, BEA serves
customers through around 150 outlets and offers rewarding and
challenging career opportunities to over 8,000 employees.

BEA Group’s subsidiaries further broaden the Bank’s product
offering to meet the increasingly diverse and sophisticated needs of
a burgeoning customer base. BEA's wholly-owned subsidiary Blue
Cross (Asia-Pacific) Insurance Limited serves as the Bank's general
insurance arm, and provides insurance solutions for individual and
corporate customers.

BEA Group strives to be a positive, enabling force in the
communities it serves and is committed to long-term sustainable
development. The Group integrates social, environmental, ethical,
employee, and customer concerns into its business and operations
with the aim of aligning the interests of its stakeholders and the
society at large.

For more information on BEA, please visit your nearest BEA branch
or the Bank’s website at www.hkbea.com.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MER=E

2021 2020
HK$ Million HK$ Million  Change #&)
BBEET BEAET % AR
Profitability Z & 1
Operating profit before impairment losses
AHBRRER R 2 K& A 6,962 8,347 -16.6
Profit attributable to owners of the parent
A BR AR E R E T 5,270 3,614 +45.8
Balance Sheet Strength B E & & kR
Total loans and advances to customers and trade bills
BEFERRBRNE HRBEE 559,580 525,725 +6.4
Total assets
BERR 907,470 884,420 +2.6
Total customers’ deposits and certificates of deposit issued
TPk 697,832 650,054 +7.3
Total equity
PRER R os 4R 116,050 113,796 +2.0
Earnings Per Share and Dividends Per Share
BREFNRERKE
Basic earnings
EARBH) HK$1.53 HK$0.97 +57.7
Dividends
IR HK$0.70 HK$0.40 +75.0
Key Ratios £ &Lt &
Return on average assets'
FI9E E R 0.5% 0.3%
Return on average equity?
TR M R I R R 4.4% 3.0%
Cost-to-income ratio?
PRSI A L & 57.2% 51.8%
Loan to deposit ratio*
ERE TR = 78.6% 79.1%
Impaired loan ratio®
EE R X 1.09% 1.26%
Average liquidity coverage ratio - first quarter ~E—FE 189.4% 178.1%
FERBMEEELE - second quarter £ —=FE 177.3% 177.7%
- third quarter H£=ZF% 180.9% 175.9%
- fourth quarter FEPUEE 182.4% 183.8%
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio®
TR R E AR E 17.0% 16.5%
Tier 1 capital ratio®
—REARLLE 19.8% 19.4%
Total capital ratio®
BB E 21.6% 21.9%
Notes:

T Profits attributable to owners of the parent for the year after deduction of the distributions to Additional Tier 1 issue holders / Monthly average
balance of the total assets for the year including last year-end balance.

2 Profits attributable to owners of the parent for the year after deduction of the distributions to Additional Tier 1 issue holders / Monthly average

balance of the total equity attributable to the owners of the parent for the year including last year-end balance.

Operating expenses / Operating income.

Total gross loans and advances to customers / Total deposits from customers and certificates of deposits issued.

Gross impaired loans and advances to customers / Total gross loans and advances to customers.

It is computed on a consolidated basis in accordance with Banking (Capital) Rules.

Mt -

" ERBDIRTREIN—RERTAFEARRE JEBEHRAEERR 2 FER/FA (BIEEFROES) BEGRZFH P

2 g /f@tﬁg/ﬁ TR —REATRIFEARK AIEBRAEERE 2 FRa P/ FA(BIELFROBE) IREBRARERRERGREZEA
3 BESH/EEMA -

¢ BEFERRBIAERE/ ELFARBETFNERH -

S RIERARBHBER/ 5P B KRB AR -

¢ IRIERITH (BEX) MRS BEE -

3
4
5
6
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY *
SEMBEH =

TOTAL EQUITY
BSR4 AR

HK$ Million
BEEET
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS / TOTAL DEPOSITS / TOTAL ASSETS
EFENRBR / FRRE EEAR

HK$ Million
BEEHET
1,000,000 o
7,47
900,000 839,451 865,198 884,420
808,942 \
800,000
697,832
700,000 608,150 632,604 647,586 650,054
600,000
500,631 509,105 513,929 548,808
500,000 473,776
400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000
0
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Loans and Advances to Customers & F &3 & 2% I:' Total Deposits FF 45 - Total Assets BE#A%E

* Due to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards that came into effect during the financial year, the above summary have not been
prepared on a consistent basis. Changes in accounting policies are set out in Note 3 of the Notes To The Financial Statements.

* BRAFERERZ (EBUBEMEER) L2 5 FHUBHMBILIRBR—ES - BatHR S BHEEEHERM AL 3 AZIH -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (CONTINUED)
SEMBHRE (F)

PROFIT HK$ Million
BEEET
ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS 10,000 9.387
OF THE 9,000
PARENT 5000
RBRAE
I8 % SR E A 7:000 6,509
6,000 5,270
5,000
4,000 3,614
3,260
3,000
2,000
1,000
0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FIVE-YEAR COMPARISON
5 F LB,
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEHET BERET BEHET BEEET BEEETT
Tﬂg%gﬁfé - 101,214 103,575 109,638 113,796 116,050
Eg;;%%os'ts 608,150 632,604 647,586 650,054 697,832
;‘Z’a};‘g%dgd"%‘ces to customers 473,776 500,631 509,105 513,929 548,808
Tﬁogf@sggts 808,942 839,451 865,198 884,420 907,470
g;gggggggggat'o 78% 79% 79% 79% 79%
H7 7 =
Profit attributable to
owners of the parent 9,347 6,509 3,260 3,614 5,270
BB AR E R F 5
hgﬂ,’;?%fer share HK$3.21 HK$2.07 HK$0.89 HK$0.97 HK$1.53
iiends per share HK$1.28 HK$1.18 HK$0.46 HK$0.40 HKS0.70

116,050 HK$0.70

Total equity in 2021 Dividends per share
2021 IRER B AR R FRAE
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EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2021 will be remembered as a turbulent year, with
multiple waves of COVID-19 across the globe despite
the successful roll-out of vaccines; chip shortages and
supply-chain bottlenecks leading to inflationary pressure
worldwide; rigorous regulatory action on technology,
education and property companies on the Mainland; and
a soaring stock-market in the US, but a down year in
Hong Kong.

Through it all, the global economy has bounced back,
led by resurgent demand from the US. In many ways,
the volatility that we endured during the past year has
created the conditions for stability ahead. More and
more countries are learning to live with COVID-19; the
Mainland’s transition to an advanced industrial economy
is gaining traction; and the US and China are taking
tentative steps to finding a new equilibrium in their
tense relationship.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po
Executive Chairman

HITEE

FEHEST

In this uncertain environment, we have doubled down on
our strengths and executed our vision, which is to be the
preferred banking partner in Greater China and beyond.
Through focussing on our customers’ needs, refining
our product mix and service fulfilment capabilities, and
improving our risk and compliance functions, we have
enhanced the fundamentals of our business and delivered
solid financial results. Indeed, profit has increased across
all regions, demonstrating our ability to prosper in the face
of adversity. We have also achieved a notable turnaround
in loan-loss provisioning, while continuing to support our
customers through the challenges of the pandemic.

STRATEGIC FOCUS

While we focus on the resilience of our business, we are
also investing for the future. Online banking and digital
innovation have changed the playing field for financial
services. Digital transformation is part of our long-term
strategy, ensuring that we are prepared for the digital
challenges of tomorrow.



DIVIDENDS FOR THE LAST 5 YEARS
BIES FREAEE
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EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

At the front end, we are working to strengthen our
service channels and improve the interactions that our
customers have with us. As we implement straight-
through processing and advanced data analytics, we
will be able to increase the level of personalisation that
we offer, and the speed with which we respond to
market changes.

At the back end, increased use of regulatory technology
(“Regtech”) and automation are speeding up key
processes, making risk and compliance management
more efficient. Continued enhancements to our
technology and cyber security platforms will ensure our
resilience in tomorrow’s increasingly data and tech-
driven environment.

As BEA transforms, so too do our employees. We are
better able to use the digital tools that are increasingly at
our disposal; we are collaborating across the Group more
effectively; and we are focussing more on value-added
work — all to serve our customers better.

Our Bank retains a unique franchise that straddles Hong
Kong, the Mainland and our overseas network. Although
travel was restricted throughout 2021, we are ramping
up efforts to provide our customers with a One Bank
experience, delivering seamless and frictionless cross-
boundary customer service.

Our Mainland business returned to profit in 2021,
following a sustained effort to upgrade asset quality.
BEA China faces the future with a strong balance sheet,
a lower cost structure, a more robust risk culture and
enhanced internal controls.

We made important changes to our international
network, sharpening our focus on corporate banking
in Singapore, Macau and the UK. This initiative
produced the desired results, with steady growth in
business. Linking Hong Kong and the Mainland with
our international network remains a key aspect of our
strategy going forward.

As well as strengthening internal collaboration, we have
continued to foster mutually beneficial partnerships with
like-minded organisations. In 2021, we entered into a
ground-breaking bancassurance agreement with AlA
Group Limited. Our shared vision and excellent working
relationship ensured that our partnership enjoyed a highly
promising start. | am confident that, by developing our
strong distribution network and expanding our client base
in Greater China, this synergistic partnership will continue
to perform to our high expectations in 2022 and beyond.

We remain committed to developing responsibly and
addressing ESG concerns in our operations. In November
2021, BEA's Board-level ESG Committee endorsed the
Bank Group’s ESG strategy framework, which sets out our
vision to be a market leader in sustainability in financial
services. We adopted concrete metrics that assist us to
gauge ESG risks in our lending policies. We established a
Group carbon-emissions reduction target, and we have
been making the necessary investments to achieve our
set targets for Group emissions. Meanwhile, we have
developed innovative new products and solutions to help
our customers transition to a low-carbon future.

We will continue to strengthen our governance and refine
business practices to ensure that we deliver sustainable
value to all stakeholders.
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EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

OUTLOOK

The Mainland economy entered a period of transition
in 2021, as new regulations guided investment
toward sectors that would support China’s long-term
competitiveness and sustainable growth. These measures
will keep economic fundamentals strong, reducing
systemic risks and laying the foundation for an advanced
industrial economy based on common prosperity.
Meanwhile, the development of the Greater Bay Area is
still in its infancy. The best is yet to come.

In late January, the Bank announced that it plans
to repurchase all of the Bank’s shares held by Elliott
Investment Management and its affiliated entities, subject
to approval of shareholders at an Extraordinary General
Meeting. Management and the Board strongly believe
that this transaction presents a tremendous opportunity
to enhance return on equity and earnings per share.

Covid-19 remains an ever-present threat. However, after
two years of managing successive waves of the virus, we
have an effective anti-Covid response framework in place.
With the emergence of the fifth wave in Hong Kong in
early 2022, we are strictly enforcing all government and
HKMA guidelines on vaccination, testing, work-from-
home arrangements and social distancing in order to
protect customers and staff.

As BEA becomes an increasingly digital, asset-efficient
bank, we have become more agile, collaborative and
productive. Fee-based revenue streams are being
expanded. We are better able to take advantage of
change, and ready to capitalise on our strengths as cross-
boundary financial connectivity widens and expands.

Our employees were asked to bear the dual loads of
daily operating excellence while managing the disruptive
changes of our push toward a digital future. They have
risen to the challenge. As we move forward, BEA will
continue to recruit and develop digitally-aware talent
across the organisation, further enhancing our capabilities
and service and priming us for future growth.

In closing, | take pleasure in thanking our Bank’s
Board of Directors and the directors of our subsidiaries
and associated companies for their invaluable advice
and support during the past year. | also thank the
management and staff of BEA for their commitment,
which is all the more important as we carry out our bank
transformation programme.

I thank our many international partners, in particular
CaixaBank and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation,
for the excellent working relationship that we enjoy
with them. | thank the communities that we serve for
their support and encouragement. And | thank our
shareholders and customers. Without their longstanding
loyalty and confidence in this Bank, we could not achieve
so much.

David LI Kwok-po

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th February, 2022
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REPORT OF THE CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVES

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Performance

In 2021, BEA and its subsidiaries earned a profit
attributable to owners of the parent of HK$5,270 million,
representing an increase of 45.8%, compared with the
HK$3,614 million earned in 2020.

The increase in attributable profit was mainly due to a
significant reduction in impairment losses in Mainland
China, improved net fee and commission income, and a
gain of HK$902 million on the disposal of BEA Life.

Basic earnings per share rose from HK$0.97 in 2020 to
HK$1.53 in 2021.

The return on average assets rose from 0.3% to 0.5%,
while the return on average equity rose from 3.0% to
4.4%.

Group net interest income was pressured under the
prolonged low-interest-rate environment. Net interest
margin for the full year narrowed from 1.48% to
1.37%, leading to a 3.2% drop in net interest income to
HK$11,185 million, despite a 4.7% increase in average
interest earning assets. However, the situation stabilised
in the second half of the year, with net interest income
rising by 2.5% half-on-half.

Net fee and commission income rose by 5.0% to
HK$3,069 million. The increase was mainly led by higher
income from sales of insurance policies, as well as
improved results from investment activity in Hong Kong
and other revenue streams across the Group.

Net insurance profit was lower compared to 2020, mainly
due to a shorter period of revenue contribution from life
insurance business following the disposal of BEA Life.
Non-interest income was also impacted by the absence of
COVID-19-related government subsidies.

Overall, total operating income decreased by 5.9% to
HK$16,283 million.

Total operating expenses were contained at HK$9,321
million despite continued investments in technology and
talent, as efficiency gains from automation and straight-
through processing began to take effect. Excluding the
impact of exchange rate movements, costs grew by just
1.0%.

Impairment losses on financial instruments fell sharply,
from HK$4,674 million in 2020 to HK$1,679 million in
2021. Credit cost improved from 0.94% to 0.28%. The
Group's impaired loan ratio decreased from 1.26% at the
end of December 2020 to 1.09% at the end of December
2021, while that for Mainland China operations improved
from 3.10% to 1.54%.

Operating profit after impairment losses amounted to
HK$5,283 million, an increase of HK$2,026 million, or
62.2%.

Net profit on sale of assets held for sale increased by
HK$1,010 million to HK$1,042 million, mainly as a result
of the disposal of BEA Life.

The Group's share of after-tax profits less losses from
associates and joint ventures decreased by HK$544
million to a loss of HK$234 million, mainly contributed by
an associate operating in Mainland China.

After accounting for income taxes, profit increased to
HK$5,313 million, an increase of 44.2% compared to the
HK$3,685 million recorded in 2020.
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REPORT OF THE CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVES (CONTINUED)

Financial Position

Total consolidated assets of the Group stood at
HK$907,470 million at the end of December 2021, an
increase of 2.6% compared to HK$884,420 million at the
end of 2020.

Gross advances to customers increased by 6.8% to
HK$548,808 million.

Driven by the strong contribution from net profit for the
year, total equity attributable to owners of the parent
increased to HK$101,778 million, a rise of 2.9%.

Total deposits from customers increased by 7.5% to
HK$633,505 million. Of the total, demand deposits
and current account balances increased by HK$9,822
million, or 14.1%; savings deposits increased by
HK$8,760 million, or 4.7%; and time deposits increased
by HK$25,721 million, or 7.8%. Total deposit funds,
comprising deposits from customers and all certificates of
deposit issued, increased by 7.3% to HK$697,832 million.

The loan-to-deposit ratio stood at 78.6% at the end of
December 2021, compared to 79.1% at the end of 2020.

As at 31st December, 2021, the total capital ratio, tier 1
capital ratio, and common equity tier 1 capital ratio were
21.6%, 19.8%, and 17.0%, respectively. The average
liquidity coverage ratio for the quarter ended 31st
December, 2021 was 182.4%, well above the statutory
minimum of 100%.

RATINGS

S&P Global Ratings

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Long-term Counterparty Credit A-
(local and foreign currency)

Short-term Counterparty Credit A-2
(local and foreign currency)

Outlook Stable

Moody'’s Investor Service

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Long-term Bank Deposit A3
(local and foreign currency)

Short-term Bank Deposit Prime-2
(local and foreign currency)

Outlook Positive



FAREAR

R221TFNAK AEBGREEERLTEBRK
9,074.70{8 7T * B 2020 F XA ¥ 8,844,208 L 18
$12.6% o

HERIAATEIEING.8% » BN S 188.08 (87T °

TPy
R

FABERSEYNEDT - A EBRAEER
Wz 4R

FEFA2.9% =58 1,017.78187C °

BEPEREEENT 5% =¥ 6,335.058 L &
B OEBERNARGEREP &L RER 98.2218
T 3K 14.1% ¢ & 157 508 0 8 % 87.6018 T
%4.7% ; i€ BAAF SRR pN B 257 21187 - 3K
7.8% - BIERFPER KB EEITHERBNFRERE
Bl EF7.3% » =%%6,978.32187T ©

R221F 1R AK EREERLERE786% ' M
2020 FEKAIA79.1% °

B2021F 12 A31H BEKRLLE - —RENRLLE
REBBRE—RERNLEDRAE21.6%  19.8% &
17.0% ° B 2202112 A31 B IEZENFERE N
BENER182.4%  EER 100% KETE TR o

RERTERAA

2021 F 3R 15

BMETHABREE (&)

SE BIREAR

REER{THER A A
RRRSHFEE (BITRINE)
MR HHFEE (BT RINE)

Al S

BERERK

REER{THER A A
RERITER (BT R INE)
FEHRERTT IR (BT N

RS

A3
Prime-2
1EmE

OPERATING HK$ Million
BEEER
INCOME VS .
OPERATING 20,000 19,755
E}?ENSES 18,000 17,016* 17,134* 17,310
AREIR AL 16,283
e H 16,000
14,000
12,000
10,000
5 —=
8,000 — 2891 9,321
8,067 8,563 8,963
6,000
4,000
2,000
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

— Operating Income

REWA

* Restated operating income

BEREERA

— Operating Expenses

REH



16 The Bank of East Asia, Limited | Annual Report 2021

REPORT OF THE CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVES (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economy is on course for recovery. However,
the vaccine-inspired optimism in the early part of 2021
has been tempered by inflationary pressures from
commodity crunches, supply chain disruptions and food
shortages. Major central banks are increasingly under
pressure to rein in expansionary policies and raise interest
rates. Added to this mix is the emergence of yet another
highly infectious COVID-19 variant, reminding the world
that it may be too soon to declare victory over the virus.

Despite external challenges, Hong Kong’s economy
performed well in 2021, with exports growing at
26.3% year-on-year. Strict border policies have kept the
pandemic situation stable, minimising disruption to the
domestic economy and supporting employment and
consumption. Unemployment averaged 3.9% in the three
months to the end of December. Meanwhile, retail sales
rose by 8.1% year-on-year, boosted by the government’s
consumption voucher scheme. These factors led the
economy to grow by 6.4% in 2021. While equity markets
underperformed, the property market showed resilience,
with prices rising 3.3% over the year.

Looking ahead, BEA expects that exports will remain
strong, although year-on-year growth will be somewhat
slower than 2021. Downside risks remain, however,
with the threat of virus mutations and global inflationary
pressures among the foremost concerns.

Overall, the Bank forecasts Hong Kong'’s gross domestic
product will grow by 3.2% in 2022, with inflation
trending upwards to 1.9%.

On the Mainland, exports continued to defy market
expectations, growing by 29.9% year-on-year. Fixed
asset investment rose by 4.9% year-on-year. Meanwhile,
sporadic COVID-19 outbreaks have tempered private
consumption, leaving retail sales with subdued average
annual growth of 4% when compared to 2019 levels.
Property prices started to trend downwards in September
2021, succumbing to intense regulatory pressure. Overall,
the economy registered annual growth of 8.1%.

In the coming year, China may face the threat of
a sliding property market, surging input prices and
persistent COVID-19 risks. If these factors were to occur
simultaneously, this could lead to slower growth in 2022.

The Chinese government has stated that economic
and social stability are top priorities for the year. The
People’s Bank of China has already taken action in this
regard, lowering the reserve requirement for banks by
0.5 percentage point in December, and thereby freeing
up liquidity for investments. A key policy focus for 2022
will be support for small- and medium-sized enterprises.
Given this expansionary posture, BEA forecasts China’s
economy will grow by 5.3% in 2022. Inflation will remain
under control, averaging 2.2%.

Business — Hong Kong

Profit before tax for Hong Kong operations increased
by 15.5% year-on-year to HK$3,941 million. Growth
was driven by higher fee income and a one-off gain on
the disposal of BEA Life. This was partially offset by the
impact of a sustained low-interest environment, as well
as an upturn in impairment losses towards the end of
the year following negative news surrounding Mainland
property exposure.

Net fee and commission income increased by 14.9%
year-on-year as the Bank focussed on uplifting frontline
productivity and driving fee-generating business. Early
results from BEA's bancassurance partnership with AIA,
which launched in July 2021, have been positive. This
partnership is expected to have a growing contribution in
subsequent periods.

As experienced across the industry, net interest income
declined, although the pressure on NIM stabilised in the
second half of the year. Net insurance profit was also
lower following the aforementioned disposal of BEA
Life. The Bank’s general insurance arm, Blue Cross (Asia
Pacific) Insurance Limited, is now classified as an asset
held for sale.

Initiatives to reduce costs and improve efficiency across
the Bank’s operations have been successful. As a
result, operating expenses were well contained, despite
significant investment in digital capabilities and people.

Credit deterioration was seen in the fourth quarter,
as certain corporate clients faced liquidity issues. This
brought impairment losses for the full year roughly in line
with 2020, bucking the trend of improved asset quality in
previous quarters.



EBERE

PEACE EER SRR © 2021 4] RENEHT AR
TEIRGEEIELE - AT - BEZEMERR - HEETE X
BRERGIBRE ]  BBEERMEA - AR
THERERE)  FEWEERNEBBR  EE2H
RIS o AN - 2019 TEMRET LR T E AE LN E
& RESIKEBRIBREDNE 2ERE -

REINEKBEE - BEBLBEE 2021 FRIAEE -
AR FIER 26.3%  BISHBIRE HIBUR REHEE
FTHEBRE HAMEENEESURE 7T
HENHEEMS HENAE=BEAREXRTHA
3.9% © AR - EBATEBESFTEIMNES T - TEREIR
FIER81% o Ll AXESN 2021 FLEEILR6.4% ©
HARENISRATE  BEEMETSREFE  F
MIEE E3R3.3%

RERE  RLRTEPEOBEERY  BFER
RGE 021 FEE - AT - EEDNGHFETTRR -
REEEMNEEMEBRENRRX B EANME -

A S - AN{TIERI 2022 EM BB A A EAE S
HBR32%  MBEREELEAZE1.9% -

MBS E - HHERESERTISESR  RF
BR299% - BIEEERERF LT14.9% ° b -
209 BRAESRRBNTEREZEBAARE  ©F
ERERXE - 2019 FHLESRS 4% B TFIIFE
K- EEREREBNEEMXE 1202149 AH
AR T REE - BEME @ KEFERER81% °

ARR—F PEEREMEMS N REERHA

F UAREERFRERBNEE  EELEEZRED
I AIREEE 2022 ERYIE R AR o

RERTERAA

BETHARRESE (H)

2021 F 3R 17

PREFERR  EEMEERER2022FHNEEE
2o AR ARBITEHIVUAREREE - REF 12 AFR
IEREESETHOSEE DS - EMERRSNIE -
RERE o TP PRUDEIE 2022 FHBRES -
ER il T E RO - R anIRTTTE AR BB
202 FHIERS53%  MBREGEESTE - 2FF
HE22% °

FEREBHNBRRAMEMNRFERISSNERE
394187 B MBEBRALE MR HERTAS
B — RSP E) - A1 HEERRFEEROY
& mEEAEERRERNAEES - 2R
BERREFEA L7 K5 T RO I8 -

RITHNIRSRIGZE TR EE N A RIEBRERS
BOEY RBEERASBAFERARZRFER
14.9% - RGRITERAEENRITRBREHLEER
20217 RIERER - #)2KERE - BARHEE
BEEBEERENER

RBTENBEERAN  BATLETREENE
RIBE BT EMADA T - RIEERTAS
% RBEBERAIER T  A7TH T —RER
AR - BT (TA) RRERANRRBEARAE
HEEE -

ATRBREBTER T FRERAMET RS NE
i WEEEAR - Btk - @ERBBLRAT TE
FHEBARKRE - LETHIEFIFE -

HRETOCERFEGRREERE  FNEEEFEE
ETR AEEEEZFEEELTZNENBE  2FH
SEIB KRB 2020 FABAHEE ©



18 The Bank of East Asia, Limited | Annual Report 2021

REPORT OF THE CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVES (CONTINUED)

The Bank maintained a prudent approach to new lending
throughout 2021. Customer loans increased by 3.3% to
HK$305,400 million at 31st December, while deposits
rose by 5.4% to HK$412,018 million. To mitigate the
pressure on NIM, the Bank continued to attract low-cost
deposits across all business units, and the average current
and savings account ratio improved compared to the
previous year.

BEA is committed to developing green and sustainable
finance in Hong Kong. In October 2021, the Bank signed
a Memorandum of Understanding with the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA"). Under this
agreement, programmes will be developed to encourage
customers to engage in certification and assessment
services. Meanwhile, a new green mortgage plan was
launched in December 2021 covering private and public
residential properties under the Hong Kong Green
Building Council’s BEAM Plus scheme.

Retail Banking

For the Bank’s retail operations, income was dragged by
a double-digit decline in net interest income. NIM was
pressured under the persistent low interest environment,
impacting deposit income in particular. The effect was
mitigated by successful efforts to grow fee revenues and
reduce costs. Overall, profit before tax reduced by 6.4%
year-on-year.

Retail wealth revenues increased by 13.4%, with higher
income from investment and insurance product sales. The
Bank refined its value propositions for target customer
groups, and double-digit growth was recorded in the
affluent and emerging affluent segments. In particular,
new-to-bank customers of BEA’s Supreme all-in-one
account rose by 54.8%, while the newly launched
SupremeGold Private service saw continued growth in
both customers and AUM.

Following continuous enhancements to the Bank's digital
service capabilities, 41.8% of financial transactions are
now conducted online or via mobile. In particular, mobile
investment transactions rose by 20.9% year-on-year.
Digital migration has enabled BEA to optimise its network
and repurpose branches as wealth management hubs,
raising productivity and reducing costs. These efforts
contributed to an 8.3% reduction in operating expenses.

Looking ahead, encouraging momentum has been
seen in the youth segment, and the Bank is investing to
drive future growth in its customer base. To this end, a
new virtual card was launched in December. Additional
functions in digital payment and consumer finance will be
developed to complement BEA's offering.

Corporate and Commercial Banking

Corporate Banking's performance improved in 2021, as
business activity bounced back from the lows experienced
during the worst of the COVID-19 outbreak.

Overall, operating income rose by 9.6% year-on-year.
Net interest income was up by 9.2%, driven by a 4.9%
increase in the corporate loan book, as well as an
improved interest spread on lending resulting from lower
funding costs.

Non-interest income also grew by 11.3%. The Bank'’s
efforts to improve fee income, including a widened
product suite, expanded specialist teams and a
systematic approach to account planning, were effective.
As a result, revenues from insurance, corporate wealth
management, debt capital markets solutions and trade
finance activity increased.

™ The Bank’s Green Mortgage Plan promotes green living and
sustainable development
REpIRITIEE [ BRI 8] - BEREREEE R
AREER

== BEA's refreshed Supreme service enhances the customer-centric
digital wealth experience for young emerging affluent customers
ROPITEEEF [ ZGEM RS ANEEHREFRNEER
BFRHUBBRERLNI EEEER
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BEA continued to attract new customers from a wide
range of industries to broaden its customer base and
diversify its portfolio. The corporate customer base grew
by 16.3%, and new-to-bank customers made a significant
contribution to growth in deposits, loans and fee income.
The Bank has developed tailor-made sector solutions to
further deepen penetration in target customer segments.
Results to date have been encouraging, with a 43.6%
increase in revenues from customers using these products.

In the coming year, BEA will focus on upgrading its
digital service capabilities for corporate customers. A
new Corporate Cyberbanking platform will be launched
in the second half of 2022, with advanced features and
an improved user interface. The Bank will also leverage
the HKMA's Commercial Data Interchange project and
Open Application Programming Interface technology to
collaborate with a wide range of partners on commercial
data, customer experience integration and new payment
and financing solutions.

Wealth Management

Private Banking’s performance was impacted by muted
investor sentiment in the second half of the year, as equity
markets in Hong Kong came under pressure from sector-
specific policy risk on the Mainland. Clients continued
to deleverage their portfolios, focussing instead on
risk mitigation. As a result, loans and investment AUM
declined. However, deposits recorded good growth,
providing a solid foundation for future revenue generation.

Demand for mutual funds remained resilient throughout
the period as customers were advised to actively re-
adjust their portfolios and diversify their holdings. Foreign
exchange-related business also recorded strong results
from both retail and private banking clients, with revenues
from currency-linked deposits more than doubling.

BEA will continue to promote its forex-related services
to help clients capture opportunities from anticipated
exchange rate volatility as global monetary policies
diverge. Meanwhile, the Bank remains dedicated to
serving the Greater Bay Area and has built a solid
market position among foreign banks under the Wealth
Management Connect scheme.

The Bank is further strengthening its integrated service
platform, especially digital investment tools, to meet the
holistic needs of high-net-worth individuals in the region.
Seasoned relationship managers, investment consultants
and product specialists have been recruited to drive the
wealth management business. Strong growth in AUM
and revenue is expected as the COVID-19 recovery takes
hold, both from new customer acquisition as well as a
deepened wallet share from existing clients.

Insurance and MPF Services

In 2021, the Bank successfully completed the sale of
BEA Life to AIA Group. As part of the transaction, BEA
also entered into a 15-year exclusive bancassurance
agreement with AIA covering Hong Kong and Mainland
China. The bancassurance partnership was launched in
July following a brief transition. Initial results have been
promising, and this partnership is expected to contribute
meaningful revenues in the coming years.

Blue Cross (Asia Pacific) Insurance Limited, BEA’s wholly-
owned general insurance arm (“Blue Cross”), experienced
an exceptional surge in inpatient claims in 2021 as pent
up demand was released, dragging underwriting profits.
Premium income was also affected by a temporary delay
in new subscriptions due to ongoing travel restrictions.
Nevertheless, demand is expected to rebound strongly as
borders reopen and normal activity resumes.

Blue Cross remains focussed on providing value-added
services for its base of over 300,000 medical and general
insurance customers. To drive engagement and brand
awareness, a new wellness platform is being launched in
phases. The platform will provide healthy living advice, as
well as a rewards program where customers can redeem
gifts and insurance discounts.

Total membership of BEA's MPF schemes grew to
851,000 at the end of December 2021, while AUM
stood at HK$31 billion. The Bank continued to promote
its convenient digital MPF service channels, and the
utilisation rate among members reached 90% during the
year under review.

== Mobile Wealth - an investment trading platform in the
BEA App which offers 13 wealth management functions —
was launched, enabling customers to capture investment
opportunities anytime, anywhere

R IoERTTHE BEA App HEH Mobile Wealth# 8B X 5 ¥ 4 -
R 13BYEEEINE - WEFERENZREERS
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== BEA’s 15-year exclusive bancassurance partnership with AIA for Hong Kong and Mainland China commences,
offering comprehensive life and long-term savings insurance solutions
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Business — Mainland China

In 2021, China’s economy staged a strong recovery and
its GDP expanded by 8.1% compared to the year before.
However, signs of a slowdown were observed in the
second half of 2021, mainly due to weakened demand,
supply chain disruptions and tightened regulations on
various industries, in particular the real estate sector.

BEA China successfully executed its business strategies
and its operations showed a turnaround, achieving a
net profit of HK$571 million in 2021 from a net loss of
HK$818 million in 2020. During the year, loan growth
momentum accelerated while credit cost was managed at
the lowest level in recent years. Through persistent efforts
in expanding and diversifying the loan portfolio, total
loans recorded double-digit growth to reach HK$150
billion while the proportion of property-related loans was
progressively reduced.

Despite encouraging loan book growth in 2021, total
operating income edged down on a year-on-year basis.
NIM was lower as a result of the reduction in the high-
margin consumer finance portfolio and keen market
competition for deposits. Non-interest income was also
weaker than expected, due to a slowdown in economic
activity and dampened demand on wealth management
services as capital market volatility increased.

On the corporate banking side, BEA China focussed
on growing and diversifying its loan portfolio in 2021.
Emphasis was placed on developing the non-property
related loan portfolio and building up trade finance assets.
BEA China’s non-property related loan portfolio now
accounts for 67.0% of its total corporate portfolio, while
it stood at 60.7% at the end of 2020; and comprises
mainly of non-bank financial institutions, companies
from wholesale and retail trade, and the manufacturing
industry. A large proportion of the increase came from
extending additional facilities to qualified customers who
have long-term banking relationships with the Bank as
well as customers with financing needs on both sides of
the border. At the same time, BEA China has cautiously
expanded its customer base, which has led to a steady
growth in new-to-bank customers, with state-owned
sponsors accounting for a larger share.

Overall, operating income from corporate banking
achieved steady growth in 2021. Net interest income
from corporate banking grew by 15.4% year-on-year.
The benefits from a larger loan portfolio were offset by
thinner margins as BEA China targeted quality customers
with stronger credit ratings. Non-interest income from
corporate banking remained stable, and BEA China was
able to capture new business opportunities through
treasury sales and debt capital markets.

Operating income from retail lending in 2021 was lower
compared to the previous year as BEA China downsized
its high-margin internet finance and credit card portfolios.
Following the new Government policy on internet finance,
the Bank worked closely with its eco-system partners
to improve risk control on both pre- and post-lending
and ensure compliance with new regulations. Regarding
its credit card business, BEA China slowed down new
card issuance and put greater emphasis on deepening
customers’ wallet share through cross-selling.

Income from wealth management also dropped during
the year as customers moved away from risky products
and volatile markets. However, it is encouraging to see
an increase in the number of SupremeGold customers
and the amount of AUM (including deposits) and
cross-boundary referrals during the year, with the
GBA fuelling a large share of the growth. Since the
bancassurance partnership between BEA China and AIA
China was officially launched, with product proposition
and a sales force put in place, early encouraging results
have been noted. This momentum should carry over to
2022 and beyond.

During the period under review, operating expenses for
BEA China increased by 8.5% year-on-year to HK$3,446
million. However, on a constant currency basis, BEA
China’s operating expenses stayed flat compared to a
year ago, reflecting strong cost discipline despite being
in an inflationary environment. The cost benefits of
network consolidation and a more efficient workforce
were partly offset by the absence of a one-time social
insurance contribution exemption granted by the Central
Government in 2020 amid the COVID-19 outbreak.
Notwithstanding its flat cost base, BEA China has
increased its investments in information technology as
well as digital and data analytics capabilities in order to
drive cost efficiency, improve workflow and strengthen
core infrastructure.

Regarding asset quality, BEA China continued to maintain
a prudent underwriting standard and further reduced
the size of its legacy corporate non-performing loan
portfolio. Significant improvements in asset quality were
observed in both corporate banking and retail banking.
The impaired loan ratio dropped by 1.56 percentage
points to 1.54% as of the end of 2021. Non-performing
loan formation and impairment losses for the year fell to
HK$1,383 million and HK$560 million, a year-on-year
reduction of 58.2% and 81.1% respectively. BEA China
will continue to manage its asset quality vigilantly during
what is expected to be a highly uncertain year.
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BEA China maintains a strong presence in Mainland
China, with 30 branches and 39 sub-branches covering
38 cities at the end of 2021. In the GBA, BEA China
operates 20 outlets and will continue to leverage on the
Group's extensive network to capture opportunities that
arise from the region.

Business — International, Macau and Taiwan

In 2021, the Bank’s overseas operations delivered a solid
financial performance, notwithstanding the challenging
operating environment stemming from COVID-19 variants,
geopolitical tensions, and global supply chain disruptions.

During the period under review, pre-provision operating
profit for overseas branches grew by 10.0% year-on-
year as a result of higher net interest margins and steady
growth in customer advances.

Net profit after tax surged 77.0% to HK$1,053 million,
mainly driven by a reduction in credit loss provisioning as
the economic outlook improved. Asset quality remained
sound, with the impaired loan ratio kept firmly at the low
level of 0.35% at the end of 2021.

The cost-to-income ratio remained stable at 37.0% in
2021, notwithstanding a surge in information technology
and risk and compliance expenses due to more stringent
regulatory requirements.

During the year, major economies rebounded strongly,
supported by a gradual resumption of economic
activity and social mobility. Amidst tempered optimism,
BEA's overseas branches continued to uphold prudent
underwriting standards when onboarding new businesses
and terminate challenging relationships. In 2021, the
Bank’s overseas branches registered a mild loan growth
of 2.6%.

The Bank’s branches in New York and Los Angeles
focussed on participating in quality syndicated loans with
positive business prospects. Meanwhile, the Bank’'s UK
operations recorded continuing growth in both loans and
pre-provision operating profit through diversification into
syndicated financing, including green and sustainability-
linked loans.

In Asia (excluding Hong Kong and Mainland China),
BEA successfully completed its strategic repositioning
and network rationalisation initiatives, resulting in
an improvement in efficiency and profitability of the
respective units. As part of this exercise, Singapore and
Macau branches have shifted their focus to corporate
banking. In the first half of 2021, the new banking hall
of Singapore Branch opened its doors to customers while
in Macau, the main branch became the sole, centralised
customer service point at the end of the year.

Strengthening collaboration with other business units and
strategic partners of the Bank to provide seamless, quality
services remains an ongoing focus. In the year under
review, the Taiwan Branch successfully referred quality
deals to other business units of the Bank. Going forward,
the branch will capitalise on its expertise in the syndicated
loan market and step up cross-selling efforts to generate
new business from large corporations. In a similar vein,
The Kuala Lumpur Representative Office will continue
to serve our customers in the region through business
referrals to other business units of the Group.

In line with the Group's strategic direction, overseas
operations will seek opportunities in sectors that will
benefit from economic recovery, expand green and
sustainability-linked financing, and invest in digital
capabilities and workflow automation.

BEA Union Investment Management
Limited

BEA Union Investment Management Limited (“BEA
Union Investment”) is well positioned to benefit from
the business opportunities presented to support the
growth and development of the GBA. In particular,
all of BEA Union Investment’s retail funds are already
eligible to participate in the recently announced Wealth
Management Connect scheme.

During the past year, BEA Union Investment introduced
two new funds under the Mainland-Hong Kong Mutual
Recognition of Funds scheme, bringing the total number
of offshore funds now on offer to Mainland investors
under this scheme to four.

Meanwhile, the unit's Shenzhen-based wholly foreign-
owned subsidiary, BEA Union Investment (Shenzhen)
Limited, introduced one new private fund in 2021. With
this addition, the Shenzhen subsidiary currently manages
two private funds that are designed for sale to high-net-
worth investors on the Mainland.

Following the recent regulatory changes in Hong Kong
that offer favourable treatment to open-ended funds,
BEA Union Investment restructured five existing unit
trust funds as open-ended funds. This not only benefits
investors, but also enhances Hong Kong's role as a
leading fund domicile and full-service asset and wealth
management centre.

Looking to 2022, with its pioneering spirit, agility and
resilience, BEA Union Investment will continue to enrich
its product offering and increase its market exposure.
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Our People

As of 31st December, 2021, BEA Group employed
8,824 people:

As of 31st As of 31st

December, 2021 December, 2020

Hong Kong 5,057 5,576
Mainland China 3,211 3,373
Macau and Taiwan 130 151
Overseas 426 439
Total 8,824 9,539

Employees are the Bank’s greatest assets, and are
instrumental to its continued growth and success. To
support BEA's business strategy and transformation, robust
recruitment activities were in place throughout 2021 to
attract both experienced and high-calibre professionals.

To groom young talent for future banking, the Bank
continued to participate in the HKMA and Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute’s co-launched HKMA
Banking Talent Programme, and sponsors intake through
the FinTech Career Accelerator Scheme. In addition,
BEA took part in the HKSAR Government’s Greater Bay
Area Youth Employment Scheme. Further, in order to
best serve the career development needs of the Bank'’s
Management Trainees, which saw a marked increment
in the number hired as compared to the previous year,
BEA adapted its trainee programme to provide additional
support via broadened exposure to FinTech and the GBA.

BEA encourages internal mobility to fulfil employees’
aspirations and meet its talent demand to build the
Bank’s leadership pipeline with The BEA Future Leader
Accelerated Programme. This programme provides
structured development for high-potential executives
("HIPOs") with opportunities for vertical and lateral
movement across the Bank to support their career
aspirations. HIPOs gain professional and leadership
development through broadened business exposure
and management experience; learning insights from the
Co-Chief Executives and senior management through
exchange forums and senior mentoring, strengthening
their leadership competence through training and
executive education.

To empower employees to take on future challenges,
BEA also rolled out a series of new training programmes
to build staff skillsets, such as the bank-wide growth
mindset programmes launched throughout 2021 for
staff at different levels, and modules designed to improve
staff members' digital awareness and capabilities. These
included a digital leadership programme for senior
leaders, FinTech webinars for executives and managers,
and Bank-wide e-learning modules. BEA also utilised
bank-wide digitalisation to implement online learning,
virtual classrooms, self-paced micro-learning and hybrid
learning as appropriate to drive a strong learning culture
and support its sustainable growth.

Moreover, the Bank launched the “Learn & Grow”
Recognition Scheme during the year to encourage staff
to participate in upskilling programmes, recognise their
efforts, and celebrate their scholarly accomplishments.
Future training curriculum will run in parallel with
continuous professional staff development. It will promote
staff participation and increasingly integrate technological
and innovative means.

To further strengthen its bank culture, BEA restructured
the Bank Culture Work Group to reinforce collective
efforts to promote a healthy risk culture. Bank-wide,
division-specific culture plans were developed based on
employee feedback from the most recent survey, which
boasted an engagement score of over 80%.

Employee well-being is factored in at all times so that
staff feel appreciated and cared for. During 2021,
the Bank renovated its canteen in the Head Office in
Central, turning it into the sustainability-conscious Café
23, named after BEA's stock code thanks to the winning
entry in a staff naming competition. The space promotes
staff well-being with a new, collaborative communal
space. The Bank also began to offer healthier choices
at both Café 23 and the staff canteen at its Millennium
City 5 office in Kowloon, both of which still provide
complimentary lunch to all staff every weekday. The
Bank also increased the frequency with which employees
can take well-being leave (shorten a work day by two
hours) to once per month.

Staff members’ health and safety, as well as that of the
public, is always of utmost importance to the Bank.
BEA therefore enhanced its medical and leave benefits;
implemented flexible work arrangements such as split-
team and work-from-home operations; provided
one additional day of leave allowance to all staff for
each COVID-19 vaccination received; and required
unvaccinated staff to undergo regular testing, as guided
by the HKMA to protect the health of all staff members.
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MAJOR RECOGNITION > E 4 EEa 1815

“Best SME's Partner Gold
Award 2021”
(for the 4th consecutive year)
The Hong Kong General Chamber of
Small and Medium Business

[2021 F/MEEZEHESE

(EEAFER) “Domestic Retail Bank of the Year -
BB Hong Kong”

"Initiative of the Year - Hong Kong”
in the ABF Retail Banking Awards 2021
Asian Banking and Finance
SERITAEE2021
-[EERERMTERT]
-[ERRERIFEE ]
CMIRTT R AT & Dkt
“Best Financial Planning Service”
in the Hong Kong Awards 2021
The Asian Banker

FBAE2021 - [ REEMRBIRE

CEMIRITZD
“Best Private Bank in “Retail Bank of the Year — Outstanding Achievement”
Greater China 2021” “Premium Segment Client Service — Outstanding Achievement”
“Best Wealth "Wealth Management Platform — Outstanding” Achievement
Management Partner in in the Financial Institution Awards 2021
North Asia 2021" Bloomberg Businessweek (Chinese Edition)

Global Brands Magazine & FHEHE A 58 2021
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The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited
RoR1T (FE) BRA A

#2021 Annual Excellent
Commercial Bank”
at the 21st Century
Competitiveness of Finance
21st Century Business Herald

NHLEEBMBEFEN
[2021 FE S B HRIT
(21 WACAE Z#E)

"Foreign Bank of
Excellent Brand-building
Competitiveness” at the

2021 Financial Institutions of
Competitiveness of Excellence
China Business Journal
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Bank of East Asia (Trustees) Limited
RIniR1T ({558) BRAQH

Gold Ratings — BEA (MPF) Value Scheme
— MPF Ratings’ 2021 MPF Scheme
Ratings and Awards
MPF Ratings Limited
TR — R (BEE) ZEE
- B2 2021 FERBE S EFTRRRE
B2 RBRAA]
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BEA Union Investment Management Limited
ROBEREEEARAT

For BEA Union RMB Core Bond Fund

Refinitiv Lipper Fund Awards Year 2021 Hong Kong:

- Best Fund Over 5 Years — Bond Global LC,

- Hong Kong Group Award — Mixed Asset (3 years),

- Hong Kong Group Award — Overall (3 years)
Refinitiv Lipper Fund Awards
BFREBEAREZVESES
RefinitivIEHEBE £ F4€2021:
-SEHBRERS — BREHF (BEHEY)

- BEMEAR  EEEEE —20213F)
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Blue Cross (Asia-Pacific) Insurance Limited

E+7F (EX) REBERAF

The Hong Kong Insurance Awards 2021 -
“Outstanding Initiative on Community Health
Crisis Award”

The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

ERRBEAN2021 — [N ERERMETAL
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Approach to Risk

The Group recognises that a sound risk culture is the
very foundation of its strength. To this end, the Group
maintains a prudent and proactive risk management
framework that supports risk awareness, proper
behaviour and sound judgement in relation to risk-taking.
All employees are responsible for the management of risk.
The following principles guide the Group’s risk appetite
and determine how its business and risks are managed.
Further details on the Group’s management of principal
risks are set out in Note 43 of the Notes To The Financial
Statements.

Risk and Return

The Group’s overall risk appetite is used to guide its
business plan. The level of return generated through
business activities is in line with the risk taken and in
alignment with strategic plans, strategic business outlooks
and risk management policies, with an aim to generate
sustainable earnings.

Capital Adequacy

The Group is committed to maintaining a sound capital
position defined by regulatory and internal capital
ratios after taking into account the Bank’s dividend
policy and the need to meet capital requirements. The
Group, and each of its members, expect to maintain
a robust capital adequacy position that supports the
growth of business activities.

Liquidity & Funding Management

The Group is committed to having sufficient funds to
continue business and operations under crisis scenarios
on a Group basis, with the ability to meet all obligations
as they come due.

Regulatory Compliance

The Group strives to deliver fair treatment to customers
and ensures that operations are conducted with integrity
and in compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory
requirements. The Group will not tolerate negative
conduct risk outcomes that go against the spirit of the
law and regulatory requirements, and is committed to
developing and promoting a sound corporate culture and
incentivising proper staff behaviour.

Cyber Security

The Group strives to adapt to the rapid pace of
technological change to improve the Bank’s services
for clients and enhance customer experience and is
committed to continually strengthening cyber security
capabilities including identification, prevention, detection
and response to address the ever-evolving cyber threat
landscape, and protect our critical information assets and
systems from external malicious attacks.

Reputation

The Group does not tolerate any controllable activity
that could cause material damage to its reputation, and
protects its reputation with an established process of
managing reputation risk and by dealing with potential
threats to its reputation proactively and minimising the
effects of reputation risk events.

ESG Risks Including Climate Risk

The Group recognises the importance of sustainability
to long-term business success, and therefore considers
environmental and social concerns when extending
financing to customers, making investments and
conducting operations. This strategic direction guides
the Group towards supporting companies and projects
that positively impact the environment and society,
while complying with local regulations and standards of
governance. The Group is committed to managing and
mitigating environmental, social, and governance risks,
including climate risk, in @ manner that is strategically
aligned with its Sustainability Vision and Mission
Statements, and reducing carbon emissions in our
business and operations.

Risk Management Framework

The Group has established a robust risk governance
and management framework that ensures appropriate
oversight of, and accountability for, the effective
management of risk.

This framework enables the Board and Senior Management
to administer risk management-related responsibilities with
appropriate delegation, checks and balances.

The key aspects of the framework, principal risks and
principal uncertainties are outlined below.
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Enterprise Risk Management

The Group manages risk on a Group-wide basis within
an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM") framework. The
ERM framework spans multiple risk types and focusses
on optimising the balance and interaction of the different
types of risk, and the balance between risk and return.

The ERM framework provides an effective and efficient
approach to governance and oversight within the
organisation, and helps the Group monitor and
mitigate risk during the course of carrying out the
Group's strategies.

Further, the ERM framework promotes risk awareness
throughout the organisation and facilitates better
operational and strategic decision-making, promoting
a strong risk culture and ensuring that operations
are compatible with the nature and level of risk that
stakeholders are willing to take.

Three Lines of Defence

Risk Governance

The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for the
effective management of risk. It approves risk appetite,
risk policies that govern the execution of strategies,
procedures and limits.

The Risk Committee stands at the highest level of the
Group’s risk governance structure under the Board.
It provides direct oversight of the formulation of the
Group's risk appetite and ensures that the Group’s risk
appetite is reflected in the policies and procedures that
Senior Management adopts to execute business functions.

Risk management committees have been established
throughout the Group, and with the assistance of these
committees the Risk Committee regularly reviews the
Group’s ERM framework and ensures that all important
risk-related tasks are performed according to established
policies and with appropriate resources.

The Group has adopted the “Three Lines of Defence” risk management structure to ensure that roles and responsibilities
with regard to risk management within the Group are clearly defined. The “Three Lines of Defence” model is
summarised below.

The First Line of Defence Comprises the Risk Owners, who are heads of business units or support units of the

Bank Group, together with staff under their purview.

They are responsible for the day-to-day management of risk within their units,
including establishing and executing specific risk-control mechanisms and
detailed procedures.

The Second Line of Defence Consists of the Risk Controllers, who are designated staff responsible for setting out
a risk management governance framework, monitoring risks independently, and
supporting the management committees in their oversight of risk management for

the Bank Group.

The Third Line of Defence Internal Audit Division, which is responsible for providing assurance as to the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management framework, including risk-governance

arrangements.

The Group Chief Risk Officer leads and coordinates all the Group's risk management-related matters, works closely
with the Risk Controllers on the formulation of risk management policies, and exercises risk oversight at the Group level
through a functional working relationship with all Risk Controllers and Risk Owners.
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Principal Risks

The Group faces a variety of risks that could affect its franchise, operations, and financial health. The principal risks that
have been identified under the ERM framework and how they are managed are set out in the following table.

Principal risk type

How it is managed

Credit Risk

The Group has established control limits, delegated lending authorities, underwriting
criteria, monitoring processes, internal rating structures, recovery procedures and
provisioning policies, and these are set out in the Group's policies, guidelines and
manuals in line with regulatory requirements.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has established control limits and assesses the gap risk, basis risk and
options risk primarily through the monitoring of repricing mismatches and the
impact of changes in interest rates on earnings and economic value.

Market Risk

The Group measures and monitors potential loss due to adverse price movements
and market volatility in accordance with the control limits set out in the Group's
polices, guidelines and manuals.

Liquidity Risk

The Group conducts cash-flow analysis to monitor funding needs and has a
contingency funding plan in place that clearly stipulates the procedures and
mitigating actions required to meet liquidity needs in crisis situations.

Operational Risk

The Group has established and implemented a framework that defines the
standards, processes and internal controls for managing operational risks against risk
appetite through various tools and systems in a cost-effective manner.

Reputation Risk

The Group identifies, assesses, monitors, mitigates and controls reputation risk
systematically. Specific procedures and guidelines are in place to facilitate timely and
effective communication with various stakeholders in order to defuse any potential
reputation-risk incidents.

Strategic Risk

The Group formulates and updates its strategic plan (covering a period of five
years) annually to set strategic goals and objectives, evaluate strategic positions and
develop appropriate strategies according to the changing external environment and
internal capabilities.

The Group establishes comprehensive policies, manuals, profiles and reports to set
out the management framework as well as assessment and monitoring tools.

Legal Risk

The Group has adopted comprehensive policies, guidelines and manuals. Qualified
internal personnel and/or external professionals are engaged to provide advice and
training courses.

Compliance Risk

The Group has established various policies, guidelines and manuals to ensure
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. A risk-based approach is in place
to complement the management of compliance risk.

Technology Risk

The Group strengthens cyber-security awareness of all staff through comprehensive
training programmes and further mitigates technology risk by implementing a range
of control measures.
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ERM Reports

ERM is driven and supported by the following enterprise-
wide risk reports, which are applied consistently in order
to identify, assess and manage risk across the Group.

Risk Appetite

Risk Appetite is set by the Board, and defines the accepted
and tolerated levels of risk and return from an enterprise-
wide perspective. The Risk Appetite Statement consists of
qualitative statements and quantitative metrics, covering
income-generating risks and non-income-generating risks.

Risk Profile

The Risk Profile report provides both a point-in-time view
and a forward-looking assessment of the suite of risk
categories, as well as an assessment of their potential
impact on the Group’s financial results, reputation and
business sustainability.

Key Developments

The COVID-19 pandemic has presented many challenges
to the Group, and the Group has actively managed the
associated risks. Specifically, the Group enhanced risk
management in the following areas in 2021:

Additional resources have been allocated for management
of special assets and credit monitoring so as to
proactively identify risk in the loan book and take timely
mitigation actions.

Additional resources have also been allocated to
strengthen parental oversight of risks associated with
BEA China. An expanded operational risk plan is in place,
along with enhancements covering incident analysis and
monitoring, communication and reporting protocols.
Post-credit-approval reviews and thematic reviews are
regularly conducted on selected portfolios by head office.

The Group continues to enhance its operational risk
management framework. Recent enhancements include
a revamp of the Risk Control Self-Assessment programme
by restructuring the risk taxonomy and control monitoring
mechanism; standardisation of management of
operational risk incidents; further sharpening of the anti-
fraud control measures; and an update of the policy and
assessment methodology for managing third-party risk.

The Group recognises the importance of sustainability
for the environment, for society and for the long-term
business success of the Group. During the past year, the
Board approved the Group’s first qualitative risk appetite
statement on ESG risks, which aligns strategically with the
Group's Sustainability Vision and Mission Statements. In
order to incorporate sustainable practices into all business
and operational initiatives, the Group launched the Green
and Sustainability-linked Lending Policy and introduced
an ESG risk rating mechanism and tool that enables
systematic assessment of customers’ ESG performance
and vulnerability to climate-related risk. In addition, the
Group conducts climate-related stress testing to assess the
climate resilience of the Group, facilitates the capability
building for measuring climate risks, and embeds climate
risks in business planning and strategy formation to
mitigate climate risks.
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Principal Uncertainties

The key uncertainties currently facing the Group and the mitigating measures implemented are set out below.

Principal Uncertainties

Mitigating Measures

Macro-economic Uncertainty Risk

The COVID-19 pandemic and US-China tensions have
impacted a wide range of industries since 2019. Despite
the economic recovery accelerating in 2021 in some
regions, uncertainties over the duration and impact of the
COVID-19 remain.

In Hong Kong, the economy continued to show its
growth momentum. However, the recovery is uneven and
some sectors are outperforming others. The Hong Kong
property market sentiment declined in the second half of
the year, and the local stock market was volatile. Coupled
with heightened regulatory risk for technology and real
estate companies operating in Mainland China, the credit
risk environment outlook remains challenging.

The Group will continue to monitor the market situation
and its portfolios closely in order to manage risk exposure.

From a credit risk perspective, the Bank continues to
identify potential adverse events and devise ways to
mitigate any impact on its capital adequacy and asset
quality. Such measures include enhanced credit control
on loan exposures most susceptible to the COVID-19
pandemic and US-China tensions, thematic reviews on
high risk sectors, and performing stress testing on capital
adequacy and loan-loss allowances.

From a market risk perspective, the Bank continues to
assess trends, manage exposures, review its risk-taking
strategy and formulate mitigation actions for impacted
securities as necessary.

From a compliance risk perspective, the Bank continues to
track the development of relevant sanction regimes and
adopt mitigating measures where appropriate.

Cyber-Security Risk

Cyber-security risk is a key focus area for regulators
and the banking industry, as these risks evolve rapidly.
Attackers are constantly seeking more sophisticated
and efficient ways to undermine banks’ cyber security
and operations.

The Group takes a multi-pronged approach to tackle
cyber-security risk:

Engage external consultants to assess the Group's
cyber-security controls against relevant information-
security standards and emerging risks to identify and
implement necessary improvements

e Analyse different intelligence sources to monitor
the latest worldwide threats and establish industry-
wide collaborations on the sharing of cyber threat
intelligence

e Maintain a proper incident response management
process including cyber-security insurance policy

e Enhance cyber and information-security training
programmes including periodic phishing tests to
promote security awareness among staff and improve
security practices

Cyber and information security risks and controls are
regularly reviewed and reported to directors in Risk
Committee meetings quarterly.
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Principal Uncertainties

Mitigating Measures

ESG Risks

Climate change poses both short and long-term risks
to the banking industry. “Physical risk” refers to the
impacts of weather and climate-related events, which
could lead to disruptions to the business and operations
of banks and their clients. “Transition risk” refers to the
risk related to the process of adjustment towards a low-
carbon economy, which can be prompted by policy,
legal, technology and market changes as climate-change
mitigation and adaptation measures are adopted.

To manage negative impacts from ESG risks and cultivate
ESG consciousness throughout the Group, BEA has:

e Developed a Green and Sustainability-linked Lending
Policy

e Enhanced its ESG risk assessment checklist for
credit applications by incorporating climate risk
considerations

e Participated in the HKMA pilot Climate Risk Stress Test
to assess BEA's resilience to extreme climate events

e Introduced various ESG/climate risk indicators to
enhance monitoring capability in a proactive manner

e Promoted and enhanced ESG knowledge and
awareness to all staff through external and internal
events including but not limited to industry webinars,
mandatory training, and internal communications

Interbank Offered Rate (“IBOR") Transition

Following the decision of global regulators to phase out
Interbank Offered Rates and replace them with risk-
free rates as alternative reference rates (“ARRs”), the
Group has established and completed the IBOR Reform
Project, enabling the Group to meet related regulatory
requirements of all applicable jurisdictions for 2021.

The Group has developed the capabilities to offer ARR
products and started trading in ARRs. System and
operational changes were also completed for handling
ARR transactions, and appropriate fallback provisions
have been included in contracts to protect customers. The
Group also updated the IBOR reform pages as appropriate
on BEA's official websites for customer reference.

With the completion of the IBOR Reform Project, the
Group has the operational capability to manage the ARR
transition for the USD London Interbank Offered Rates
("LIBORs") of tenors that will cease to be available after
30th June, 2023.

For the risks arisen from IBOR transition, including but not
limited to the following, the Group will closely manage
and monitor:

e Conduct risk arising from communications with
clients and market counterparties due to the
amendments required to legacy contracts necessary
for IBOR reform;

e Financial risk to the Group and its clients should
markets be disrupted due to IBOR reform giving rise
to financial losses;

e Pricing risk from the potential lack of market
information should liquidity in IBORs reduce;

e QOperational risk arising from changes to systems and
processes, and the risk of payments being disrupted
should an IBOR cease to be available;

e Risk on mismatch of hedging relationships as
financial instruments transition to ARRs resulting in
unrepresentative income statement volatility.

Note 56 gives further details on outstanding financial
instruments referencing interest rate benchmarks that
have yet to transition to alternative benchmark rates as at
31st December, 2021.
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COMPLIANCE

Compliance is an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance regime, and the Group is committed to
upholding the highest standards in all jurisdictions in
which it operates.

The Compliance Division is responsible for overseeing
the regulatory compliance framework and monitoring
compliance risks for the Group; communicating new
regulatory requirements to relevant units; delivering
compliance advice on the implementation of regulations;
conducting regulatory compliance reviews using a risk-
based approach; and regularly reporting compliance
matters to the Group’s management committees.

By order of the Board
Adrian David LI Man-kiu

Co-Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 24th February, 2022

Any significant compliance issues, including those
related to anti-money laundering ("AML") and counter-
financing of terrorism (“CFT"), are also reported to
the Risk Committee and the Board of Directors via the
management committees. Through the support of the
risk and compliance function established in the Bank'’s
business and support units — which act as the first
line of defence against regulatory non-compliance - a
comprehensive and efficient compliance risk management
framework is maintained.

The Group is fully prepared to meet the demands of the
evolving regulatory environment — including those related
to AML and CFT; international standards and regulatory
changes in jurisdictions where the Group has a presence;
cross-boundary business; investment and insurance
products sales practices; customer protection, particularly
in a digitalised environment; personal data protection;
and all other relevant requirements.

Brian David LI Man-bun
Co-Chief Executive
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DIRECTORS

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po

GBM, GBS, OBE, JP, MA Cantab. (Economics & Law), Hon. LLD
(Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA
(Edinburgh Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong
Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie), Hon. DSocSc
(CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP, Officier
de I'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of
Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck
Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur
Executive Chairman and Member of the Nomination Committee

Sir David, aged 83, joined the Bank in 1969. He was appointed
a Director in 1977, Chief Executive in 1981, Deputy Chairman in
1995 and Chairman in 1997. On 1st July, 2019, Sir David stepped
down as Chief Executive and was re-designated as Executive
Chairman of the Bank. Sir David is also the Chairman of BEA China
and The Bank of East Asia Charitable Foundation Limited.

Sir David is an Independent Non-executive Director of The Hong
Kong and China Gas Company Limited (listed in Hong Kong), The
Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited (listed in Hong Kong),
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (listed in Hong Kong) and
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (listed in Hong Kong). He was
an Independent Non-executive Director of Guangdong Investment
Limited (listed in Hong Kong).

Sir David is a Member of the Council of the Treasury Markets
Association. He is Founding Chairman of The Friends of Cambridge
University in Hong Kong Limited, Chairman of the Advisory
Board of The Salvation Army, Hong Kong and Macau Command,
Chairman of the Executive Committee of St. James’ Settlement and
a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Finance. He was a Member
of the Executive Council of Hong Kong from 2005 to 2008 and the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2012.

Sir David is the brother of Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung, the
cousin of Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing and Mr. Stephen Charles LI
Kwok-sze, and the father of Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu and Mr.
Brian David LI Man-bun.
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Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung

GBM, GBS, MA, MD, M.B.B.Chir (Cantab), DSc (Hon), DLitt (Hon),
Hon DSc (Med), LLD (Hon), Hon Doc (Soka), Hon Doc (KNUA), FRCS
(Eng & Edin), FRACS, Hon FACS, Hon FRCS (Glasg & 1), Hon FRSM,
Hon FPCS, Hon FCSHK, Hon FRCP (Lond), JP

Deputy Chairman, Non-executive Director, Member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Professor Li, aged 76, was a Director of the Bank (1995 — 2002) and
was re-appointed a Director in 2008 and was appointed a Deputy
Chairman in 2009.

Professor Li is a Member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") (he was also a Member
from 2002 to June 2007 and from July 2012 to June 2017). He
also serves as a Member of the Committee for the Basic Law of the
HKSAR under the Standing Committee of the National People’s
Congress. Professor Li was a Member of the National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (1998 — 2018).

Professor Li is an Independent Non-executive Director of Shangri-
La Asia Limited (listed in Hong Kong) and a Non-executive Director
of Greater Bay Airlines Company Limited. He was an Independent
Non-executive Director of Nature Home Holding Company Limited
(listing in Hong Kong withdrawn on 19th October 2021).

Professor Li was the Secretary for Education and Manpower of
the Government of HKSAR (2002 - June 2007). Before these
appointments, he was the Vice Chancellor of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong (1996 — 2002) and was the Chairman of Department
of Surgery and the Dean of Faculty of Medicine of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He was also the Chairman of the Council
of the University of Hong Kong.

Professor Li had held many important positions in various social
service organisations, medical associations, and educational bodies,
including the Education Commission, Committee on Science
and Technology, the Hospital Authority, the Hong Kong Medical
Council, the University Grants Committee, the College of Surgeons
of Hong Kong, and the United Christian Medical Services Board. He
was a Member of the Board of Directors of the Hong Kong Science
and Technology Parks Corporation and the Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute, and Vice President of
the Association of University Presidents of China. He was a Hong
Kong Affairs Adviser to China.

Professor Li is the brother of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po,
the cousin of Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing and Mr. Stephen Charles LI
Kwok-sze, and the uncle of Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu and Mr.
Brian David LI Man-bun.
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EERSEBEEBEAEBNEAER(E)

Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun

GBS, MBE, BSc, MSEE, Hon. DTech, JP

Deputy Chairman, Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman
of the Nomination Committee, Member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Committee

Dr. Wong, aged 71, was appointed a Director in 1995 and a Deputy
Chairman in 2009. He is the Chairman and Group Chief Executive
Officer of VTech Holdings Limited (listed in Hong Kong). Dr. Wong
is an Independent Non-executive Director of China-Hongkong
Photo Products Holdings Ltd. (listed in Hong Kong). He was an
Independent Non-executive Director of MTR Corporation Limited
(listed in Hong Kong) and Li & Fung Ltd (listing in Hong Kong
withdrawn on 27th May, 2020).

Dr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Science degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science
degree in electrical and computer engineering from the University
of Wisconsin and an honorary degree of Doctor of Technology from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing

ScB, MBA
Non-executive Director and Member of the Risk Committee

Mr. Li, aged 72, was appointed a Director in 1995. He is Chairman
of IAM Family Office Limited and Chairman of the Advisory
Board of MCL Financial Group Limited, both Hong Kong based
investment firms. Mr. Li possesses extensive experience in the fields
of investment banking, merchant banking and capital markets. He
is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Café de Coral
Holdings Limited (listed in Hong Kong), Kowloon Development Co.
Ltd (listed in Hong Kong) and Pokfulam Development Company
Limited (listed in Hong Kong). He was an Independent Non-
executive Director of Kunlun Energy Company Limited (listed in
Hong Kong) and Tai Ping Carpets International Limited (listed in
Hong Kong).

Mr. Li has an ScB in Civil Engineering from Brown University and a
Master of Business Administration from Columbia University.

Mr. Li is the cousin of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, Professor
Arthur LI Kwok-cheung and Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, and
the uncle of Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu and Mr. Brian David LI
Man-bun.
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EERSEBEEBEAEBNEAER(E)

Mr. Winston LO Yau-lai

SBS, BSc, MSc
Non-executive Director

Mr. Lo, aged 80, was appointed a Director in 2000. He is the
Executive Chairman of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (listed
in Hong Kong).

Mr. Lo graduated from the University of lllinois with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Food Science and gained his Master of Science
degree in Food Science from Cornell University.

Mr. Lo is the Chairman of Ping Ping Investment Company Ltd. He is
an Honorary Court Member of the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and a Life Member of Cornell University Council.
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Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze

BSc (Hons.), ACA
Non-executive Director

Mr. Li, aged 62, was appointed a Director in 2006. He is a
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science (Hons.) Degree in
Mathematics from King's College, University of London, U.K. He
has extensive experience in investment banking, having held senior
capital markets positions with international investment banks in
London and Hong Kong and board positions with international
investment funds.

Mr. Li is a member of the Executive Committee and the Honorary
Treasurer of The Keswick Foundation.

Mr. Li is the cousin of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, Professor
Arthur LI Kwok-cheung and Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing, and the uncle
of Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu and Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun.
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EERSEBEEBEAEBNEAER(E)

Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu

MA (Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP
Co-Chief Executive and Member of the Environmental, Social, and
Governance Committee

Mr. Li, aged 48, was appointed an Executive Director in 2014.
He first joined the Bank in 2000 as General Manager & Head
of Corporate Banking Division. He was appointed Deputy Chief
Executive in April 2009 and Co-Chief Executive in July 2019, and is
responsible for overall management and control of the Bank Group
with a particular focus on its Hong Kong business. He serves on the
boards of several Bank Group members as Chairman or Member.

Mr. Li is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of two
listed companies under the Sino Group (Sino Land Company Limited
(listed in Hong Kong) and Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited (listed
in Hong Kong)), China State Construction International Holdings
Limited (listed in Hong Kong) and COSCO SHIPPING Ports Limited
(listed in Hong Kong). He previously served as a Non-executive
Director of The Berkeley Group Holdings plc (listed in London).
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Mr. Li is a Member of the Anhui Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and a Counsellor
of the Hong Kong United Youth Association. He is Chairman of
The Chinese Banks' Association, Vice President of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers’ Council and a Member of the MPF Industry
Schemes Committee of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority. He is a Board Member of The Community Chest of
Hong Kong and serves on its Executive Committee, a Member
of the Advisory Board of The Salvation Army, Hong Kong and
Macau Command, and a Trustee of The University of Hong Kong's
occupational retirement schemes. Furthermore, he serves as a
Member of the Election Committees responsible for electing the
Chief Executive and Legislative Council Members of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") as well as deputies of the
HKSAR to the 13th National People’s Congress.

Mr. Li holds a Master of Management Degree from Kellogg School
of Management, Northwestern University in the US, and a Master
of Arts Degree and Bachelor of Arts Degree in Law from the
University of Cambridge in Britain. He is a Member of The Law
Society of England and Wales, and The Law Society of Hong Kong.
He is also a Member of the Hong Kong Academy of Finance and
has been conferred as an Honorary Certified Banker by The Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers.

Mr. Li is the son of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, the nephew
of Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung, Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing and
Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, and the brother of Mr. Brian
David LI Man-bun.
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EERSEBEEBEAEBNEAER(E)

Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun

JP, MA (Cantab), MBA, FCA
Co-Chief Executive and Member of the Environmental, Social, and
Governance Committee

Mr. Li, aged 47, was appointed an Executive Director in 2014. He
first joined the Bank Group in 2002. He was General Manager
& Head of Wealth Management Division of the Bank from July
2004 to March 2009. He was appointed Deputy Chief Executive in
April 2009 and Co-Chief Executive in July 2019. He is responsible
for the overall management and control of the Bank Group with
a particular focus on its China and international businesses. He
serves on the boards of several Bank Group members as Chairman
or as a Member.

Mr. Li is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of
Towngas Smart Energy Company Limited (formerly known
as Towngas China Company Limited) (listed in Hong Kong),
Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company
Limited (listed in Hong Kong), China Overseas Land & Investment
Limited (listed in Hong Kong) and Guangdong Investment Limited
(listed in Hong Kong).

Mr. Li holds a number of public and honorary positions, including
being a Member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a Member of the Chief Executive's
Council of Advisers on Innovation & Strategic Development of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a
Council Member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a
Director of the Financial Services Development Council, and a Vice
Chairman of the Asian Financial Cooperation Association.

Mr. Li is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He is also a Member of the Hong Kong Academy of
Finance and a Full Member of the Treasury Markets Association.
He holds an MBA degree from Stanford University as well as a BA
degree from the University of Cambridge.

Mr. Li is the son of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, the nephew
of Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung, Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing and
Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, and the brother of Mr. Adrian
David LI Man-kiu.
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Dr. Daryl NG Win-kong

SBS, BA, MSc, DHL, JP
Non-executive Director and Member of the Risk Committee

Dr. Ng, aged 43, was appointed a Director in 2015. He is currently
an Executive Director and Deputy Chairman of Sino Land Company
Limited (listed in Hong Kong), Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited (listed
in Hong Kong) and Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited (listed in Hong
Kong). He is also the Chairman, Non-independent & Non-executive
Director of Yeo Hiap Seng Limited (listed in Singapore).

Dr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics, a Master
Degree of Science in Real Estate Development from Columbia
University in New York and an Honorary Doctor of Humane Letters
Degree from Savannah College of Art and Design. He was awarded
an Honorary University Fellowship by Hong Kong Metropolitan
University in 2016 and was conferred Honorary Fellow of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2021.

Dr. Ng is a member of the Global Leadership Council of Columbia
University in the City of New York, a member of the 10th
Sichuan Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (“CPPCC"), a member of the 12th and 13th Beijing
Municipal Committee of the CPPCC, a member of the 10th and
11th Committees of the All-China Youth Federation and the Deputy
Chairman of the Chongging Youth Federation. He is the President
of Hong Kong United Youth Association, a Council Member of
the Hong Kong Committee for UNICEF, a Council Member of The
Hong Kong Management Association, an Advisor of Our Hong
Kong Foundation, a Council Member of Hong Kong Chronicles
Institute Limited, a Council Member of the Employers’ Federation
of Hong Kong, a Member of the Board of Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation, the Chairman of Greater Bay Area
Homeland Youth Community Foundation Limited, a Member of the
Board of Mind Mental Health Hong Kong Limited, a member of the
Estate Agents Authority of the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, a member of the Council of the University
of Hong Kong, a member of NUS Medicine International Council
at the Yong Loo Lin School of Medicine of National University of
Singapore, a member of International Advisory Council of Singapore
Management University, a member of the Board of M Plus Museum
Limited, a Board Member of National Heritage Board, Singapore,
a member of Hong Kong Trade Development Council Mainland
Business Advisory Committee, a member of the Cyberport Advisory
Panel of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, a
Director of The Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong
and a Director of The Community Chest of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Masayuki OKU

LL.B, LL.M, the Order of Industrial Service Merit Silver Tower
Non-executive Director and Member of the Nomination Committee

Mr. Oku, aged 77, was appointed a Director in 2015. He is an
Independent Non-executive Director of Chugai Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd., Rengo Co., Ltd., The Royal Hotel, Limited and TV
TOKYO Holdings Corporation, all of which are companies listed
in Japan. Mr. Oku is also the Honorary Advisor of Sumitomo
Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. ("SMFG" )Nt (listed in Japan and
USA). He was an Auditor of Nankai Electric Railway Co. Ltd.
(listed in Japan) and an Independent Non-executive Director of
Komatsu Ltd., Kao Corporation and Panasonic Corporation, all
of which are listed in Japan.

Mr. Oku began his career in 1968 at The Sumitomo Bank, Limited.
After engaging in the bank’s key acquisitions and investments in
the 1980’s, he was transferred to New York and appointed General
Manager of Chicago Branch in 1991. He returned to Tokyo in
1992, assumed the position of General Manager of the Corporate
Planning Department, and was elected as a member of the Board
of Directors of the bank in 1994. In 1999, Mr. Oku was appointed
Secretary General of the Integration Strategy Committee of the
bank, leading its merger process with The Sakura Bank, Limited,
which culminated in the formation of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking
Corporation (“SMBC")Nte in 2001. In 2003, he became Deputy
President of SMBC, heading Corporate Banking and International
Banking Units. In 2005, he was appointed President and CEO of
SMBC and Chairman of the Board of SMFG, the holding company
of SMBC. During his tenure as President and CEO of SMBC, he
also served as Chairman of Japanese Bankers Association in 2007
and 2010. In April 2011, he resigned as President and CEO of
SMBC to devote himself to his duties as Chairman of the Board of
SMFG. Mr. Oku also served as Vice Chairman of Keidanren (Japan
Business Federation) from 2011 to 2015. In April 2017, Mr. Oku
stepped down as Chairman of the Board of SMFG and remained as
a Director until 28th June, 2017.

Mr. Oku received his Bachelor of Law degree from Kyoto University
in 1968 and his Master of Laws (LL.M) degree from Michigan Law
School in 1975. He was awarded the Order of Industrial Service Merit
Silver Tower by the Government of the Republic of Korea in 2009.

Nete SMFG owns a 100% interest in SMBC. Both SMFG and SMBC are substantial
shareholders of the Bank as defined under the Listing Rules and within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, the details of which are disclosed in the
“Interest of Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons” section of the
Report of the Directors.
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Dr. the Hon. Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai

GBM, GBS, DSocSc, JP
Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Member of the Nomination Committee

Dr. Fan, aged 76, was appointed a Director in 2016. She is currently
an Independent Non-executive Director of China Overseas Land &
Investment Limited (listed in Hong Kong) and COSCO SHIPPING
Ports Limited (listed in Hong Kong).

Dr. Fan is one of Hong Kong's best-known public figures and has
an outstanding track record of community service. Dr. Fan was
appointed to the Legislative Council from 1983 to 1992 and was a
Member of the Executive Council from 1989 to 1992. She became
the President of the Provisional Legislative Council in 1997, and has
since been re-elected as the President of the First, Second and Third
Legislative Council until 30th September, 2008. Dr. Fan served as
President of the legislature of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region ("HKSAR") for 11 years.

In the lead-up to Hong Kong'’s reunification with China, Dr. Fan
played a valuable role as a Member of the Preliminary Working
Committee for the Preparatory Committee for the HKSAR from
1993 to 1995 and of the Preparatory Committee for the HKSAR
from 1995 to 1997. She was elected as a Hong Kong Deputy to
the 9th, 10th, 11th, and 12th sessions of the National People’s
Congress (“NPC") during 1998 to 2018, and was concurrently a
Member of the Standing Committee of the 11th and 12th sessions
of the NPC from 2008 to 2018. Dr. Fan is a Non-official Member
of the Candidate Eligibility Review Committee of the HKSAR. She
is also serving as the Chairman of Board of Management of the
Endeavour Education Centre Limited and the Endeavour Education
Trust and a Member of Hong Kong Laureate Forum Council.

After graduating from St. Stephen’s Girls’ College, Dr. Fan studied
at the University of Hong Kong, and was awarded a Bachelor
degree in Science and a Master degree in Social Science. She was
awarded Honorary Doctorate degrees in Social Science by the
University of Hong Kong, the City University of Hong Kong, the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and the Education University
of Hong Kong; and an Honorary Doctorate in Law from the China
University of Political Science and Law of the People’s Republic
of China. Her record of public service was acknowledged by the
HKSAR Government through the award of the Gold Bauhinia Star
in 1998 and Hong Kong's top award, the Grand Bauhinia Medal,
in 2007.
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EERSEBEEBEAEBNEAER(E)

Mr. Meocre LI Kwok-wing

BCom, CPA
Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit
Committee and Member of the Risk Committee

Mr. Li, aged 66, was appointed a Director in 2016. He is the Chief
Executive of Alpha Alliance Finance Holdings Limited.

Mr. Li was the Managing Partner of Arthur Andersen, one of the
major international accounting firms, taking charge of its Hong
Kong and China operations from September 1993 to February
1995. He was the Managing Director and Head of Corporate
Finance of NatWest Securities Asia from March 1995 to March
1998. He was the Chief Executive of ICEA Finance Holdings Limited
(from March 1998 to March 2002), an investment banking joint
venture between The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
and the Bank, prior to the company’s becoming a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Bank, which was subsequently renamed as Tung
Shing Holdings Company Limited and disposed to SinoPac Securities
(Cayman) Holdings Limited on 6th April, 2016.

Mr. Li received a Bachelor of Commerce degree, with distinction,
from University of Alberta, Canada. Upon graduation, he was
awarded the Financial Executives Institute Silver Medal for “Highest
Standing in Finance”. He also earned a Postgraduate Management
Diploma from the Harvard Business School, and is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Li is an Independent Non-executive Director of BEA China. He
is also the chairman of its audit committee and a member of its
connected transactions control committee and risk committee.
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Dr. the Hon. Henry TANG Ying-yen

GBM, GBS, JP

Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Risk
Committee, Member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Dr. Tang, aged 69, was appointed a Director in 2017. He was
the Chief Secretary for Administration of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region ("HKSAR") Government from 2007 to 2011
and the Financial Secretary of HKSAR Government from 2003 to
2007. He served as a member of the Executive Council of Hong
Kong from 1997 to 2011 and was a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong from 1991 to 1998.

Dr. Tang is a Standing Committee Member of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference, Chairman of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority Board, Chairman of Friends of Hong Kong
Association, Chairman of Federation of HK Jiangsu Community
Organisations Limited and the Chairman of Shanghai Tang Junyuan
Education Foundation.

Dr. Tang received a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University
of Michigan. In 1993, Dr. Tang was named Global Leader for
Tomorrow by the World Economic Forum. In 1989, he won the
Young Industrialist of Hong Kong award.

Dr. Tang is the Supervisor of BEA China.
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EERSEBEEBEAEBNEAER(E)

Dr. Delman LEE

BEng, DPhil
Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the
Environmental, Social, and Governance Committee, Member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Risk
Committee

Dr. Lee, aged 54, was appointed a Director in 2017. He is
currently the Vice Chairman of TAL Apparel Limited. He is also a
Non-executive Director of Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited
(listed in Hong Kong). He was a Non-executive Director of Dairy
Farm International Holdings Limited (listed in London, Bermuda
and Singapore).

Dr. Lee is a Council Member of The Hong Kong Management
Association. Dr. Lee possesses extensive experience in information
technology and management in global operations. He also has a
strong background in research.

Dr. Lee holds a doctorate from the University of Oxford and a
Bachelor’s degree in Electrical and Electronic Engineering from the
Imperial College, London.
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Mr. William Junior Guilherme DOO

BA, MA (Oxon), JP

Independent Non-executive Director, Member of the Audit
Committee, the Risk Committee and the Environmental, Social, and
Governance Committee

Mr. Doo, aged 48, was appointed a Director in 2019. He is currently
the Chief Executive Officer and Director of Fungseng Prosperity
Holdings Limited, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director of FSE Holdings Limited, an Executive Director of FSE
Lifestyle Services Limited (listed in Hong Kong) and a Non-executive
Director of NWS Holdings Limited (listed in Hong Kong).

Mr. Doo is a solicitor admitted in Hong Kong and is currently a non-
practising solicitor in England and Wales. He had legal practice
experience in one of the largest global law firms specializing in
finance and corporate transactions. He is a member of the Standing
Committee of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in Beijing of the People’s Republic of China. He serves
in different committees of the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, including a member of the Immigration
Department Users’ Committee, a member of the Standing
Committee on Young Offenders of Fight Crime Committee and
a member of the Correctional Services Department Complaints
Appeal Board.

Mr. Doo graduated from University of Oxford with B.A. and M.A.
degrees in Jurisprudence and he is elected as Foundation Fellow of
Wadham College, University of Oxford. He was appointed as Justice
of the Peace in 2018, and was awarded the honour of Chevalier de
I'Ordre National du Mérite by the President of the French Republic.
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EERSEBEEBEAEBNEAER(E)

Dr. David MONG Tak-yeung

BSCEE, DSocSc, DBA, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with
Neck Ribbon

Independent Non-executive Director, Member of the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Environmental,
Social, and Governance Committee

Dr. Mong, aged 59, was appointed a Director in January 2021. He
is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Shun Hing
Group, which has been the exclusive regional representative of a
famous brand of home appliances, Panasonic (formerly National),
for many decades. He is the President of the Hong Kong & Kowloon
Electrical Appliances Merchants Association Limited and the Vice
Chairman of Occupational Safety and Health Council.

Dr. Mong obtained a Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering,
University of California, Los Angeles and a Master of Business
Administration, Santa Clara University, California. Dr. Mong was
conferred Doctoral Degrees of Social Sciences, honoris causa from
the University of Hong Kong and Hong Kong Baptist University
and Doctoral Degree of Business Administration, honoris causa
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. Mong is an Honorary
Fellow of the University of Hong Kong and the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, as well as a Fellow of The Hong Kong Management
Association. He was awarded the Order of the Rising Sun, Gold
Rays with Neck Ribbon by the Government of Japan.

Dr. Mong is an Independent Non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee of Blue Cross (Asia-Pacific)
Insurance Limited, the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiary, and an
Independent Non-executive Director of Blue Care JV (BVI) Holdings
Limited which is an 80% owned subsidiary of the Bank.
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Dr. Francisco Javier SERRADO TREPAT
Non-executive Director and Member of the Nomination Committee

Dr. Serrado, aged 63, was appointed a Director in January 2021.
He is currently the Asia Regional Manager of Criteria Caixa, S.A.,
Sociedad Unipersonal¥et (“Criteria”). He possesses extensive
knowledge and skills and has more than 35 years of experience in
banking and finance-related industries, including about 30 years of
experience working in Mainland China. His major responsibilities
include overseeing the operations (including establishment) of
banking and finance entities of Criteria in Mainland China and
other regions in Asia. Dr. Serrado was the Asia Regional Manager
of CaixaBank, S.A. (listed in Spain) since 2007 until February 2022.

Among other academic and professional qualifications, Dr. Serrado
holds a PhD degree in Economics from Columbia University; a PhD
in Economics from the University of Philippines Diliman; and an
MBA degree from The London School of Economics and Political
Science. He was awarded the Cross of the Order of Civil Merit (2020)
at the behest of His Majesty King Felipe VI of Spain in recognition
for his achievements in economic cooperation, investment and
trade between the People's Republic of China and Spain.

Note - Criteria is 100% owned by Fundacién Bancaria Caixa d‘Estalvis i Pensions de
Barcelona, “la Caixa” (“la Caixa”). Both Criteria and “la Caixa” are substantial
shareholders of the Bank as defined under the Listing Rules and within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, the details of which are disclosed in the
“Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons” section of the
Report of the Directors.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SEEEAR

Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu ZRBEE

MA (Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP MA (Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP
Co-Chief Executive BT I AR

(Biographical details are set out on pages 50 and 51) (BN ERBEIRES0 B 51 E)
Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun TRMEE

JP, MA (Cantab), MBA, FCA JP, MA (Cantab), MBA, FCA
Co-Chief Executive BT I AE

Biographical details are set out on page 52 S S| Sl | A et
(Biograp page 52) (EAERHFIRE 52 E)
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Mr. Samson LI Kai-cheong

FCCA, CPA, FCG, HKFCG, HKSI
Deputy Chief Executive & Chief
Investment Officer

Mr. Li, aged 61, joined the

Bank in 1987 as Chief Internal

Auditor. He was promoted to

Deputy Chief Executive & Chief

Investment Officer in April 2009.

Mr. Li is primarily responsible for
the Bank'’s investment activities and treasury & broking operations
including treasury markets. He is also a Director of various
members of the Bank Group and a Member of various committees
appointed by the Board.

Mr. Li is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute, The Chartered Governance Institute, and The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. In addition, he is an Associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
Member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr.
Samson Li received his Professional Diploma in Accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Mr. TONG Hon-shing

BSc, ACIB, FCG, HKFCG, Fellow CB
Deputy Chief Executive & Chief
Operating Officer

Mr. Tong, aged 62, joined the

Bank in 1975. He was promoted

to Assistant General Manager in

1995 and to General Manager in

2000. He was General Manager &

Head of Personal Banking Division
from 2001 to March 2009. He was further promoted to Deputy
Chief Executive and Chief Operating Officer in April 2009. Mr.
Tong is primarily responsible for operations support, compliance,
human resources, and corporate communications of the Bank.
He is also a Director of various members of the Bank Group and a
Member of various committees appointed by the Board. Mr. Tong
is a Fellow Certified Banker of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers,
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
The Chartered Governance Institute as well as an Associate of The
Chartered Institute of Bankers. He holds a BSc from the University
of Manchester.
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SPECIAL ADVISOR TO THE BOARD
Dr. Isidro FAINE CASAS

BOARD

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po
(Executive Chairman)

Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu
(Co-Chief Executive)

Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun
(Co-Chief Executive)

Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung
(Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing

Mr. Winston LO Yau-lai

Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze

Dr. Daryl NG Win-kong

Mr. Masayuki OKU

Dr. Francisco Javier SERRADO TREPAT

Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun
(Deputy Chairman)

Dr. the Hon. Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai
Mr. Meocre LI Kwok-wing

Dr. the Hon. Henry TANG Ying-yen
Dr. Delman LEE

Mr. William Junior Guilherme DOO
Dr. David MONG Tak-yeung
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Mr. Meocre LI Kwok-wing* (Chairman)

EEERTRES

FEREE* (FF)

Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun* BEfMEL*
Dr. the Hon. Henry TANG Ying-yen* BREEL
Dr. Delman LEE* TEAEL
Mr. William Junior Guilherme DOO* HRMEE

Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun* (Chairman)

BEFmEL* (FE)

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po ZHERT
Mr. Masayuki OKU RIEZERE
Dr. the Hon. Henry TANG Ying-yen* BRFHEL >
Dr. the Hon. Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai* SEREREL
Dr. Delman LEE* TEIARB L *

Dr. Francisco Javier SERRADO TREPAT

Francisco Javier SERRADO TREPAT {#+

Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung? TEHEHR

Dr. David MONG Tak-yeung** REBEL

Dr. the Hon. Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai* (Chairman) BHREREL* (£EF)
Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun* BEfMEL*

Dr. the Hon. Henry TANG Ying-yen* BREEL
Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung ZEEHRR

Dr. David MONG Tak-yeung* SEEEL

Dr. the Hon. Henry TANG Ying-yen* (Chairman) EBRE#EL* (FE)
Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun* BEfMREL

Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing TEEXE

Dr. Daryl NG Win-kong BB

Mr. Meocre LI Kwok-wing* TR KL

Dr. Delman LEE* TEIAB L *

Mr. William Junior Guilherme DOO* HREEE

Dr. Delman Lee* (Chairman) TREREL* (F/F)
Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu TREBXE

Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun ZRMEE

Mr. William Junior Guilherme DOO* HREEE

Dr. David MONG Tak-yeung* EEEEL

* Independent Non-executive Director
# Appointed as Member of NC on 1st April, 2021

* BUIFPITEF

E8ES

* 20216481 HEZTAREZLE



66 The Bank of East Asia, Limited | Annual Report 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
NEEH(E)

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po

GBM, GBS, OBE, JP, MA Cantab. (Economics & Law), Hon. LLD
(Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA
(Edinburgh Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD
(Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie),
Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB,
FBCS, CITP, Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer of

the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising

Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I’Ordre

National de la Légion d’Honneur

SENIOR ADVISOR

Mr. CHAN Tze-ching
BBS, JP

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu
MA (Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP

Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun
JP, MA (Cantab), MBA, FCA

Mr. Samson LI Kai-cheong
FCCA, CPA, FCG, HKFCG, HKSI

Mr. TONG Hon-shing
BSc, ACIB, FCG, HKFCG, Fellow CB

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Alson LAW Chun-tak
FCCA, FCPA, FCG, HKFCG

AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
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EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BITEERSEEEAR
1. Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po

FEHERL

2. Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu
ZRBLEE

3. Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun
ZRBEE

4. Mr. Samson LI Kai-cheong

FHEKE

5. Mr. TONG Hon-shing
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With about 150 outlets worldwide, BEA operates an extensive international network covering Hong Kong and the rest of
Greater China, Southeast Asia, the United Kingdom, and the United States.
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and considers such commitment essential
in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers, employees and other relevant stakeholders; and in upholding
accountability and transparency.

The Bank has in place a Corporate Governance framework which identifies all the key participants of the Group and
their roles in the application of effective governance policies and processes. A Corporate Governance Policy has also been
established to direct and guide the business conducts and affairs of the Group.

This report highlights key corporate governance practices and activities of the Group during the year ended 31st
December, 2021.

Governance Overview

Board Features

¢ Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are separate

e 7 out of 17 Directors are INEDs, representing an INED ratio of 41%
e Credible and influential INEDs

e Competent Board consisting of Directors with diverse expertise and experience

Board Practices and Activities at a Glance

e 7 Board and 12 Board Committee meetings in 2021

e 100% attendance rate of Board meetings

¢ Sound induction and continuous development training programmes with 72 training activities arranged for Directors
e Review of Strategic Plan and Risk Appetite

e Annual Review of Corporate Governance Framework

e Annual Review of Management Succession Plan

e Annual evaluation of Board performance

e Periodic review of Bank Culture Reform

e Review of the ESG Report

Corporate Governance Practices

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, the Bank has complied with all code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Bank has also followed the modules on CG-1, CG-5, Guidance on Empowerment of INEDs, and the circular on Bank
Culture Reform issued by the HKMA. In supporting prudent risk management and upholding high ethical standards
in the banking industry, the Bank has published, among others, the Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy Statement; the
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement; the Whistleblowing Statement; the Statement on Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Financing of Terrorism and the Human Rights Policy on the website of the Bank.

The Bank has established its own code of securities transactions to be observed by Directors and Chief Executive, i.e.
Policy on Insider Dealing — Directors and Chief Executive (“Bank’s Policy”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Appendix 10 — Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code")
of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry by the Bank, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the Bank's Policy at all the applicable time during the year ended 31st
December, 2021.

Moreover, the Bank has established a Policy on Insider Dealing — Group Personnel to be observed by the employees of the
Bank or directors or employees of the Bank’s subsidiaries, in respect of their dealings in the securities of the Bank.
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A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Structure and Delegation

The Bank is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Bank. The Bank
currently has 6 Board Committees with defined terms of reference of respective Committees. A summary of their key
responsibilities is shown below:

Board

e Collectively promoting the success of the Bank by directing and supervising the Bank’s affairs
e Providing strategic direction and overseeing effective implementation of pre-determined objectives by the Senior Management
¢ Delegating the day-to-day operation and administration of the Bank’s business to Co-Chief Executives and Deputy Chief Executives

Board Committees

Environmental,

Audit
Committee

Oversight and review
of financial reporting,
audit, internal control,
and corporate
governance functions
of the Bank.

More details from
pages 88 to 90.

Nomination
Committee

Oversight and review
of nomination,
appointment, removal
and succession planning
of Directors, Senior
Management and
Division Heads, Board
diversity and Evaluation
of Board.

More details from
pages 92 to 94.

Remuneration
Committee

Oversight and review
of remuneration policy,
remuneration packages
of Directors, Senior
Management and Key
Group Personnel, and
Bank Culture-related
matters.

More details from
pages 96 to 98.

Risk
Committee

Oversight and review
of risk management-
related issues of the
Group including

risk appetite, risk
management strategies,
risk governance,

risk management
framework, risk
management policies
and risk profiles.

More details from
page 98.

Management
Committees under
the oversight of Risk
Committee

o Crisis Management
Committee

o Risk Management
Committee

¢ Asset and Liability
Management
Committee

o Credit Committee

¢ Operational Risk
Management
Committee

Social, and Sealing
Governance Committee
Committee

Oversight and review
of the Group's
ESG-related issues,
ESG performance;
monitoring ESG
strategies, policies and
practices in compliance
with related regulatory
requirements.

Directing the usage
and custody of the

More details on
page 100.

Management
Committee under
the oversight of ESG
Committee

 £SG Steering
Committee

Bank’s common seal.

Management
Committees

Executive Committee

* Assisting and
supporting Co-Chief
Executives to manage
the businesses and
operations of the
Bank Group ata
strategic level.

Investment Committee

¢ Reviewing and
formulating
investment strategies
as well as making
investment decisions
in respect of fixed
income instruments,
equity and equity-
related investments
for the Group.
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Key Matters Reserved to the Board for Decision

The Bank has established a Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board for Decision (“Schedule”) to formalise the matters
reserved for the Board's approval and delegation of power to the Board, the Senior Management, General Managers,
and specialised committees. The Schedule will be reviewed periodically to ensure that it remains appropriate to the Bank's
needs and relevant regulatory requirements.

The key matters reserved for the Board’s consideration and decision include, but are not limited to:

Corporate Strategy: Financial:

e Strategic plan and objectives e Capital plans and management

e Setting corporate values and standards e Financial Reports and Business Plans

e Substantial investment or disposal of Group’s
assets

Corporate governance: Board / management membership:

e Matters in relation to corporate governance ¢ Appointments, removal and succession planning
functions of Directors, Chief Executives, Deputy Chief

¢ Risk management and internal controls Executives and Key Personnel of the Bank

® ESG-related issues
¢ Notifiable and/or Connected Transactions under
the Listing Rules

Board Composition
The Board currently has 17 Directors, including 3 EDs, 7 NEDs and 7 INEDs. 41% of the Directors are INEDs.

The majority of NEDs and INEDs ensure the independence and objectivity of the decisions of the Board, as well as the
thoroughness and impartiality of the Board’s oversight of the Bank’s affairs. They bring a wide range of professional
expertise as well as business and financial experience to the Board.

An updated list of Directors, identifying their roles and functions at the Bank, is available on the websites of HKEX and
the Bank. The compositions of the Board and Board Committees are shown on pages 64 and 65 under the Corporate
Information. The biographical details of Directors are shown from pages 44 to 61 under the Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management and also published on the Bank’s website.
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An analysis of the Board composition and skills matrix during the year is set out below:

Board composition

Independence Age Group Ethnicity
3 A 2
Male ? 7
2
7
4 15
Female Executive Directors 40-50 Chinese
Non-executive Directors 51-60 Non Chinese
Independent 61-70
Non-executive Directors Over 70
Tenure of office Directorship(s) in other listed companies
1-10 years 1 0-1 6
11-20 years 2 2-3 6
21-30 years 3 4-5 5
Over 40 years 1
Board Expertise and Skills
Financial, Accounting and Financial Reporting 14 82%
Risk Managment and Compliance 1 65%
Banking 10 59%
Investment Management 9 53%
Insurance 4 24%
Industry Expertise 9 53%
Senior Management Role 17 100%
Regulation and Public Policy 8 47%
China Experience 14 82%
Global Business 15 88%
Technology 7 41%
Sustainability / ESG 10 59%

Notes:

Financial, Accounting and Financial Reporting — Expertise and work experience in financial market, financial reporting and auditing

Risk Management and Compliance — Regulatory and Compliance expertise in managing and overseeing risk in public and private companies and
in other contexts.

Banking — Management experience in retail, corporate, and investment banking

Investment Management — Work experience in asset management and portfolio management

Insurance — Work experience in and understanding of the insurance industry

Industry Expertise — Expertise in various industries such as real estate, technology, consumer goods etc.

Senior Management Role — Current or past roles as top or senior executives

Regulation and Public Policy — Former government officials, or the undertaking of consultative roles for government

China Experience — Exposure to mainland China in the private or public sectors

Global business — Professional experience dealing with international business operations

Technology — Management or consulting experience in the technology industry

Sustainability / Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) — Expertise and/or experience in developing, promoting or ensuring the effective
delivery of an organisation’s sustainability / ESG strategies, policies and objectives
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Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executives

Separation of the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive enhances accountability and responsibility of each
position. The roles and responsibilities of the Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executives are clearly set out in their
respective job mandates.

Key Responsibilities

Dr. David Li Kwok-po (Executive Chairman)

e Provides leadership to the Board

e Manages relationships with stakeholders

e Ensures the Board's overall effectiveness

e Ensures all Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information to enable them to make informed decision
e Encourages all Directors to make full and active contribution to the Board’s affairs

e |eads the Board to act in the best interests of the Bank and its shareholders as a whole

Co-Chief Executives

Mr. Adrian David Li Man-kiu Mr. Brian David Li Man-bun

* Mainly focuses on the Bank Group’s Hong Kong o
business

Mainly focuses on the Bank Group’s China and
international businesses

* Lead day-to-day management of the Bank Group
* Set strategic direction and vision of the Group

* Review key risk issues, major branding and marketing campaigns, human resources situation and financial
performance of the Group

Board Process

The Bank is committed to providing timely and appropriate information to the Board of Directors in order to assist them
in making informed decisions and discharging their duties and responsibilities to the Group effectively.

Participation in Board /

Schedule of meetings Meeting agenda Dlspatch Cij Board Committee Minutes
meeting papers .
meetings
e Dates of regular Board e Approved by the ¢ Agenda and board e Directors make their ¢ Included sufficient

meetings and most of
the Board Committee
meetings are scheduled
in the prior year

Board Meetings are
held at least 5 times a
year and no less than
once in each quarterly
interval

Special Board meetings
are held when
necessary

At least 14 days’ notice
is served before each
regular meeting

Executive Chairman
following consultation
with Directors and the
Senior Management
to include matters

for discussion in the
agenda

papers are dispatched
to Directors at least 7
days prior to the date
of Board Meeting

* Meeting materials are
sent via electrionic
means / paper form
in a secure and timely
manner

best endeavor to
participate in meetings
either in person

or through other
electronic means of
communication (e.g.
teleconference or
webex)

Directors are
encouraged to submit
written views on items
to be discussed ahead
of the meeting in case
they are not able to
attend the meeting via
any means

Directors with different
views are welcomed to
voice their independent
views at the meetings

details of the matters
considered / discussed
and the decisions
reached by the Board or
the Board Committees

Included any concerns
raised and dissenting
views expressed by
Directors

Draft and final version
are circulated to
Directors for comment/
record in a timely
manner

Kept by the Company
Secretary and open for
inspection by Directors
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Meeting with INEDs

The Executive Chairman also meets with the INEDs to seek their views on issues relating to the Bank at
least once every year in the absence of the other EDs, NEDs and the Senior Management.

The Board meets with the HKMA regularly to maintain good communication. The HKMA will also meet
with the INEDs separately for exchange of views.

Meeting with Senior Executives of the Bank

The Board also meets regularly with senior executives of the Bank who are responsible for internal audit,
risk management and compliance functions of the Bank respectively to review policies and controls in
order to identify improvement areas and address significant risks and issues of the Group.

The Bank has also established written procedures to enable the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist them in making informed decisions and discharging their duties
to the Group, at the Bank's expense.

The Bank has arranged an appropriate Directors & Officers Liability and Company Reimbursement Insurance to indemnify
directors and officers of the Group against liabilities incurred by them arising from their discharge of duties and
responsibilities as the Group's directors or officers. The scope of the insurance is reviewed annually.
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Directors’ Attendance Records

In 2021, 7 Board meetings (including a meeting attended by the HKMA) were held with an attendance rate of 100%.

Attendance records of Directors at BMs, ACMs, NCM, RemCoM, RCMs, ESGCMs and the AGM held in 2021 are as follows:

Number of meetings attended/held in 2021
Directors BM ACM NCM RemCoM RCM ESGCM AGM

Executive Directors:
David LI Kwok-po

(Executive Chairman) 717 - 11 - - - il
Adrian David LI Man-kiu
(Co-Chief Executive) 717 - - - - 2/2 11
Brian David LI Man-bun
(Co-Chief Executive) 7/7 - - - - 2/2 IVAl

Non-executive Directors:
Arthur LI Kwok-cheung

(Deputy Chairman) 717 - iVAl il - - 1N
Aubrey LI Kwok-sing 7/7 - - - 4/4 - 171
Winston LO Yau-lai 7/7 - - - - - 1Al
Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze 7/7 - - - - - 171
Daryl NG Win-kong 77 - - - 4/4 - 171
Masayuki OKU 717 - I7Al - - - 11
Francisco Javier SERRADO TREPAT 717 - 11 - - - 171

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Allan WONG Chi-yun

(Deputy Chairman) 717 4/4 11 iVal 4/4 - VAl
Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai 717 - 1Al 11 - - 11
Meocre LI Kwok-wing 717 4/4 - - 4/4 - I7Al
Henry TANG Ying-yen* 77 4/4 171 0/1 4/4 - 1”7
Delman LEE 717 4/4 11 - 4/4 2/2 11
William Junior Guilherme DOO 7/7 4/4 - - 4/4 2/2 171
David MONG Tak-yeung 77 - 7 11 - 2/2 11
Average attendance rate 100% 100% 100% 80% 100% 100% 100%

* Dr. Henry Tang was unable to attend a RemCo meeting due to prior commitment. Nevertheless, Dr. Tang was provided with all meeting
materials and discussion on some important issues was arranged ahead of the said meeting.

Directors’ Time Commitment

The Board regularly reviews the contributions required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Bank,
and whether he/she is spending sufficient time performing their roles. Directors have disclosed to the Bank the number
and nature of offices held in Hong Kong or overseas listed public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments and an indication of time involved.

The Bank has given guidelines on Directors’ time commitment and received confirmation from each Director that he/she
has spent sufficient time, attention and efforts to the affairs of the Bank during the year ended 31st December, 2021.
None of the Directors held directorships in more than six public companies (including the Bank) during the year. The
Bank conducts an annual assessment of, inter alia, Directors’ time commitment to facilitate assessment of the on-going
suitability of each Director.
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Conflicts of Interest

The Bank has adopted the Directors’ Code of Conduct and Policy on Conflict of Interests (the “Policy”) that:

e provides guidance to Directors to help them recognise and deal with ethical issues including the handling of conflict
of interests and fair dealing, and help foster a culture of honesty and accountability in the best interests of the Group
as well as the shareholders of the Bank; and

e contains a compliance process which requires declaration by a Director in respect of any (existing or proposed)
contract, arrangement, transaction or other proposal in which the Director and/or his/her connected entity (as defined
in section 486 of the Companies Ordinance), is/are directly/indirectly materially interested. A Director shall not vote on
any resolution approving any contract, arrangement or transaction in which he/she and/or his/her connected entity
has any material interest.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter shall not be dealt with by way of circulation or by a Committee (except for an appropriate Board
Committee set up for that purpose pursuant to a resolution passed in a Board meeting) and a Board meeting shall be
held to deal with the specific matter.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

A newly appointed Director will receive an Information Package from the Company Secretary upon his/her appointment.
This Information Package, containing, inter alia, materials on the operations and businesses of the Bank, is a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a
Director. The Senior Management and the Company Secretary will subsequently conduct a briefing as necessary, to
ensure that the Director has a proper understanding of the operations and businesses of the Bank as well as his/her role
and responsibilities as a Director of the Bank. A reminder on on-going obligations to be observed by a Director of the
Bank is sent to each Director annually.

During the year, all Directors of the Bank participated in continuous professional development covering, among others,
areas of directors’ duties and responsibilities, operations and businesses of the Bank, corporate governance and changes
in regulatory requirements etc. to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All current Directors had provided to
the Bank a record of trainings they received in 2021.
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The following summarises key areas of trainings™°*® received by current Directors of the Bank during 2021:

e-learning on
Corporate requlatory
Governance Bank’s requirements Fintech/
and Risk Regulatory | businessand | arranged by Cyber
Directors Management |  Update | management | regulator | Bank Culture | AML/CFT Security
Executive Directors:
David LI Kwok-po v v v v v 4 v
(Executive Chairman)
Adrian David LI Man-kiu v v v v v v v
(Co-Chief Executive)
Brian David LI Man-bun v v v v v v v
(Co-Chief Executive)
Non-executive Directors:
Arthur LI Kwok-cheung v v v v v 4 v
(Deputy Chairman)
Aubrey LI Kwok-sing v v v v v 4 4
Winston LO Yau-lai v v v 4 4 v
Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze v v v v v v
Daryl NG Win-kong v v v v v 4
Masayuki OKU v 4 v 4 v v
Francisco Javier SERRADO TREPAT v v v v 4 4 4
Independent Non-executive Directors:
Allan WONG Chi-yun v v v v 4 v
(Deputy Chairman)
Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai v (4 v v 4 v
Meocre LI Kwok-wing 4 v v v 4 4 4
Henry TANG Ying-yen v v v v v 4 v
Delman LEE v v v 4 v v
William Junior Guilherme DOO v 4 v v 4 4 v
David MONG Tak-yeung v v v v v 4

Note: Attending seminars/webinars/conferences; giving speeches, reading articles; and/or reviewing information are considered as part of the

Directors’ training.
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated authority to specialised committees as follows to deal with specific matters under defined terms
of reference of respective Committees. The composition and terms of reference of these Committees are reviewed and
updated periodically to align with the regulatory requirements, the Group’s business and changes in governance practices.
All Board Committees adopt the same governance processes as the Board as far as practicable and report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations after each meeting.

Membership
Board
Environmental,
Audit Nomination Remuneration Risk Social, and Sealing
Committee Committee Committee Committee Governance Committee
Committee

Mr. Meocre Li* Dr. Allan Wong* Dr. Rita Fan* Dr. Henry Tang* Dr. Delman Lee* All current Directors
(Chairman) (Chairman) (Chairman) (Chairman) (Chairman)
Dr. Allan Wong* Dr. David Li Dr. Allan Wong* Dr. Allan Wong* Mr. Adrian Li
Dr. Henry Tang* Mr. Masayuki Oku Dr. Henry Tang* Mr. Meocre Li* Mr. Brian Li
Dr. Delman Lee* Dr. Rita Fan* Professor Arthur Li Mr. Aubrey Li Mr. William Doo Jr*
Mr. William Doo Jr* Dr. Henry Tang* Dr. David Mong* Dr. Daryl Ng Dr. David Mong*

Dr. Delman Lee* Dr. Delman Lee*

Dr. Javier Serrado Mr. William Doo Jr*

Professor Arthur Li
Dr. David Mong*

* Independent Non-executive Directors

A joint meeting of the Chairmen of the AC and RC shall be held on a need basis to facilitate the exchange of information
and effective coverage of all risks, including emerging risks, and any needed adjustments to the risk governance
arrangements of the Bank.

A joint meeting of the Chairmen of the AC, RemCo and RC shall be held on a need basis to discuss the alignment of risk
and remuneration, and bank culture reform of the Bank.

B1. Audit Committee

The Bank has established an AC with specific written Terms of Reference (available on the websites of HKEX and the
Bank) which deal clearly with its authorities and duties included in CG Code.

The AC is responsible for reviewing corporate governance functions, financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems, annual report and accounts, and half-year interim report.

The Board has delegated its corporate governance functions as set out in Code Provision A.2.1% of the CG Code to
the AC.

The AC comprises 5 members and all of them are INEDs. Their names and biographies are set out in the Corporate
Information and Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management of the Annual Report 2021. No former partners
of the Bank’s external auditors are acting as a member of the AC before expiry of a period of two years commencing on
the date of his/her ceasing to be a partner of the firm or to have any financial interest in the firm whichever is later.

Note: Changed to Code Provision D.3.1 with effect from 1st January, 2022
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AC meetings are held at least 4 times a year. The Executive Chairman, Co-Chief Executives, Deputy Chief Executives,
other senior executives, and the external auditors are invited to attend these meetings. During the year, the external
auditors held meetings with the AC members, without the presence of the Executive Chairman, Co-Chief Executives,
Deputy Chief Executives and the other senior executives.

The number of meetings held by the AC and attendance of individual members at ACM in 2021 is recorded on page 82.

The following is a summary of the major work performed by the AC for the year 2021 and up to 24th
February, 2022:

e Reviewed and endorsed the policies and practices under the Bank’'s CG Framework, including the Corporate
Governance Policy and made recommendations to the Board, where appropriate;

e Reviewed the training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior Management;

e Reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e Reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

e Reviewed the status of compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;
e Met with the external auditors to discuss their audit work on the Group;

e Reviewed external auditors’ annual audit plan, management letter and management’s response;

e Reviewed and approved the appointment of external auditors for providing non-audit services to the Group;

e Reviewed the Auditors’ Independent Assurance Reports in respect of the Bank’s financial disclosures under
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules and Part 6 of the Financial Institutions (Resolution) (Loss-absorbing Capacity
Requirements — Banking Sector) Rules for 2020, the six months ended 30th June, 2021 and for 2021,

e Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of the audit fee proposal for the Group for 2021;
e Recommended to the Board to re-appoint KPMG as the Group’s external auditor for 2021 and 2022;

e Reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation of risk management and internal control systems of
various operations of the Group;

e Reviewed the adequacies of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of the Bank’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget; effectiveness of the
Group's internal audit function;

e Reviewed the Auditor’s Report regarding the internal control systems for 2020 prepared under section 63(3A) of
the Banking Ordinance;

e Reviewed the on-site examination reports of the HKMA issued in 2021;
e Reviewed the Interim Report and the interim results announcement for the six months ended 30th June, 2021;
e Reviewed the audited financial statements and final results announcement for 2021; and

e Reviewed and approved Group internal audit plan for 2022.

The Board agreed with the AC’s proposal for the re-appointment of KPMG as the Group’s external auditor for 2022. The
recommendation will be presented for the approval of shareholders at the 2022 AGM.

The Bank has established the Policy on Appointment of External Auditor for Provision of Non-Audit Services, setting out
the principles by which an external auditor may be appointed to provide non-audit services, with a view to ensuring the
independence of the external auditor.
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B2. Nomination Committee

The Bank has established an NC with specific written Terms of Reference (available on the websites of HKEX and the
Bank) which deal clearly with its authorities and duties, including the specific duties set out in the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications where necessary.

The NC is responsible for recommending to the Board on relevant matters relating to:

e appointments, re-appointment, removal and succession planning of Directors, Chief Executive / Co-Chief Executives,
Deputy Chief Executives, Group Chief Compliance Officer, Group Chief Auditor, Group Chief Financial Officer, Group
Chief Risk Officer, and Division Heads;

e defining succession planning and diversity of the Board; and
e performing evaluation of the Board performance and Directors’ contribution to the effectiveness of the Board.

The NC comprises 9 members and 5 of them (including the Chairman) are INEDs. Their names and biographies are set out
in the Corporate Information and Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management of the Annual Report 2021.

The number of meetings held by the NC and the attendance of individual members at NCM in 2021 is recorded on page 82.

The following is a summary of the major work performed by the NC for the year 2021 and up to 24th
February, 2022:

e Reviewed the size, structure, composition and diversity of the Board and composition of Board Committees;
e Reviewed the Procedures for Nomination of Directors;

e Reviewed the Terms of Reference of the NC;

e Reviewed the Management Succession Policy;

e Reviewed the Management Succession Plans;

e Reviewed the Board Succession and Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) including measurable objectives for
implementing the Policy;

e Reviewed and assessed the evaluation of the Board performance and Directors’ contribution to the effectiveness
of the Board;

e Assessed the independence status of current INEDs, in particular that of Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun who has served
the Board for more than 9 years; and

e Considered and recommended to the Board for re-election of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, Dr. Allan WONG
Chi-yun, Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing, Mr. Winston LO Yau-lai, Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, Dr. Daryl NG Win-
kong, Mr. Masayuki OKU and Dr. the Hon. Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai as Directors of the Bank to be proposed for
shareholders’ approval at the 2022 AGM.

Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Succession and Diversity Policy which defines succession planning and diversity of the
Board. Board appointments are based on merit and candidates are considered against objective criteria, having due regard
to the benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to independence, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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Appointments and Re-election of Directors

The Bank uses a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and has adopted
Procedures for Nomination of Director (by the Board of Directors and by Shareholders respectively), which set out the
procedures for the NC to evaluate a proposed candidate to be nominated to the Board for appointment as a Director of
the Bank (as summarised below) or to the shareholders of the Bank for election as a Director of the Bank. The Procedures
for Nomination of Director by Shareholders is available on the website of the Bank.

For considering the suitability of the proposed candidate for appointment as Director of the Bank, the NC shall perform
a "fit and proper” assessment taking into account, inter alia, the proposed candidate’s accomplishment and experience
in the banking and/or commercial sector, reputation for integrity, professional and education background, time
commitment, and other relevant factors with regard to the Diversity Policy as determined by the Board from time to time,
pursuant to the requirements of relevant rules and regulations.

A candidate who is to be appointed as an INED should also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the requirements of the Guidance on Empowerment of INEDs. Upon recommendation from the NC, the
proposed appointment will be reviewed and, if thought fit, approved by the Board. According to the requirement of the
Banking Ordinance, prior approval from the HKMA will also be obtained for appointment of Directors.

A formal letter of appointment, setting out the terms and conditions of the appointment, and including the Director’s
scope of duties and obligations, is provided to every new Director of the Bank and will be updated whenever there are
changes to the Director’s role and responsibilities.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors (including NEDs and INEDs) are appointed for a term of not more than
approximately 3 years and on expiration of his/her term he/she shall be deemed a retiring Director and eligible for re-
election. All new Directors appointed by the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders of the Bank at the next
following general meeting after their appointments have become effective.

The NC conducts annual review of the independence of INEDs before confirming their independence status to the Board.

NC to review
curriculum

Recommendation
from the Chairman
of the Board or
other Directors

vitae and assess
independence (if
applicable) of the
proposed candidate
for “fit and proper”
assessment and
compliance with
relevant regulatory
requirements as set
out in the Listing
Rules and CG-1
for the Board’s
consideration and
approval

Approval by
the Board of
Directors after
considering the
recommendation of
NC

Obtain HKMA's
approval for
the proposed
appointment

pursuant to the

Banking Ordinance

The Bank will issue
an announcement
for the appointment
of the proposed
Director which
will be subject
to re-election by
Shareholders at
the next following
general meeting
after his/her
appointment

Evaluation of the Board and Directors

During the year, the Bank conducted an evaluation of the Board effectiveness as a whole and contributions made by each
Director to the Board effectiveness in the form of a questionnaire to all Directors individually.

The evaluation covered a diverse range of topics including Board and Board Committee structure and composition;
Board process and effectiveness; responsibilities of the Board; and duties and responsibilities of Directors. The evaluation
report revealed that Board process is effective during the year 2021. All Directors continue to perform effectively and
demonstrate commitment to their roles. The Board Committees were highly regarded in the feedback and viewed as
effective in fulfilling their duties. The result of the evaluation had been reviewed by the NC and submitted to the Board.

The Bank will continue to undertake an evaluation of the performance of the Board and the Directors annually.
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B3. Remuneration Committee

The Bank has established a RemCo with specific written Terms of Reference (available on the websites of HKEX and
the Bank) which deal clearly with its authority and duties, including the specific duties set out in the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications where necessary.

The RemCo is responsible for making recommendations to the Board regarding the Bank’s Remuneration Policy, and for
the formulation and review of the remuneration packages of the Directors, Executive Chairman, Co-Chief Executives,
Deputy Chief Executives, General Managers and Key Personnel of the Group.

In determining the Remuneration Policy, the RemCo will take into account the Bank’s business objective, people strategy,
short-term and long-term performance, business and economic conditions, market practices, conduct, compliance and
risk control, to ensure that the remuneration aligns with business and individual performance, promotes effective risk
management, facilitates retention of quality personnel and is competitive in the market.

The emoluments payable by the Bank to its Directors and senior executives are determined taking into account their
roles and responsibilities so as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package. The Bank will also ensure
that no Director, Executive Chairman, Co-Chief Executive or any of their associates will be involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration.

The RemCo comprises 5 members and 4 of them (including the Chairman) are INEDs. Their names and biographies are set
out in the Corporate Information and Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management of the Annual Report 2021.

The number of RemCo meetings held in 2021 and the attendance records of individual members at RemCoM are shown
on page 82.

The following is a summary of major work performed by the RemCo during and for the year 2021:

e Reviewed the 2020 Variable Remuneration for members of Senior Management and Key Personnel;
e Reviewed the vesting of Deferred Variable Remuneration for the Awards of the Year 2017 to 2019;
e Considered the Fifth Offer and Grant of Options under the Staff Share Options Scheme 2016;

e Reviewed the list of Individual Material Risk Takers for 2021 and considered the Salary Review for Senior
Management and Key Personnel for 2021;

e Considered the General Staff Annual Salary Review 2021;

e Reviewed the 2021 Annual Salary Review for Staff of Mainland China, Overseas Branches and Subsidiaries;
e Reviewed the Usage of Salary Increment Budget for 2020;

e Reviewed the Total Variable Pay Pool for 2020;

e Reviewed the Audit Result on the Bank’s Remuneration System for 2020;

e Reviewed BEA’s Performance Scorecard for 2021;

* Reviewed the Performance & Behavioural Goals Worksheets of the Executive Chairman, Co-Chief Executives and
Deputy Chief Executives for 2021;

e Reviewed the Terms of Reference of the RemCo;
e Reviewed the Remuneration Policy; and

e Reviewed the progress of Bank Culture Reform.
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The Bank provided the oversight of the Bank Culture Work Group (“BCWG") with the RemCo to advise and assist the
Board in discharging its responsibilities for the Bank’s culture-related matters. The Bank reported to RemCo the Culture
Dashboard which was revamped (effective from 2021 onwards) to include 13 Bank Culture Indicators covering tone
from the top communications, trainings to senior executives, recognition of exemplary behaviour, employee feedback,
customer feedback, misconducts, grievances, whistleblowing cases, customer compliments, substantiated customer
complaints, regulatory breaches, market risk limit breach, and internal audit findings rectification. Monitoring of human
rights breaches has been incorporated into the Bank Culture Dashboard from the third quarter of 2021 onwards to allow
BCWG to scrutinise the related areas across the Bank.

B4. Risk Committee

The Bank has established an RC with specific written Terms of Reference (available on the website of the Bank) which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The RC is responsible for dealing with the Bank’s risk management-related
issues, in particular strategic issues, of the Group.

The RC is assisted by Management Committees namely the Risk Management Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and
Liability Management Committee and Operational Risk Management Committee, to deal with daily management of risk-
related issues; and by the Crisis Management Committee to deal with crisis management.

The RC comprises 7 members and 5 of them (including the Chairman) are INEDs. Their names and biographies are set out
in the Corporate Information and Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management of the Annual Report 2021.

RCMs are held on a quarterly basis, or as required. During the meetings, RC reviews the risk management-related issues
of the Group including risk appetite, risk management strategies, risk governance, risk management framework, risk
management policies and risk profiles. Significant risk management-related issues are reported to the Board via RC.

The number of RC meetings held in 2021 and the attendance records of individual members at RCM are shown on page 82.

The following is a summary of the major work performed by the RC during and for the year 2021:

e Reviewed the Group's Risk Appetite Statement and its revamped mechanism;

e Reviewed the Group’s risk management strategies;

e Reviewed and monitored the Group’s risk profiles, including the emerging risks faced by the Group;

e Reviewed the Group’s enterprise risk management framework;

e Reviewed the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process and the continuing enhancements of the framework;
e Reviewed the stress-testing results for major risks;

e Reviewed the Group Recovery Plan;

e Reviewed regulatory updates on risk management related issues and considered their probable material
implications to the Group;

e Reviewed critical regulatory comments on the Group's risk management-related issues;

e Reviewed the Terms of Reference of the RC, Crisis Management Committee, Risk Management Committee,
Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee and Operational Risk Management Committee;
and

e Reviewed the Group’s risk management policies, oversaw their implementation and compliance with respective
statutory rules and regulations.
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B5. Environmental, Social, and Governance Committee

The Bank has established an ESG Committee with specific written Terms of Reference (available on the website of the
Bank), which deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The ESG Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
ESG performance. It is assisted by a Management Committee, namely the ESG Steering Committee.

The ESG Committee currently comprises 5 members and 3 of them (including the Chairman) are INEDS. Their names and
biographies are set out in the Corporate Information and Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management of the
Annual Report 2021.

The number of ESGC meetings held in 2021 and the attendance record of individual members at ESGC meetings in 2021
are shown on page 82.

The following is a summary of the major work performed by the ESG Committee during and for the year 2021:

e Reviewed BEA's 2020 ESG Report;

e Approved the Bank’s 2021 ESG goals;

e Approved BEA's ESG strategy framework, including the enhanced vision statement, pillars, and ESG topics;
e Reviewed the Terms of Reference of the ESG Committee and ESG Steering Committee; and

e Reviewed the Group’s Sustainability Policy, Human Rights Policy, Environmental Policy, Slavery and Human
Trafficking Statement, and the Group Responsible Investment Policy.

B6. Sealing Committee

Sealing Committee comprises all Directors of the Bank as appointed from time to time. It is responsible for directing the
usage and custody of the Bank’s common seal.

Management Committees

Management Committees are established to deal with matters as sufficiently prescribed in respective terms of reference,
each of which has specific roles and responsibilities delegated by the Board or Board Committees:

Executive Committee
o assists and supports Co-Chief Executives to manage the businesses and operations of the Bank Group at a strategic level
Risk Management Committee

e assists the RC in the daily management of issues related to all major risks faced by the Group including risk
appetites, risk profiles, regulatory updates and stress-testing

Credit Committee

e deals with all credit risk-related issues of the Group

Operational Risk Management Committee

* deals with issues related to operational, legal, reputation, compliance and technology risks of the Group
Asset and Liability Management Committee

» deals with all issues related to market, interest rate and liquidity risks of the Group

Crisis Management Committee

* deals with the Group’s management of crisis scenarios which jeopardise or have the potential to jeopardise the
Group in its reputation, liquidity/financial position and business continuity

Investment Committee

* reviews and formulates investment strategies as well as making investment decisions in respect of fixed income
instruments, equity and equity related investments for the Bank, and The Bank of East Asia, Limited Employees’
Provident Fund

ESG Steering Committee
* sets direction for BEA's ESG strategy and drive the ESG performance of the Bank Group

Material matters will be reported to the Board/Board Committees by the Management Committees according to their
respective Terms of Reference.
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C. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

The scales of Director’s fees, and fees for membership of the AC, NC, RemCo, RC and ESGC are outlined below:

Amount per annum
2021

Board of Directors:

Chairman HK$550,000

Deputy Chairman HK$425,000

Other Directors HK$400,000
Audit Committee:

Chairman HK$250,000

Other members HK$140,000
Nomination Committee:

Chairman HK$90,000

Other members HK$60,000
Remuneration Committee:

Chairman HK$90,000

Other members HK$60,000
Risk Committee:

Chairman HK$250,000

Other members HK$140,000
Environmental, Social, and Governance Committee:

Chairman HK$90,000

Other members HK$60,000

Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for 2021 is set out in Note 21 to the accounts on page 227.

Disclosure of Remuneration Policy

In accordance with the latest “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” (the “Guideline”) issued by the HKMA in
July 2021, the Bank has reviewed and revised its Remuneration Policy for employees of the Group, including its overseas
branches and subsidiaries. The Remuneration Policy covers all categories of employees, including the 4 described in
paragraph 2.1.1 of the Guideline. The RemCo, Group Chief Risk Officer and Group Chief Compliance Officer annually
reviews the Bank’s Remuneration Policy, including a reassessment of the principles applied in determining remuneration
packages, as well as the structure and amount of compensation ultimately awarded.

The Remuneration Policy was reviewed and endorsed by RemCo in 2021. The major changes were to further align with
the latest requirements as stipulated in the Guideline, refine the roles and responsibilities of the risk control functions in
the design and implementation of the Bank’s remuneration policy, and further elaborate the approval requirement on
variable remuneration plans.

General Principles

The Remuneration Policy of the Group promotes effective risk management, and is designed to encourage employee
behaviour that supports the Group’s business objectives, long-term financial soundness, risk tolerance, risk management
framework and corporate values.

Remuneration Structure

Employee remuneration packages may consist of a combination of fixed and variable remuneration. The appropriate
proportion of fixed and variable remuneration shall vary according to an employee’s seniority, role, responsibilities, and
activities within the Group, among other things.
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Fixed remuneration refers to an employee’s annual salary (including year-end pay), while variable remuneration —
comprising cash bonus payments and/or share options — is awarded based on the employee’s performance with a view
to better aligning incentives with risk and longer-term value creation. Variable remuneration, which is awarded in the
form of cash bonus payments and/or share options, is determined taking into account an employee’s seniority, role and
responsibilities, and the actual or potential risks that the employee’s activities may create for the Group and the extent to
which they may affect its overall performance. In general, share options will be granted to staff at General Manager grade
or above only.

Separate bonus schemes apply to risk control personnel, whose awards are not linked to the performances of the business
units that they oversee.

Employees’ Performance Measurements and the Award of Variable Remuneration

The RemCo determines the measures and the corresponding target levels of the Group’s performance with reference to
corporate goals and objectives at the beginning of each financial year and when necessary.

The performance of business units will be assessed by a combination of financial and non-financial factors which are
determined by senior management with reference to the relevant corporate goals and the functional responsibilities of
the business units.

The award of variable remuneration is determined by taking into account a combination of corporate and/or business
results as well as the assessment of individual employee’s performance against the pre-set financial/quantitative measures
and non-financial/qualitative measures for the year which include adherence to risk management policies, compliance
with legal, regulatory and ethical standards, results of internal audit reviews as well as adherence to corporate values.

To ensure that there is balance between financial factors and non-financial factors in the assessment of performance of
both business units and individual employees, the overall weighting on financial factors is limited to avoid over reliance
on financial measures and to align with HKMA's expectation on Bank Culture Reform. Performance is therefore judged,
not only on what is achieved over the short and long-term, but also on how it is achieved. Performance in relation
to non-financial factors, including risk, compliance and adherence to corporate values, forms a significant part of the
overall employee performance measurement and promotes proper employee conduct and behaviour, given that poor
performance in these areas can be indicative of significant risks to the Group. Adverse performance in non-financial/
qualitative factors will override outstanding financial/quantitative achievements and be reflected by a reduction to, or
elimination of, any variable remuneration.

To help ensure a balanced evaluation, a series of compliance and risk management factors are also taken into account.
The major types of risks covered are market, credit, interest rate, liquidity and operational risks. Other risks including legal,
reputation, technology, strategic and compliance are closely monitored at Bank level by various Management Committees
and adjustment will be made to an individual’s variable remuneration when appropriate.

To embed a values-led, high performance culture, the variable remuneration plans are designed to recognise and reward
positive behaviours. Meanwhile, the Bank Group carries out regular review to assess instances of non-compliance with
risk control procedures and/or regulatory requirements. Instances of non-compliance are escalated for consideration in
remuneration decision, including adjustment of variable remuneration within the year, malus of the unvested awards
granted in prior year(s) and clawback of vested awards.

In 2021, in accordance with the Accountability Framework Implementation Guidelines of the Bank, regular accountability
review meetings were held by Senior Management, Group Chief Risk Officer, Group Chief Compliance Officer, Group
Chief Auditor, Head of Human Resources & Corporate Communications, and Head of Legal, Secretarial & Tax Divisions
to ensure that risk and compliance performance of department were taken into due consideration in the determination
of variable remuneration funding and individual performance and reward so as to foster proper risk culture and business
conduct. To enhance openness and transparency, if a formal accountability review of a significant incident is required,
the Accountability Work Group will determine whether any staff member should be held accountable individually or
collectively, or any department should be subject to risk and compliance modification on variable remuneration funding
for the incident.



REMITHRDT | 2021 FH 105

ERERHRSE (F)

BEEFHBERENFS (BREER)  MIDFM (BSRSEAN/XABE) AIREEEN TIEREMHE
B EEFTESERINE sLEC SRR AR R HANEELE  FBFM (BROTFABRER SIS/ HRRE) 1
BEER TRREEIEENBA - B - BEMOMMETOEBYARE R EHRNELSELERR © A
RZERBRHAEEEERANTERE - —RME  RRERSRTHELERIALHNES -

AREBETRABILE DS TRBRIETNAL - MBMHRS W IFREFEENRGEFIRA R -

B &R ET B NZ B 5 B AV 3 X

FHEZEeNSEMBREERRERLVER  2ZARNENMEZUNEEAEBRENE BIEEIAREEZ
K o

PREEESFHREARNEREFELEFIHFINEIZBEREMET —EFZEBHII TERRNEL - &
L ERIBREU S MIEM R E

FRHFMERAEREREN/AEHEMZRE - UEREE FOERM G/ BER NI %/ G 5554 &5
BENEMFHEMETE - ETERETRRERBR - AR OERMERTE  NMEZRENERIANE
SIEFREER -

AT REREFEFIMERE B AR - Se RS MIER S E R 2 S T8 - #IR SIS E R r A LA
MPBRERBEVMHRE  URERTESERYRITEEERENER - At - MERIEREHMEHIGHK
B B BRIFENAEG R ARHAER - RIFMBRAR (BERR - RNRETEXEER) HENKRERD
BAE - ARBRIYAREGRERNER - AHZEARGIERTZEEERRRNEEEERNE - UMeEEER
EIERETT 85T - B @ M/ BERRTERRREBZEREN B/ BERE KT mOELRE - LFEHM
SEMTHAESRH -

AEEFERF D RRFZERNREN TIERRR - ER2—FRIAAKAREERZNERER - UERESH
TERBAEFHEE - TBARNARRENS  E8  FX  RBESLZERR - EtRAREHEER &
2 M KBEUERAGRRRABTENEREE TZE8SERTER MEFHERER - YXNEERFEELE
BHFEEFM

BTRENBESANZSEBL - FBFHMTEEEFFI MR EETS - BERKAKREESTHETR
A ARHERRRIEBIRRF K/ REE BRMERBR - HENERBENSE LEAXTEFNORTE  BRBHEE
FHOFBHH - ABLEBIRE 2D CHB/ T HFRE 2 EEHH -

AEBRBEREERERES 202152 RXBTEEERALR SERRAE  SEAREE  SEEEZ -
ANEREEEEARTE &R RANEMRBREIECMETESE  UREREN S FBFMEEMEA
BN R - REEEFI 2 ARAMARNRIR - MR EROEREMBRTR - RERAFMERE
RETFVEFBHEAFHATIANERSE UETRERAFTEERLEMAKBAZEMHE - UMAE
MEFIEEZEGMEILABRREARTECEE - MY PN ESARELRZE -



106 The Bank of East Asia, Limited | Annual Report 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Senior Executive Compensation

The RemCo annually reviews the remuneration packages of the Senior Management (including the Executive Chairman,
Co-Chief Executives and Deputy Chief Executives of the Bank), and Key Personnel (including 19 General Managers,
the Head of Capital Markets & Liquidity Management Department and the Head of Fixed Income Capital Markets
Department). In determining the remuneration packages of the Senior Management and Key Personnel, the RemCo takes
into account individual performances, performances of respective divisions and departments, and the Group's overall
business goals and objectives. The Bank is undergoing vendor selection to engage an external consultant to review and
refine the remuneration package of senior management and key personnel to ensure its competitiveness and alignment
with regulatory requirements.

The aggregate payouts for these senior executives for 2021 are shown in the table below in accordance with the
disclosure requirement 3.3 of the Guideline.

Total value of remuneration in 2021

2021 2020 (Restated)
Total value of remuneration awards for Non-deferred Deferred Non-deferred Deferred
the current financial year (HK$) (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(i) Senior Management
Number of employees 5 5
Fixed remuneration
e Cash-based 35,955,010 0 35,797,870 0
Variable remuneration
e Cash-based 20,253,200 7,431,800 12,885,001 4,734,111
e Share Options 0 19,721,140 0 12,564,685
(ii) Key Personnel
Number of employees 23 25
Fixed remuneration
e Cash-based 64,654,864 0 59,910,412 0
Variable remuneration
e Cash-based 26,659,992 13,104,008 23,558,095 8,423,405
¢ Share Options 0 4,919,313 0 7,448,663
Total Remuneration 147,523,066 45,176,261 132,151,378 33,170,864

Remarks:

(i) For indication purpose only, the value of share options is calculated based on the fair value of the Bank’s shares on 31st January, 2022 for
2021 and 18th January, 2021 for 2020 respectively.

(i) The remuneration of Key Personnel for 2021 included the remuneration of three Key Personnel who retired from/left the Group on 1st March,
2021, 1st October, 2021 and 1st January, 2022 and two Key Personnel who joined the Group on 12th April, 2021 and 27th September, 2021
respectively. The remuneration of Key Personnel for 2020 included the remuneration of four Key Personnel who retired from/left the Group on
1st March, 2020, 14th March, 2020, 1st April, 2020 and 1st September 2020 and six Key Personnel who joined the Group on 2nd January,
2020, 2nd March, 2020, 14th April, 2020, 23rd June, 2020, 16th September, 2020 and 2nd November, 2020 respectively.

(iii) The 2020 award of share options was not granted to one Key Personnel as the employee left the Group on 1st March, 2021. As such, the
2020 deferred and non-deferred portion of variable remuneration for the related employee were restated.

(iv) The aggregate amount of HK$4,230,092 and HK$3,856,888 sign-on payment was made to four and three Key Personnel of the Group for
2021 and 2020 respectively while no guaranteed bonuses or severance payments was made.
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Total outstanding deferred remuneration in 2021

Vested portion

Unvested portion

Performance
adjustments to
Vested portion

Performance
adjustments to
Unvested portion

Outstanding deferred during the year 2021 | as at the end of 2021 | during the year 2021 | as at the end of 2021
remuneration (HK$) (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(i) Senior Management
e Cash-based 11,798,499 13,438,994 0 0
¢ Share Options 12,382,600 22,542,758 3,256,283 874,697
(ii) Key Personnel
e Cash-based 10,119,643 17,373,898 0 0
e Share Options 6,308,678 15,269,667 608,674 198,494

Remarks:

(i) The values of share options are calculated based on the fair value on the respective Grant Dates.

(i) The vested cash bonuses and share options relate to the 2017 variable remuneration award granted in 2018 and vested in 2021, the 2018
variable remuneration award granted in 2019 and vested in 2021 and the 2019 variable remuneration award granted in 2020 and vested
in 2021. The total number of share options granted in 2018, 2019 and 2020 are 6,687,500 shares, 5,850,000 shares and 5,381,829 shares
respectively.

(iii) The unvested cash bonuses and share options relate to the 2018, 2019 and 2020 variable remunerations.

(iv) The outstanding deferred remuneration of Key Personnel in 2021 included the vested and unvested cash bonuses and share options of seven
Key Personnel who retired from/left the Group on 1st May, 2018, 1st August, 2019, 1st September, 2019, 1st April, 2020, 1st September,
2020, 1st March, 2021 and 1st October, 2021 respectively.

(v) These performance adjustments reduced the outstanding balance of deferred remuneration.

Total outstanding deferred remuneration in 2020

Performance Performance
adjustments to adjustments to
Vested portion Unvested portion Vested portion Unvested portion

Outstanding deferred during the year 2020 | as at the end of 2020 | during the year 2020 | as at the end of 2020
remuneration (HK$) (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(i) Senior Management

¢ Cash-based 10,541,087 20,503,382 0 0

e Share Options 13,710,184 22,360,673 5,288,839 4,130,980
(ii) Key Personnel

e Cash-based 8,198,523 20,829,166 0 0

e Share Options 6,921,580 11,060,182 1,078,394 807,168

Remarks:
(i) The values of share options are calculated based on the fair value on the respective Grant Dates.

(ii) The vested cash bonuses and share options relate to the 2016 variable remuneration award granted in 2017 and vested in 2020, the 2017
variable remuneration award granted in 2018 and vested in 2020 and the 2018 variable remuneration award granted in 2019 and vested
in 2020. The total number of share options granted in 2017, 2018 and 2019 are 6,400,000 shares, 6,687,500 shares and 5,850,000 shares
respectively.

(iif) The unvested cash bonuses and share options relate to the 2017, 2018 and 2019 variable remunerations.

(iv) The outstanding deferred remuneration of Key Personnel in 2020 included the vested and unvested cash bonuses and share options of five
Key Personnel who retired from/left the Group on 1st May, 2018, 1st August, 2019, 1st September, 2019, 1st April, 2020 and 1st September,
2020 respectively.

(v) These performance adjustments reduced the outstanding balance of deferred remuneration.

Other relevant remuneration disclosures are set out in Notes 21, 22 and 50 to the accounts on pages 227, 229 and 350.

The Bank has fully complied with HKMA's disclosure requirements set out in Part 3 of the Guideline.
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Deferral Arrangements

The award of variable remuneration to the Senior Management and Key Personnel is subject to deferment in such a
manner as determined by the RemCo. In general, the proportion of variable remuneration which is subject to deferment
will increase progressively in line with the seniority, scope of responsibilities, and other relevant factors pertinent to the
Senior Management and Key Personnel.

For employees other than Senior Management and Key Personnel, the Bank adopts a materiality-based deferral
arrangement of variable remuneration, where the total amount of variable remuneration, including cash bonus and any
kind of incentive, will be subject to deferment when certain thresholds of total variable remunerations determined by the
Board of Directors are met. The portion of variable remuneration to be deferred will increase by reference to the total
amount of variable remuneration.

The award of deferred remuneration is subject to a minimum vesting period and pre-defined vesting conditions as
determined by the RemCo and communicated to all relevant employees. Deferred remuneration is awarded in such a
manner so as to align employees’ incentive awards with long-term value creation and the time horizons of risk. The future
performance (both financial and non-financial) of the Group, relevant business units, and individual employees, as well as
the creation of value for our shareholders, are taken into consideration when determining vesting conditions. Vesting and
payment of deferred remuneration will be made gradually over a period of 3 years and no faster than on a pro-rata basis.

In circumstances where it is later established that decisions or actions made by an employee and/or business unit in a
particular year had a severe negative impact on the Bank Group’s overall profitability, any unvested portions (i.e. both
cash bonus and/or share option tranche(s) which have yet to be vested) of deferred variable remuneration (relating to that
particular year) should be forgone, either in part or in whole, as determined by the RemCo.

In circumstances where it is later established that any performance measurement for a particular year was based on data
that is later proven to have been manifestly misstated, or it is later established that the relevant employee has committed
fraud, malfeasance, or a violation of internal control policies, any unvested portions (i.e. both cash bonuses and/or share
option tranches that have yet to be vested) of deferred variable remuneration (relating to that particular year in question)
should be forgone, either in part or in whole, as determined by the RemCo. In certain circumstances, clawback of vested
portion of the deferred variable remuneration of that particular year may apply.

Future Review

As a major financial institution in Hong Kong, the Group not only takes extensive measures to ensure that it complies
with all the relevant guidelines, rules, and regulations, but also adopts positive steps to ensure that ethical, social, and
environmental aspects are taken into account when determining remuneration policies and packages.

The Group will keep abreast of the latest development in the labour market, especially in the financial services sector,
and will review and refine its compensation and remuneration policies whenever necessary to enable the provision of
competitive remuneration packages to ensure the retention of talent.
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D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Bank’s performance,
position and prospects.

Management comprising Co-Chief Executives, Deputy Chief Executives and General Managers shall provide sufficient
explanation and information to the Board as will enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information presented before the Board for approval. It provides the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Bank’s performance, position and prospects to assist the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring maintenance of proper accounting records and preparing accounts of each
financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for
that period. In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31st December, 2021, the Directors have:

e consistently applied appropriate accounting policies;
e made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and
e prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

The Bank has announced its annual and interim results within 2 months after the end of the relevant periods, which is
earlier than the limit of 3 months (for annual results) and within the limit of 2 months (for interim results) as required by
the Listing Rules.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report from
pages 154 to 168.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well
as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Directors acknowledged that they are responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. All employees are responsible for identifying and managing risk within the scope
of their roles as part of the three lines of defence model. The second line of defence sets the policy and guidelines
for managing specific risk areas, provides advice and guidance in relation to the risk, and challenges the first line of
defence, the Risk Owners, on effectiveness of risk management. The third line of defence provides an independent
assurance on effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit Division
and Risk Management Division assume the responsibilities of internal audit and risk management functions of the Bank,
respectively. During the financial year ended 31st December, 2021, the Board reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Bank’s strategic objectives and ensuring that the Bank establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board is also responsible for overseeing the Senior
Management and the other senior executives in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Bank are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Such systems comprise comprehensive policies and standards under a well-established organisational
structure. Areas of responsibilities of each business and operational unit are clearly defined to ensure effective checks and
balances. Please refer to the Sections “Principal Risk Management” from pages 271 to 319 and “Capital Adequacy” from
pages 364 to 368 of Annual Report 2021 for further details on the processes that the Group uses to identify, evaluate
and manage principal risks.
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The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective internal controls are as follows:
e A distinct organisation structure exists with defined lines of authority and control responsibilities.

e A comprehensive management accounting system is in place to provide financial and operational performance
indicators to the Senior Management and the relevant financial information for reporting and disclosure purpose.

e Policies and procedures are designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information used within the business or for
publication. The procedures provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

e An enterprise risk management framework is in place for the Group to identify, evaluate, manage, control and
report principal risks including credit, market, operational, liquidity, interest rate, strategic, legal, reputation,
compliance, technology risks. To identify and manage all potential risks in a more holistic and effective manner,
a "Three Lines of Defence” risk management model is adopted, with Risk Owners, Risk Controllers and Internal
Audit Division acting as the 1st, 2nd and 3rd lines of defence respectively, along with the overall coordination
of the Group Chief Risk Officer. Oversight of risk management is provided by the RC, which is assisted by the
Management Committees including the Risk Management Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee and Operational Risk Management Committee. Policies and procedures are in place to
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

e The AC reviews reports (including management letter) submitted by external auditors in connection with the annual
audit and internal audit reports submitted by the Group Chief Auditor.

e A Policy on Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information is in place, setting out the guiding principles, procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner.

e Whistle-blowing Statement and Whistle-blowing Policy and Procedure are in place, which encourage stakeholders and
employees to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Bank. The Bank
treats all information received confidentially and protects the identity and the interests of all whistle-blowers.

Pursuant to a risk-based approach, the Group’s Internal Audit Division conducts independent reviews of control
mechanisms over various operations and activities to assess the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems which cover all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Board conducted an annual review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for 2021. As a result, the Board concurred with the Senior Management'’s confirmation that the
Group's risk management and internal control systems are considered effective and adequate.

Auditor's Remuneration

The fee paid or payable to KPMG, the Bank's external auditor, for providing audit and audit-related services of the Group
during 2021 is HK$28 million in total.

During 2021, the fees paid or payable to KPMG and its associates for providing non-audit-related services amounted to
approximately HK$14 million, which included the following items:

e Review and consultancy services: HK$9 million; and
e Services made at the request of regulators: HK$5 million.

The AC was satisfied that the non-audit services in 2021 did not affect the independence of KPMG.
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E. COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for, among other things, the following duties:

e ensuring that Board procedures are observed, and that the Bank’s Articles of Association, relevant rules and
regulations are complied with;

e implementing and strengthening corporate governance practices and processes of the Bank;

e ensuring efficient information flow within the Board and Board Committees and between Directors and Senior

Management;

e ensuring Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary;

e facilitating induction programme of new Directors and the continuous professional development of existing Directors;

and

e developing agendas for Board and Board Committee meetings and their respective minutes.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Bank and reports directly to the Executive Chairman. During the year, the
Company Secretary undertook over 15 hours of professional training.

F. SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Bank’s approach to shareholders communication and engagement is set out below:

Communication with
Shareholders

The Bank’s Shareholders Communication Policy (available on the website of the Bank)
sets out the practices in relation to communication with shareholders and the investment
community.

Through various channels, including its website (www.hkbea.com), shareholders and
investors are provided with fair, timely and simultaneous access to the Bank’s information
such as the Bank’s announcements, financial results, and press release. The Bank also holds
press and investor conferences to present half-year and full-year financial results to the
media and analysts.

The Bank welcomes shareholders’ views and concerns relating to the Group’s management
and governance. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board by
addressing to the Bank’s Company Secretary at the Bank'’s registered address or email at
info@hkbea.com.

Investors Relations

The Bank maintains an open and regular dialogue with institutional and individual
shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the media in accordance with its Shareholders
Communication Policy. Apart from AGMs, other communication channels include:

- the Group's website at www.hkbea.com;

- annual and interim reports, and press releases;

- announcements, notices and circulars;

- press conferences after the announcement of interim and final results for media and
analysts;

- meetings with analysts; and

- roadshows.

The Senior Management conducts briefings with analysts and the press to apprise them of
the Bank's annual and interim results, business strategies and outlook.
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General Meetings

The Board uses the AGMs or other general meetings as a useful forum for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of each of the AC, NC, RemCo, RC and
ESGC, external auditors, Senior Management and legal advisors, are also present to answer
shareholders’ questions.

In accordance with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association, any vote of shareholders at a general meeting will be taken by poll. Detailed
procedures for conducting a poll will be explained to the shareholders in the general
meeting so that shareholders are familiar with such voting procedures. A separate resolution
on each substantially separate issue will be proposed by the chairman of a general meeting.
The poll results are available on the websites of the Exchange and the Company on the day
of the general meeting.

The Bank’s 2022 AGM will be held on Friday, 6th May, 2022 at 11:30 a.m., the notice of
which will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting. Please
refer to the Circular for the details of the 2022 AGM.

Convening of
general meeting on
requisition

Subject to the Companies Ordinance, Directors of the Bank shall on the request of
shareholders of the Bank who represent at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings, may request to convene a general
meeting of the Bank.

Each request must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting,
the name and contact details of the person making the request, must be authenticated by
the person making it and may be sent to the Bank in hard copy form or in electronic form.

Shareholders may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at the meeting. The Bank will take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance
once a valid request is received.

For further details, shareholders may refer to the requirements as set out in the Companies
Ordinance.

Putting Forward
Proposals at General
Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote, or, at least 50 shareholders who
have a relevant right to vote, may:

- put forward proposal at general meeting; and
- circulate to other shareholders written statement with respect to matter or other business
to be dealt with at general meeting.

For further details on the shareholder qualifications, and procedures and timeline on the
above-mentioned, shareholders are kindly requested to refer to Sections 580 and 615 of the
Companies Ordinance.
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Dividend Policy

The Dividend Policy is to formulate the dividend payments of the Bank in a complete and comprehensive manner and to
fulfil the corporate governance requirement. It forms part of the Bank’s Corporate Governance Framework and will be
reviewed annually.

General guidelines

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board may from time to time pay to shareholders interim dividends, subject to
its discretion. The Board shall take into account prevailing legal and regulatory requirements and the best market practices
when considering the payment of dividends.

The following factors will be considered for determining the payment of dividends:
e Statutory and regulatory restrictions;

e The Group's financial results;

e Shareholders’ expectation and interests;

e Market conditions and long term business growth and strategies;

e The capital adequacy ratios, leverage ratios, liquidity coverage ratios and net stable funding ratios after distribution;
and

e Any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

Dividend pay-out ratio

To strike a balance between the long-term growth of the Bank Group and the interests of shareholders, the total
dividends (other than special dividend, if any) to be distributed yearly to shareholders are to be within the range of 30%
to 70% of the net attributable profits for the year, after deduction of any distribution to holders of Additional Tier 1
capital instruments.

Frequency and form of dividend
Interim dividend may be declared half-yearly for the half-year period ending 30th June and the half-year period ending
31st December.

Scrip in lieu of cash dividend may be offered to shareholders, subject to the approval of the Board.

Special dividend may be considered by the Board.

G. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions are provided under Note 50 to the accounts. These transactions were
entered into by the Bank in the ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial terms and, if constituted
connected transaction or continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, they are exempt from the relevant
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.

H. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Bank acknowledged that they are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Bank. During the year, in strict compliance with relevant provisions, the Bank published the Annual
Report 2020 and the Interim Report 2021 as scheduled.
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SUSTAINABILITY

For over 100 years, BEA has grown and prospered in the
knowledge that the Bank's success is intrinsically linked to
the success of the wider community that it serves. In view
of the increasing challenges presented by climate change
and the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, this partnership
for success has never been more crucial.

The Bank is committed to making a positive contribution
to society through its business, operations, and
community investment. Therefore, the Bank measures
success not solely by financial performance, but also by
the extent to which it is able to contribute to the wider
world and enrich the lives of customers, employees, and
other stakeholders.

The BEA Group is committed to addressing environmental,
social, and governance ("ESG") concerns as part of its
core business and operational mission. The following
report highlights BEA’s major ESG achievements in
2021, and how ESG guides BEA’s approach to major
stakeholder relationships. A more comprehensive review
of BEA's performance will be provided in the Group's
2021 ESG Report, which will be issued in the first half
of 2022. All ESG reports are available via BEA's website
at www.hkbea.com (About BEA / Sustainability /
ESG Reports).

In November 2021, BEA's Board-level ESG Committee
approved the Bank Group’s ESG strategy framework,
which sets out the Bank’s vision to be the financial
market leader in sustainability in Greater China and
beyond. The framework includes a set of ESG topics
that BEA will prioritise, identified through extensive
external and internal stakeholder engagement. These
topics, which include ESG risk and cybersecurity, are
structured under the three pillars of responsible business,
responsible operations, and responsible corporate citizen.
This strategic framework will help guide the Bank Group
in the mid to longer-term, as the Bank addresses growing
stakeholder expectations and learns to evolve in the
changing business environment.

One of BEA's initiatives for 2021 was to foster awareness
within the organisation of the importance of sustainability
to BEA’s long-term success. In June, the Bank launched
its first Sustainability e-learning module, which all Group
staff members were required to complete. In addition,
two sustainability events were organised during the
year, covering waste management and climate change.
ESG-related events and achievements were regularly
shared with staff members via the Bank’s corporate
intranet. Tailor-made ESG roadshows were organised
for departments to enrich their understanding of ESG-

related topics specific to their business functions. Results
from the employee pulse survey conducted in September
revealed that 88% of all Group staff members considered
themselves to be familiar with BEA's ESG performance
and initiatives.

GROWING OUR BUSINESS
RESPONSIBLY

During the year under review, the Bank’s ESG Work Group
successfully achieved both of the two ESG goals that had
been set by the ESG Steering Committee for the Bank’s
scorecard. The first goal was to integrate ESG risks into
BEA's risk appetite framework. This was achieved in August,
when the Board approved BEA's qualitative ESG risk
appetite statement and a corresponding set of metrics to
gauge performance. The second goal, to develop strategies
and set internal targets for green lending and responsible
investment, was achieved by the end of the year.

The Group strategy on green and sustainable business
will guide the Bank in supporting its corporate customers
in their transition to a low-carbon economy. This strategy
includes the provision of finance for improving energy
efficiency, building a sustainable supply chain, and
increasing renewable energy use to assist clients in their
efforts to achieve carbon neutrality.

Meanwhile, the new Group Responsible Investment
Policy will guide Group members in making sustainable
investment decisions. Specific guidance is provided on
investment themes that either reinforce or undermine
ESG values, thus assisting investment managers in their
investment appraisals. The Policy also recommends active
engagement with shareholders. As a participant in the
Mainland’s onshore green investments, BEA ranked
second in the “Top Five Foreign Institutional Investors
in Green Bonds in the China Interbank Bond Market”
in the first half of 2021. The ranking was conducted by
the National Association of Financial Market Institutional
Investors, the regulatory organisation for the over-the-
counter bond market in China.

To manage negative impacts arising from ESG risks and
guide business units in their financing decisions, BEA
developed a Green and Sustainability-linked Lending Policy
and provided training to all relevant staff. In addition, the
Bank enhanced its ESG risk assessment checklist for credit
applications by incorporating climate risk considerations.
In the first half of 2021, BEA participated in the pilot
climate risk stress test initiative organised by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA") to assess the Bank'’s
resilience to extreme climate events.
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Looking ahead, the Bank will incorporate climate
considerations into governance, strategy, risk
management, and disclosure by following the guidance
set forth in the HKMA's Supervisory Policy Manual
on climate risk management. BEA is already actively
preparing for the adoption of the recommendations of
the Task Force on Climate-related Finance Disclosures. In
addition, BEA is preparing a green and sustainable finance
framework as well as measuring emissions in the activities
it finances, in order to identify the Group’s major indirect
emission impacts.

In December, BEA launched its Green Mortgage Plan to
encourage customers to purchase property in sustainably
designed and constructed buildings. The Plan is offered
to prospective purchasers of first-hand, second-hand,
or government subsidised residences that have a valid
provisional / final “Platinum” or “Gold"” rating under the
Building Environmental Assessment Method (“BEAM™)
Plus New Buildings / Existing Buildings scheme of the
Hong Kong Green Building Council.

The ESG Work Group also made significant progress
in other areas, including financial literacy, internal
staff mobility, community investment and emission
reduction. These achievements will be described in the
following sections.

BEA organised a financial literacy workshop in October
2020 attended by representatives of the Investor and
Financial Education Council and experts in financial
education from academia and non-governmental
organisations. It concluded with several recommendations
on how to facilitate greater adoption of digital banking
services by older customers. BEA followed up to
implement one of the recommendations in 2021, namely
to arrange for peer customer experience managers at
branches to encourage mature customers to use digital
channels including the BEA App and Cyberbanking.
In October, a pilot was launched in six branches and
feedback will be evaluated in early 2022 to further refine
the initiative.

OPERATING OUR BUSINESS
RESPONSIBLY

Global warming is altering weather patterns and
disrupting the balance of nature. In order to reduce
emissions from its operations that contribute to global
warming, BEA established a carbon emissions reduction
target for the Group’s operational activities in 2020.
Between the baseline year of 2019 and the target year
2030, BEA aims to reduce Scope 1 and Scope 2 carbon
emissions produced by its Group operations by 32%.

As its first interim target, BEA aims to reduce Group
emissions by 19% by the end of 2023.

In 2021, BEA carried out a number of initiatives to reduce
energy consumption. These included an upgrade of the
air-cooled chillers at BEA Tower in Kwun Tong, optimising
air-conditioning at data centres in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, and LED lighting retrofit. These efforts
are expected to reduce BEA Group’s energy consumption
by 9% between 2020 and 2021. Other measures to
reduce carbon emissions include optimisation of the
Group's car fleets. In 2021, BEA’s car fleet in Hong Kong
was reduced by more than 12% while BEA China’s fleet
was reduced by more than 22% compared with 2019.
Looking ahead, BEA will install solar panels at BEA’s Head
Office Building and BEA Tower to harness renewable
energy and reduce electricity consumption.

To support growing calls for more ambitious targets,
BEA will screen its Scope 3 indirect emissions to identify
its main indirect impacts and develop a carbon neutrality
roadmap in 2022. Efforts will focus on reducing emissions
in the Group's business and operations as far as
practicable before other solutions like carbon offsetting
are considered.

While the Group’s procurement process is decentralised
for many items and services, steps were taken in 2021
to strengthen sustainable supply chain management
including the appointment of personnel responsible for
supplier compliance with BEA's Supplier Code of Conduct
and monitoring high risk suppliers during the course of
the supplier relationship. The ESG risk identification tool
was enhanced during the year under review, and related
management documentation including the Procure-to-
pay guideline and Supplier Code of Conduct were revised
for clarity and uniformity.

BEA's commitment to human rights is set out in the
Group’s Human Rights Policy, which is aligned with the
United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human
Rights and applies to the Group’s operations and business
activities worldwide. In 2021, the Bank established a
human rights monitoring and reporting system and, with
effect from September 2021, any substantiated human
rights cases identified through various channels including
the Group’s whistleblowing procedures are reported
on a quarterly basis to the Bank’s Senior Management.
BEA's Human Rights Policy can be viewed on the Bank’s
corporate website (About BEA / Sustainability / Policies,
Statements & Codes).

For information about our staff-related efforts in 2021,
please refer to the Our People section of the Report of
the Co-Chief Executives on page 28.
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Under the MOU, BEA and HKQAA will cooperate in promoting
green and sustainable finance in Hong Kong.
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SERVING OUR COMMUNITY
RESPONSIBLY

BEA’s community investment initiatives are built around
three pillars: education, social welfare and environmental
protection. The Bank also donates both time and money
to support worthwhile causes, and it has established
The Bank of East Asia Charitable Foundation (“BEA
Foundation”) and The Bank of East Asia Volunteer Team
("BEA Volunteer Team”) to this end.

In 2021, BEA inaugurated the Beyond Environmental
Arts Festival (“BEA Festival”) together with the Hong
Kong Youth Arts Foundation to promote environmental
awareness among Hong Kong’s youth. With funding
from the BEA Foundation, BEA Festival will hold a
series of school workshops with artists in residence,
commissioned artworks from local artists, volunteer
team engagement in green activities and week-long
theatrical performances to engage young people in
Hong Kong plus staff and their families in creative and
interactive ways to care for the planet.

In May, BEA and its strategic partner “la Caixa” Banking
Foundation sponsored an international virtual symposium
in Hong Kong organised by The Salvation Army to mark
a decade of support for The Palliative Care in Residential
Care Homes for the Elderly Programme. The event was
attended online by nearly 300 medical professionals,
social workers, academics, and others. Since 2010, the
Programme has seen 17 residential care homes and seven
community-based units established, 363 cases taken
on, over 6,800 staff trained, and around 30,600 people
engaged through the outreach programme.

™= During the year, over 200 volunteers contributed over 3,000 service hours
across more than 60 activities. This included writing well wishes to under-

resourced families during the Year of the Ox, which were sent together
with food boxes and gift packs containing daily essentials.
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Other social welfare initiatives BEA supported included
the BEA Parent-Child Reading Programme 2020/2021 and
Teen Café Youth Mental Health Promotion Project. The
former project provides 2,000 primary school students and
400 kindergarten students from under-resourced families
and their parents with a selection of four to eight books
each, as well as guide books for parents to encourage
them to read to their children. A total of 20 schools were
selected for the project’s Train the Trainer Programme,
which trained 100 parents, librarians, teachers and
others to motivate children to read. Meanwhile, the latter
project saw BEA sponsor Tung Wah Group of Hospitals a
total of 3,600 participants joined a series of community
activities. The project helped 600 students across
12 schools to cope with mental health issues.

In March, for the sixth consecutive year, BEA was the title
sponsor of The Community Chest BEA Charity Golf Day
2021, which raised HK$2.5 million in support of mental
health services.

On the Mainland, the Shanghai Soong Ching Ling
Foundation — BEA Charity Fund (“BEA Charity Fund”)
continued to organise a series of public welfare projects
to improve education resources in rural areas. These
included building three Firefly Centres equipped with
computers, projectors, and libraries; donating more than
1,200 Firefly Backpacks; and providing nearly 4,000
hours of online training to over 240 rural teachers /
principals. Since its founding more than 10 years ago,
the “Firefly Project” has been extended to more than
100 rural schools in 28 provinces, municipalities, and
autonomous regions.

™ In May, BEA marked a decade of support for The Palliative Care in
Residential Care Homes for the Elderly Programme with an international
virtual symposium in Hong Kong.
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™ In June, BEA volunteers helped plant trees in Shing Mun
Country Park to promote biodiversity and fight climate
change in the “Tree Partner Programme 2021" organised
by World Green Organisation.
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== In December, BEA hosted a prelude to the BEA
Festival. BEA's management, as well as over 100
people including volunteers and children from
local schools attended the Wreath Recycled Art
Workshop to share the festive joy.
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BEA was named a “Carbon Neutrality Partner”

by the Environment Bureau of the Hong Kong
government in recognition of its efforts to
decarbonise Hong Kong, and for its pledge to
support government efforts to achieve carbon
neutrality before 2050.
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BEA China donated CNY3 million to the China Charity
Federation to be used to procure emergency relief
supplies, prevent infection and provide temporary housing
for residents of Henan Province who were affected by
severe flooding in July.

BEA China, Shanghai Middle School Student Ethical
Education Development Centre, and the Shanghai
Education News Group jointly organised the Ninth
Financial Education Campus Tour. The Campus Tour
focussed on instilling the right attitude to financial
management and other essential knowledge in young
people. In 2021, more than 80,000 students from more
than 120 middle schools in the city participated in the
activity, and more than 100,000 people were aware of
the activities.

During the year under review, BEA China also helped
more than 50 underprivileged students complete
university by providing financial assistance. In addition,
BEA China provided financial aid for children on the
Autism Spectrum and elderly people who had lost their
only child, palliative care, and more. Local BEA China

™= In January, BEA China joined hands with the Shanghai Charity
Foundation and Huashan Hospital in support of medical workers
in the battle against COVID-19. CNY1 million was donated to
Huashan Hospital for front-line medical workers, training for
nurses, and more.
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branches organised charitable campaigns during Chinese
New Year, Arbour Day, and Children's Day. More than
870 volunteers contributed more than 3,900 volunteer
hours throughout the year.

Macau Branch supported World Vision's “Macau Famine”
for the eighth consecutive year by skipping meals and
donating the cost to help World Vision provide nutrition
and livelihood assistance to families affected by natural
disasters in Somalia, South Sudan, and Zimbabwe.

For the fifth consecutive year, Macau Branch joined
“Walk for a Million” organised by The Charity Fund
from the Readers of Macao Daily News. In 2021, all staff
members of the Branch joined the event’s “online walk”
and achieved a total of 442,000 steps for the event. In
addition, Macau Branch made a donation of MOP10,000.

For the second consecutive year, Taiwan Branch joined
Eden Social Welfare Foundation’s old clothes donation,
thereby protecting the environment by reducing waste, as
well as helping charity. Over 370 items of clothing were
collected and donated for charity sale and distribution to
disabled people and their families.

™ In August and October, the BEA
Volunteer Team aided FOOD-
CO, an IT platform for food
support service under St. James'
Settlement, by packing more
than 1000 kilograms of rice in
over 500 bags for the needy.
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BEA sponsored The Salvation Army Orienteering in November by
sending five corporate teams to participate in the competition. Funds
raised will help families facing crisis, under-resourced elders, and
youths and people with disabilities.
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™ In May, BEA China volunteers hosted a group of underprivileged
students from Huaxing Primary School in a Children's Day programme,
which included a financial education class and a visit to the Shanghai
and Hong Kong Museum of Banking History.
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™= Volunteers from the Shenzhen Office of East Asia Digital Information
Services (Guangdong) Limited helped clean Honghu Park as part of
the programme, “A Clean Shenzhen Starts with Me”.

REEEESRE (BR) ARARDRIBERENETLEER
R PRI | JEED - BRI AE e

== For the third consecutive year, Macau Branch staff members helped save lives by
donating blood at the Macao Blood Transfusion Centre of the Health Bureau of
Macao Special Administrative Region.
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MAJOR RECOGNITION

During the year under review, the Group received a number of awards in recognition of its achievements. These included:

BEA

1.

“Qutstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Loan
Facilitator (Printing & Communication Industry) —
Visionary Green Loan Framework” by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency;

16. Greater Bay Area Business Sustainability Index —
“Top 20 companies of the Hang Seng Stock Connect
Hong Kong Greater Bay Area Index” by the Chinese
University Hong Kong Business School;

Ranked second in the “Top Five Foreign Institutional
Investors in Green Bonds in the China Interbank Bond
Market” by the National Association of Financial
Market Institutional Investors in the first half of 2021;

“Award of Excellence” and “Diamond Award” in
the Corporate & Employee Contribution Programme
2020/2021 (for the 27th consecutive year) by The
Community Chest of Hong Kong;

Named “Caring Company” (for the 18th consecutive
year) by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
("HKCSS™);

“Good MPF Employer 5 Years+” (for the seventh
consecutive year), “"MPF Support Award” (for the fifth
consecutive year), and “e-Contribution Award” (for
the fifth consecutive year) by the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority (“MPFA");

"ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme” (for the
tenth consecutive year) by the Employees Retraining
Board (“ERB");

“HKIB Talent Development Awards 2021 (Category I)”
by the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers (“HKIB");

“Qualifications Framework Star Employer” by the
Education Bureau;

”2021 The Community Chest Virtual Walk for
Millions: Outstanding Walk Team” from The
Community Chest of Hong Kong;

10.

“The Salvation Army Orienteering 2021 — Certificate
of Appreciation” by The Salvation Army;

11.

“Inaugural SportsHour Company Scheme Recognised
Company (Companies >500 employees)” by the
InspiringHK Sports Foundation;

12.

“Say Yes to Breastfeeding — the Breastfeeding
Friendly Workplace Certificate” by the United Nations
Children's Fund Hong Kong;

13.

“Hong Kong Sustainability Award 2021/21 -
Certificate of Excellence” by The Hong Kong
Management Association;

14.

“Excellence in ESG Governance — Commendation
Award” by the Hong Kong ESG Reporting Awards;

15.

Constituent member of Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Benchmark Index, 2021-2022 from the
Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited;

17. "“Wastewi$e Certificate — Excellence Level” for
BEA's Head Office Building and BEA Tower from the
Environmental Campaign Committee;

18. “Energywi$e Certificate — Excellence Level” for
BEA's Head Office Building and BEA Tower from the
Environmental Campaign Committee; and

19. “IAQwi$e Certificate — Excellence Level” for BEA
Tower from the Environmental Campaign Committee.

BEA China

20."2021 Best ESG Practice Bank in China” at the
Gamma Awards by the Securities Times;

21.72021 ESG Corporate Star” by the China Investment
Network;

22."Annual Corporate Citizen” at the 2021 China
Golden Tripod Award by the National Business
News; and

23. "Social Contribution Bank” at the 2020-2021 Annual
Excellent Capital Value Corporation Awards by The
Economic Observer.

Blue Cross

24.Named “Caring Company” (for 13th consecutive
year) by HKCSS;

25."“Good MPF Employer 5 Years+"”(for the seventh
consecutive year), “MPF Support Award”, and
"e-Contribution Award” by the MPFA;

26.2020-21 "Joyful@Healthy Workplace Best Practices
Award (Enterprise / Organisation Category) — Grand
Award"” (for the second consecutive year) by the
Department of Health, Labour Department, and the
Occupational Safety and Health Council; and

27. "Inaugural SportsHour Company Scheme Recognised
Company (Company 50-500 employees)” and “CO-
FIT Best Practice Showcase Recognised Company
(Companies 51-500 employees)” by the InspiringHK
Sports Foundation.
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BEA's efforts to help corporate customers in their low-carbon
transition were recognised at the Hong Kong Green and Sustainable
Finance Awards 2021 organised by HKQAA in December.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual
Report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31st December, 2021 (“Annual Report”).

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Bank of East Asia, Limited is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at 10 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank and its subsidiaries are engaged in the provision
of banking and related financial services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis
of the performance for the year ended 31st December,
2021 and an indication of likely future development in
the business of the Group are provided in the Executive
Chairman’s Statement and the Report of the Co-Chief
Executives of the Annual Report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be
found throughout the Annual Report, in particular the
Risk Management section. Particulars of important events
affecting the Bank that have occurred (if any) can be
found in the Annual Report and the Notes to the Financial
Statements. An analysis using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights and the
Report of the Co-Chief Executives. Compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact
on the Group can be found throughout the Annual Report,
in particular, the Corporate Governance Report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental
policies and relationships with the key stakeholders that
have a significant impact on the Group are discussed
in the Sustainability section of the Annual Report as
well as in the Group’s 2021 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report which will be available on the Bank's
website at www.hkbea.com (About BEA / Sustainability /
ESG Reports) in the first half of 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The Directors note that the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for less than 30% of the total of
interest income and other operating income of the Group
for the year.

ACCOUNTS

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Group for
the year ended 31st December, 2021 and the state of the
Bank’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the accounts from pages 170 to 363.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets are set out in
Note 33 to the accounts.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Group, before
dividends, of HK$5,270 million (2020: HK$3,614 million)
has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in Note 42 to the accounts.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK$0.35 per Share (2020: an
interim dividend of HK$0.16 per Share) was paid on 4th
October, 2021. The Directors have declared the payment
of a second interim dividend of HK$0.35 per Share (2020:
a second interim dividend of HK$0.24 per Share) in
respect of the financial year ended 31st December, 2021.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last 5 years is set out in the Annual Report.

ISSUE OF SHARES

During the year, the Bank issued 2,400,721 Shares at
HK$17.138 each and 3,646,848 Shares at HK$12.82 each
to Shareholders who had elected to receive new Shares in
lieu of cash dividend in respect of the 2020 second interim
dividend and the 2021 interim dividend respectively.

Details about the issue of Shares are also set out in Note
40 to the accounts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
BANK'S LISTED SECURITIES

On 3rd November, 2021, the Bank completed the early
redemption of a face value of US$500 million 4% Tier 2
Capital Dated Subordinated Notes due 2026 (the “2026
Subordinated Notes”). The 2026 Subordinated Notes
were issued in 2016 under the Bank’'s Medium Term Note
Programme and listed on the Stock Exchange.

Save for the redemption of the 2026 Subordinated
Notes as disclosed herein, there was no purchase, sale
or redemption by the Bank or any of its subsidiaries, of
listed securities of the Bank during the year ended 31st
December, 2021.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ISSUE OF DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, the following notes were issued by the Bank under its US$6,000,000,000
Medium Term Note Programme to raise funds for general corporate purposes:

Class

Consideration received
(HK$ equivalent)

Amount Issued
(HK$ equivalent)

Senior Notes

US$60,000,000
(HK$466,210,000)

US$59,970,800
(HK$465,983,252.93)

Senior Notes

EUR25,000,000
(HK$221,437,500)

EUR25,094,250
(HK$222,272,319.38)

Total (HK$ equivalent)

HK$687,647,500 HK$688,255,572.31

DIRECTORS

The present Directors of the Bank are shown on page 64.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the terms
of office of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, Dr. Allan
WONG Chi-yun, Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing, Mr. Winston
LO Yau-lai, Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, Dr. Daryl
NG Win-kong, Mr. Masayuki OKU and Dr. the Hon. Rita
FAN HSU Lai-tai, will expire at the 2022 AGM. They,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
2022 AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2022 AGM
are set out in the Circular sent to the shareholders.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has
a service contract that is not determinable by the Bank or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

The Bank has received an annual confirmation of
independence for the year ended 31st December, 2021
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Guidance on Empowerment of INEDs from each of the
INEDs, namely: Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun, Dr. the Hon.
Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai, Mr. Meocre LI Kwok-wing, Dr. the
Hon. Henry TANG Ying-yen, Dr. Delman LEE, Mr. William
Junior Guilherme DOO and Dr. David MONG Tak-yeung
and considers them to be independent throughout the
applicable period.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the
boards of the subsidiaries of the Bank (included in the
annual consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2021) during the year up to 24th
February, 2022 (being the date of approval of the Bank’s
2021 Annual Report) are available on the Bank’s website
at www.hkbea.com under “About BEA — Corporate
Governance” section on the home page.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors of the Bank on a named
basis are disclosed in Note 21 to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st December, 2021.

The fees to the Directors who were appointed during
2021 were paid in accordance with their length of service.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

There was no transaction, arrangement or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Bank or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Bank and/or any of his connected
entities (as defined under section 486 of the Ordinance)
had, directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Bank is interested in any
business that competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Bank’s business.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts,
relating to the management and/or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank
were entered into or subsisted during the year.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po is employed as the
Executive Chairman of the Bank. His existing three-year
term service contract commenced on 1st July, 2019 and
will expire on 30th June, 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director,
Secretary and officer of the Bank shall be indemnified
out of the funds of the Bank against all liabilities (to the

I. Long positions in ordinary shares of the Bank:

extent permitted by the Ordinance) incurred by such
Director, Secretary or officer in the execution of his duties
or otherwise in relation thereto. Directors & Officers
Liability and Company Reimbursement Insurance has
been arranged to indemnify the Directors and officers of
the Group.

DIRECTORS' AND CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS

As at 31st December, 2021, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and Co-Chief Executives of the
Bank in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Bank and its associated corporations as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO (the “Register”) were as follows:

% of issued

Name Capacity and nature No. of shares Total  voting Shares
David LI Kwok-po Beneficial owner 88,160,000

Interest of spouse 2,215,755

Interest of corporation 458,594

Executor of estate 11,683,461 102,517,810' 3.51
Arthur LI Kwok-cheung Beneficial owner 13,085,663

Interest of corporation 17,437,293

Executor of estate 11,683,461 42,206,4172 1.45
Allan WONG Chi-yun Beneficial owner 464,393

Interest of spouse 136

Founder and beneficiary of

discretionary trust 17,415,234 17,879,7633 0.61

Aubrey LI Kwok-sing Beneficial owner 868,168

Interest of spouse 26,203

Founder/Settlor of trust 17,901,241 18,795,6124 0.64
Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze Beneficial owner 11,752,581

Administrator of estates 1,822,523 13,575,104° 0.47
Adrian David LI Man-kiu Beneficial owner 1,095,959

Settlor/Founder of

discretionary trust 2,154,840 3,250,799° 0.11

Brian David LI Man-bun Beneficial owner 2,679,902

Interest of corporation 820,282 3,500,184 0.12
David MONG Tak-yeung Interest of corporation 6,041,926 6,041,9268 0.21

Notes:

1 David LI Kwok-po was the beneficial owner of 88,160,000 shares and he was deemed to be interested in 2,215,755 shares through
the interests of his spouse, Penny POON Kam-chui. He was also deemed to be interested in 458,594 shares held by David Li Kwok-po
Charitable Foundation Limited, a charitable institution of which David LI Kwok-po is a director and the sole member. He was also deemed
to be interested in 11,683,461 shares held by an estate of which he is one of the executors. Arthur LI Kwok-cheung was also deemed to
be interested in the same block of 11,683,461 shares as one of the executors of the estate (please refer to Note 2 below).

2 Arthur LI Kwok-cheung was the beneficial owner of 13,085,663 shares and he was deemed to be interested in 17,437,293 shares held
by Dapa Company Limited, which is wholly-owned by him. He was also deemed to be interested in 11,683,461 shares held by an estate
of which he is one of the executors. David LI Kwok-po was also deemed to be interested in the same block of 11,683,461 shares as one

of the executors of the estate (please refer to Note 1 above).
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3 Allan WONG Chi-yun was the beneficial owner of 464,393 shares and he was deemed to be interested in 136 shares through the
interests of his spouse, Margaret KWOK Chi-wai (deceased). He was also deemed to be interested in 17,415,234 shares held by a
discretionary trust, Allan Wong 2011 Trust, of which Allan WONG Chi-yun is a founder and an eligible beneficiary.

4 Aubrey LI Kwok-sing was the beneficial owner of 868,168 shares and he was deemed to be interested in 26,203 shares through the
interests of his spouse, Elizabeth WOO. He was also deemed to be interested in 17,901,241 shares held by LEVA Trust of which he is the
founder/settlor.

5 Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze was the beneficial owner of 11,752,581 shares. He was also deemed to be interested in 1,822,523 shares
held by two estates of which he is one of the administrators.

6  Adrian David LI Man-kiu was the beneficial owner of 1,095,959 shares. He has made a voluntary disclosure of 2,154,840 shares indirectly
held by a discretionary trust of which he was the settlor/founder but has no influence on how the trustee exercises its discretion.

7 Brian David LI Man-bun was the beneficial owner of 2,679,902 shares. He was also deemed to be interested in 820,282 shares held by
Triple Kingdom Limited, which is wholly-owned by him.

8 David MONG Tak-yeung was deemed to be interested in 6,041,926 shares held by certain corporations, out of which (i) 5,306,771 shares
were held by Shun Hing Electronic Trading Co., Ltd.; and (i) 735,155 shares were held by Shun Hing Technology Co. Ltd.. He directly /
indirectly controls one-third or more of the voting power at a general meeting of these corporations.

Long positions (in respect of equity derivatives) in underlying shares of the Bank:

Shares options, being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives, to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Bank
were granted to David LI Kwok-po, Adrian David LI Man-kiu and Brian David LI Man-bun pursuant to the approved
Staff Share Option Schemes. Information in relation to these share options during the year ended 31st December,
2021 was shown in the section under “Information on Share Options” of this Report.

Interests in debt securities of the Bank:

Francisco Javier SERRADO TREPAT was the beneficial owner of the following debt securities issued by the Bank:

Type of Debt Securities Amount of Debentures

Additional Tier 1 Undated Capital SecuritiesN°t US$20,500,000

Note: The 5.875% Additional Tier 1 Undated Capital Securities with a face value of US$650 million were issued by the Bank under its
US$6,000 million Medium Term Note Programme in 2019 and are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Each of the other Directors, namely Winston LO Yau-lai, Daryl NG Win-kong, Masayuki OKU, Rita FAN HSU Lai-
tai, Meocre LI Kwok-wing, Henry TANG Ying-yen, Delman LEE and William Junior Guilherme DOO did not have
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Bank or any of its associated
corporations as at 31st December, 2021.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Bank
or any of its associated corporations were recorded in the Register.

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or Co-Chief Executives of the Bank or their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any other body corporate with the exception of the Staff
Share Option Schemes, details of which are set out in the following section under “Information on Share Options”,
and Notes 2(y)(iv) and 39 to the accounts.
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTIONS

Information in relation to share options disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules was as follows:

(1) Movement of share options during the year ended 31st December, 2021:

Number of Share Options

Date of Outstanding Outstanding
Name Grant at 01/1/2021 Granted Exercised Lapsed at 31/12/2021
David LI Kwok-po 03/5/20132 668,000™ - - 668,000 0

02/5/20142 666,000™ - - 666,000 0
02/5/20142 668,000™ - - - 668,000
04/5/20152 666,000™ - - 666,000 0
04/5/20152 666,000™ - - - 666,000
04/5/20152 668,000™ - - - 668,000
08/4/20162 666,000 - - - 666,000
08/4/20162 668,000™ - - - 668,000
07/4/20172 666,000™ - - - 666,000
07/4/20172 666,000™ - - - 666,000
07/4/20172 501,000 - - - 501,000
10/4/20182 666,000 - - - 666,000
10/4/20182 499,500™ - - - 499,500
10/4/20182 501,000 - - - 501,000
19/7/20192 499,500 - - - 499,500
19/7/20192 499,500™ - - - 499,500
19/7/20192 501,000 - - - 501,000
07/4/20202 346,115™ - - - 346,115
07/4/2020° 347,802™ - - - 347,802
07/4/2020? 354,090™ - - - 354,090
13/4/2021° - 123,586™ - - 123,586
13/4/2021° - 123,602™ - - 123,602
13/4/2021° - 123,893™ - - 123,893
Adrian David LI Man-kiu  03/5/20132 218,000™ - - 218,000 0
02/5/20142 216,000 - - 216,000 0
02/5/20142 218,000™ - - - 218,000
04/5/20152 216,000™ - - 216,000 0
04/5/20152 216,000™ - - - 216,000
04/5/20152 218,000™ - - - 218,000
08/4/20162 216,000™ - - - 216,000
08/4/2016° 216,000™ - - - 216,000
08/4/20162 218,000™ - - - 218,000
07/4/20172 216,000™ - - - 216,000
07/4/20172 216,000 - - - 216,000
07/4/20172 163,500™ - - - 163,500
10/4/2018° 216,000™ - - - 216,000
10/4/20182 162,000™ - - - 162,000
10/4/20182 163,500™ - - - 163,500
19/7/20192 162,000™ - - - 162,000
19/7/20192 162,000™ - - - 162,000
19/7/20192 163,500™ - - - 163,500
07/4/2020? 268,360™ - - - 268,360
07/4/2020° 271,648™ - - - 271,648
07/4/2020? 282,769" - - - 282,769
13/4/2021° - 240,154" - - 240,154
13/4/2021° - 240,186™ - - 240,186
13/4/2021° - 240,759™ - - 240,759
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ZTRHE 03/5/20132 668,000™ - - 668,000 0
02/5/20142 666,000 - - 666,000 0
02/5/20142 668,000™ - - - 668,000
04/5/20152 666,000™ - - 666,000 0
04/5/20152 666,000™ - - - 666,000
04/5/20152 668,000™ - - - 668,000
08/4/2016° 666,000™ - - - 666,000
08/4/2016° 668,000™ - - - 668,000
07/4/20172 666,000™ - - - 666,000
07/4/20172 666,000 - - - 666,000
07/4/20172 501,000™ - - - 501,000
10/4/2018° 666,000™ - - - 666,000
10/4/2018° 499,500™ - - - 499,500
10/4/2018° 501,000™ - - - 501,000
19/7/2019° 499,500™ - - - 499,500
19/7/2019° 499,500™ - - - 499,500
19/7/2019° 501,000™ - - - 501,000
07/4/2020* 346,115™ - - - 346,115
07/4/2020° 347,802 - - - 347,802
07/4/20202 354,090™ - - - 354,090
13/4/2021° - 123,586™ - - 123,586
13/4/2021° - 123,602 - - 123,602
13/4/2021° - 123,893™ - - 123,893
FRIE 03/5/20132 218,000™ - - 218,000 0
02/5/2014¢ 216,000 - - 216,000 0
02/5/20142 218,000 - - - 218,000
04/5/20152 216,000™ - - 216,000 0
04/5/20152 216,000™ - - - 216,000
04/5/20152 218,000™ - - - 218,000
08/4/2016° 216,000™ - - - 216,000
08/4/2016° 216,000 - - - 216,000
08/4/2016° 218,000™ - - - 218,000
07/4/20172 216,000™ - - - 216,000
07/4/2017¢2 216,000 - - - 216,000
07/4/20172 163,500™ - - - 163,500
10/4/2018° 216,000™ - - - 216,000
10/4/2018° 162,000™ - - - 162,000
10/4/2018° 163,500™ - - - 163,500
19/7/2019° 162,000™ - - - 162,000
19/7/2019° 162,000™ - - - 162,000
19/7/2019° 163,500 - - - 163,500
07/4/2020° 268,360™ - - - 268,360
07/4/2020° 271,648"m - - - 271,648
07/4/20202 282,769 - - - 282,769
13/4/2021° - 240,154™ - - 240,154
13/4/2021° - 240,186™ - - 240,186
13/4/2021° - 240,759™ - - 240,759
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Number of Share Options

Date of Outstanding Outstanding
Name Grant at 01/1/2021 Granted Exercised Lapsed at 31/12/2021
Brian David LI Man-bun  03/5/2013 218,000™ - - 218,000 0

02/5/20142 216,000™ - - 216,000 0
02/5/20142 218,000™ - - - 218,000
04/5/2015? 216,000™ - - 216,000 0
04/5/20152 216,000™ - - - 216,000
04/5/20152 218,000™ - - - 218,000
08/4/2016? 216,000™ - - - 216,000
08/4/20162 216,000™ - - - 216,000
08/4/2016? 218,000™ - - - 218,000
07/4/20172 216,000™ - - - 216,000
07/4/20172 216,000™ - - - 216,000
07/4/20172 109,000™ - - - 109,000
10/4/20182 216,000™ - - - 216,000
10/4/2018? 108,000™ - - - 108,000
10/4/20182 109,000™ - - - 109,000
07/4/20202 286,690 - - - 286,690
07/4/2020? 288,878™ - - - 288,878
07/4/2020° 297,977% - - - 297,977
13/4/2021° - 240,154" - - 240,154
13/4/2021° - 240,186™ - - 240,186
13/4/2021° - 240,759 - - 240,759
Aggregate of other 03/5/20132 586,000™ - - 586,000 0
Employees* 02/5/20142 682,000™ - - 682,000 0
02/5/20142 686,000™ - - - 686,000
04/5/2015? 682,000™ - - 682,000 0
04/5/20152 682,000™ - - - 682,000
04/5/20152 686,000™ - - - 686,000
08/4/20162 532,000 - - - 532,000
08/4/20162 698,000™ - - - 698,000
08/4/20162 742,5007 - - - 742,500
07/4/20172 782,000 - - - 782,000
07/4/2017? 782,000™ - - - 782,000
07/4/20172 639,500™ - - - 639,500
10/4/20182 827,000™ - - - 827,000
10/4/2018? 681,500™ - - - 681,500
10/4/20182 687,000 - - - 687,000
19/7/20192 686,500™ - - - 686,500
19/7/20192 686,500™ - - - 686,500
19/7/20192 689,500™ - - - 689,500
07/4/2020? 715,000™ - - - 715,000
07/4/2020? 715,000™ - - - 715,000
07/4/2020° 720,000™ - - - 720,000
13/4/2021° - 789,903™ - - 789,903
13/4/2021° - 789,9327 - - 789,932

13/4/2021° - 793,439™ - - 793,439
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R 03/5/20132 218,000™ - - 218,000 0
02/5/20142 216,0007 - - 216,000 0
02/5/2014° 218,0007 - - - 218,000
04/5/20152 216,000™ - - 216,000 0
04/5/20152 216,0007 - - - 216,000
04/5/20152 218,0007 - - - 218,000
08/4/2016° 216,000™ - - - 216,000
08/4/2016° 216,0007 - - - 216,000
08/4/2016° 218,0007 - - - 218,000
07/4/2017? 216,000™ - - - 216,000
07/4/2017° 216,000 - - - 216,000
07/4/20172 109,000™ - - - 109,000
10/4/2018? 216,000™ - - - 216,000
10/4/2018? 108,000™ - - - 108,000
10/4/2018? 109,0007 - - - 109,000
07/4/20207 286,690 - - - 286,690
07/4/20207 288,878 - - - 288,878
07/4/20207 297,9777 - - - 297,977
13/4/2021° - 240,154 - - 240,154
13/4/2021b - 240,186™ - - 240,186
13/4/2021° - 240,759 - - 240,759
EfhiE 8 mEs 03/5/20132 586,000" - - 586,000 0
02/5/20142 682,000 - - 682,000 0
02/5/20142 686,0007 - - - 686,000
04/5/20152 682,000 - - 682,000 0
04/5/2015? 682,0007 - - - 682,000
04/5/2015° 686,0007 - - - 686,000
08/4/2016° 532,000™ - - - 532,000
08/4/2016° 698,000 - - - 698,000
08/4/2016° 742,5007 - - - 742,500
07/4/20172 782,000™ - - - 782,000
07/4/2017? 782,0007 - - - 782,000
07/4/2017° 639,5007 - - - 639,500
10/4/2018? 827,000™ - - - 827,000
10/4/2018¢ 681,500 - - - 681,500
10/4/2018¢ 687,0007 - - - 687,000
19/7/20192 686,500 - - - 686,500
19/7/2019° 686,5007 - - - 686,500
19/7/2019° 689,500 - - - 689,500
07/4/2020? 715,000™ - - - 715,000
07/4/20207 715,0007 - - - 715,000
07/4/20207 720,0007 - - - 720,000
13/4/2021° - 789,903 - - 789,903
13/4/2021° - 789,932™ - - 789,932
13/4/2021° - 793,4397 - - 793,439
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Number of Share Options

Date of Outstanding Outstanding
Name Grant at 01/1/2021 Granted Exercised Lapsed at 31/12/2021
Other Participants** 03/5/20132 150,000 - - 150,000 0

02/5/20142 162,000™ - - 162,000 0
02/5/20142 163,500™ - - 50,000 113,500
04/5/2015? 250,000™ - - 250,000 0
04/5/20152 250,000 - - 50,000 200,000
04/5/20152 215,746™ - - 50,000 165,746
08/4/2016° 100,000™ - - - 100,000
08/4/2016° 200,000 - - 50,000 150,000
08/4/20162 250,000 - - 50,000 200,000
07/4/20172 250,000™ - - 50,000 200,000
07/4/20172 250,000 - - 50,000 200,000
07/4/20172 187,500™ - - 37,500 150,000
10/4/20182 300,000™ - - 100,000 200,000
10/4/2018? 212,500™ - - 50,000 162,500
10/4/20182 212,500 - - - 212,500
19/7/20192 195,500™ - - 50,000 145,500
19/7/20192 195,500™ - - - 195,500
19/7/20192 196,500™ - - - 196,500
07/4/2020? 162,000™ - - - 162,000
07/4/2020? 162,000™ - - - 162,000
07/4/2020? 163,500™ - - - 163,500
13/4/2021° - 50,000 - - 50,000
13/4/2021° - 50,000™ - - 50,000
13/4/2021° - 50,000™ - - 50,000

*  Employees working under employment contracts that were regarded as “Continuous Contracts” for the purpose of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance.

** Other Participants refer to certain former employees of the Bank. Such share options were offered / granted to them prior to their
cessation as employees of the Bank.

Notes:

a  Particulars of share options granted in years 2013 to 2020:

Exercise Price Per Share

Date of Grant Tranche Vesting Period Exercise Period HK$
03/5/2013 3 03/5/2013 - 02/5/2016 03/5/2016 — 03/5/2021 31.40
02/5/2014 2 02/5/2014 - 01/5/2016 02/5/2016 — 02/5/2021 32.50
02/5/2014 T3 02/5/2014 - 01/5/2017 02/5/2017 - 02/5/2022 32.50
04/5/2015 T1 04/5/2015 - 03/5/2016 04/5/2016 — 04/5/2021 34.15
04/5/2015 2 04/5/2015 - 03/5/2017 04/5/2017 — 04/5/2022 34.15
04/5/2015 73 04/5/2015 - 03/5/2018 04/5/2018 - 04/5/2023 34.15
08/4/2016 T1 08/4/2016 - 07/4/2017 08/4/2017 - 08/4/2022 28.45
08/4/2016 2 08/4/2016 - 07/4/2018 08/4/2018 - 08/4/2023 28.45
08/4/2016 73 08/4/2016 - 07/4/2019 08/4/2019 — 08/4/2024 28.45
07/4/2017 T1 07/4/2017 — 06/4/2018 07/4/2018 — 07/4/2023 32.25
07/4/2017 2 07/4/2017 — 06/4/2019 07/4/2019 — 07/4/2024 32.25
07/4/2017 3 07/4/2017 — 06/4/2020 07/4/2020 — 07/4/2025 32.25
10/4/2018 T1 10/4/2018 — 09/4/2019 10/4/2019 — 10/4/2024 32.25
10/4/2018 2 10/4/2018 — 09/4/2020 10/4/2020 — 10/4/2025 32.25
10/4/2018 3 10/4/2018 — 09/4/2021 10/4/2021 — 10/4/2026 32.25
19/7/2019 T1 19/7/2019 — 18/7/2020 19/7/2020 — 19/7/2025 22.45
19/7/12019 2 19/7/2019 — 18/7/2021 19/7/2021 - 19/7/12026 22.45
19/7/2019 3 19/7/2019 — 18/7/2022 19/7/2022 — 19/7/2027 22.45
07/4/2020 T1 07/4/2020 — 06/4/2021 07/4/2021 - 07/4/2026 16.58
07/4/2020 > 07/4/2020 - 06/4/2022 07/4/2022 - 07/4/2027 16.58
07/4/2020 73 07/4/2020 - 06/4/2023 07/4/2023 - 07/4/2028 16.58




RERTERAA

EEEREE(E)

2021 F 3 145

RIRERE
#01/1/2021 #31/12/2021
wA ®F B & RATEE BH T KM 5 RATHE
Efb22ELA ** 03/5/20132 150,000 - - 150,000 0
02/5/2014° 162,0007 - - 162,000 0
02/5/20142 163,5007 - - 50,000 113,500
04/5/20152 250,000™ - - 250,000 0
04/5/2015? 250,000 - - 50,000 200,000
04/5/20152 215,746™ - - 50,000 165,746
08/4/2016? 100,000 - - - 100,000
08/4/2016° 200,000 - - 50,000 150,000
08/4/2016° 250,0007 - - 50,000 200,000
07/4/2017° 250,000™ - - 50,000 200,000
07/4/2017° 250,000™ - - 50,000 200,000
07/4/20172 187,500 - - 37,500 150,000
10/4/2018? 300,000™ - - 100,000 200,000
10/4/20187 212,500 - - 50,000 162,500
10/4/2018? 212,500 - - - 212,500
19/7/2019° 195,500 - - 50,000 145,500
19/7/2019° 195,500 - - - 195,500
19/7/2019° 196,5007 - - - 196,500
07/4/2020° 162,000™ - - - 162,000
07/4/2020? 162,0007 - - - 162,000
07/4/2020° 163,500 - - - 163,500
13/4/2021° - 50,000 - - 50,000
13/4/2021° - 50,0007 - - 50,000
13/4/2021° - 50,0007 - - 50,000
*REE (EMEIER) BT [EFAX ] TIEMES -
B REASETFAITANES « ERKIFARITES BIEEN/ BIEFZERRIE -
s
a  R2013FF 2020 F1Z T HIZARIEFIE -
BIRTTIENE
BrAaH 5 B FTHER] B (T)
03/5/2013 73 03/5/2013 - 02/5/2016 03/5/2016 — 03/5/2021 31.40
02/5/2014 72 02/5/2014 - 01/5/2016 02/5/2016 — 02/5/2021 32.50
02/5/2014 73 02/5/2014 - 01/5/2017 02/5/2017 — 02/5/2022 32.50
04/5/2015 T1 04/5/2015 - 03/5/2016 04/5/2016 — 04/5/2021 34.15
04/5/2015 2 04/5/2015 — 03/5/2017 04/5/2017 — 04/5/2022 34.15
04/5/2015 73 04/5/2015 — 03/5/2018 04/5/2018 — 04/5/2023 34.15
08/4/2016 T1 08/4/2016 — 07/4/2017 08/4/2017 — 08/4/2022 28.45
08/4/2016 2 08/4/2016 — 07/4/2018 08/4/2018 — 08/4/2023 28.45
08/4/2016 73 08/4/2016 — 07/4/2019 08/4/2019 — 08/4/2024 28.45
07/4/2017 T1 07/4/2017 — 06/4/2018 07/4/2018 — 07/4/2023 32.25
07/4/2017 T2 07/4/2017 — 06/4/2019 07/4/2019 — 07/4/2024 32.25
07/4/2017 73 07/4/2017 — 06/4/2020 07/4/2020 — 07/4/2025 32.25
10/4/2018 T1 10/4/2018 — 09/4/2019 10/4/2019 — 10/4/2024 32.25
10/4/2018 2 10/4/2018 — 09/4/2020 10/4/2020 — 10/4/2025 32.25
10/4/2018 73 10/4/2018 — 09/4/2021 10/4/2021 - 10/4/2026 32.25
19/7/2019 T1 19/7/2019 — 18/7/2020 19/7/2020 — 19/7/2025 22.45
19/7/2019 72 19/7/2019 — 18/7/2021 19/7/2021 - 19/7/2026 22.45
19/7/2019 73 19/7/2019 - 18/7/2022 19/7/2022 — 19/7/2027 22.45
07/4/2020 T1 07/4/2020 — 06/4/2021 07/4/2021 - 07/4/2026 16.58
07/4/2020 2 07/4/2020 — 06/4/2022 07/4/2022 — 07/4/2027 16.58
07/4/2020 T3 07/4/2020 — 06/4/2023 07/4/2023 — 07/4/2028 16.58
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b Share options granted in year 2021:

(i) Particulars:

Exercise Price Per Share

Date of Grant Tranche Vesting Period Exercise Period HK$
13/4/2021 T1 13/4/2021 — 12/4/2022 13/4/2022 — 13/4/2027 17.08
13/4/2021 2 13/4/2021 - 12/4/2023 13/4/2023 - 13/4/2028 17.08
13/4/2021 73 13/4/2021 - 12/4/2024 13/4/2024 - 13/4/2029 17.08

(i) The closing price of the shares of the Bank on 12th April, 2021 (being the business day immediately preceding 13th April, 2021 on
which the options were granted) was HK$16.60.

(iii) Fair value of share options granted during the year ended 31st December, 2021 and the assumptions are set out in Note 39 to
the accounts.

(2) No share options were exercised or cancelled during the year ended 31st December, 2021.
(3) The accounting policy adopted for share options is set out in Note 2(y)(iv) on the accounts.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2021, none of the Directors or Co-Chief Executives of the Bank or their
spouses or children under 18 years of age were granted or exercised any right to subscribe for any equity or debt
securities of the Bank or any of its associated corporations.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the 2021 Scheme disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the 2021 Scheme:

(@  The 2021 Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
that eligible persons had made or may make to the Group.

(b) The 2021 Scheme will provide the eligible persons with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Bank
with the view to motivating the eligible persons to optimise their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group.

2. Participants of the 2021 Scheme:

The Board may at its discretion grant options to any employees including Executive Directors and Co-Chief Executives
of the Group.

3. Total number of shares available for issue under the 2021 Scheme and % of issued shares at 31st December, 2021:

The maximum number of Shares that may be issued upon the exercise of the options that may be granted under the
2021 Scheme is 145,949,434 Shares, being 5% of the total number of issued Shares as at the date of approval of the
2021 Scheme, and 4.99% as at 31st December, 2021.

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, no options had been granted under the 2021 Scheme since its Adoption
Date (i.e. 6th May, 2021). Therefore, no shares were available for issue under the 2021 Scheme as at 31st December, 2021.

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2021 Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible persons, which if exercised in full would result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share options already granted or to be granted to such eligible person
under the 2021 Scheme or any other schemes (which are subject to regulation under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules)
of the Bank (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the issued Shares as at the date of such new grant. Any grant of further
options above this limit shall be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the rules of the 2021 Scheme.
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5. The period within which the shares must be taken up under an option:

Beginning on the vesting date of such options, the date on which such option is vested and becomes exercisable, and
ending on the fifth anniversary of the vesting date thereof, except as provided otherwise in the rules of the 2021 Scheme.

6. The minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised:

From the Date of Grant of such options up to the day immediately before the vesting date thereof.

7. The amount payable on application or acceptance of the option and the period within which payments or
calls must or may be made or loans for such purposes must be paid:

Not applicable.

8. The basis of determining the exercise price:
The exercise price is determined by the Directors and being not less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the Bank’s ordinary shares in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant options; and

(b) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of the Bank’s ordinary shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant options.

9. Vesting of Options:

Save as provided otherwise in the rules of the 2021 Scheme, an option granted under the 2021 Scheme shall be
vested and become exercisable as follows:

(@ not more than one third of the option shall be vested and become exercisable on the first anniversary of the
Date of Grant;

(b)  not more than one third of the option shall be vested and become exercisable on the second anniversary of the
Date of Grant; and

(©)  the remaining balance of the option shall be vested and become exercisable on the third anniversary of the Date
of Grant.

10. The remaining life of the 2021 Scheme:

The Scheme Period will end on 5th May, 2026.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31st December, 2021, the interests or short positions of substantial shareholders and other persons in the shares
and underlying shares of the Bank as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO (the

“Register”) were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Bank:

% of issued

Name Capacity and nature No. of shares voting Shares
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Beneficial owner 510,003,673' 19.01
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. Interest of corporation 510,003,673 19.01
Criteria Caixa, S.A., Sociedad Unipersonal Beneficial owner 464,287,3192 17.30
Fundacién Bancaria Caixa d'Estalvis i Pensions Interest of corporation 464,287,3192 17.30
de Barcelona, “la Caixa”
Guoco Management Company Limited Beneficial owner 435,691,13734 14.925
Guoco Group Limited Interest of corporation 435,691,1373 14.92
Guoline Overseas Limited Interest of corporation 435,691,1373 14.92°
GuolLine Capital Assets Limited Interest of corporation 435,691,137° 14.92
QUEK Leng Chan Interest of corporation 435,691,1373 14.92
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. Interest of corporation 435,691,1374 14.92
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited Interest of corporation 435,691,1374 14.92
KWEK Leng Kee Interest of corporation 435,691,1374 14.92
Elliott International Special, GP, LLC Interest of corporation 226,474,173% 7.75
Elliott Investment Management GP LLC Investment Manager 246,510,173 8.43

Notes:

1

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. owned a 100% interest in Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation. Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group,
Inc. was deemed to be interested in the 510,003,673 shares of the Bank held by Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation.

The Bank had been notified that the shareholdings of the above 2 corporations had been increased such that, as at 31st December, 2021,
they stood at 574,516,317 shares (equivalent to approximately 19.66% of the issued shares of the Bank as at 31st December, 2021). Such
increases in shareholdings were not required to be disclosed under Part XV of the SFO.

As at 31st December, 2021, Fundacion Bancaria Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona, "la Caixa" (“la Caixa”) owned a 100% interest in
Criteria Caixa, S.A., Sociedad Unipersonal (“Criteria Caixa”). la Caixa was deemed to be interested in the 464,287,319 shares of the Bank held
by Criteria Caixa.

The Bank had been notified that the shareholdings of the above 2 corporations had been increased such that, as at 31st December, 2021,
they stood at 508,519,684 shares (equivalent to approximately 17.40% of the issued shares of the Bank as at 31st December, 2021). Such
increases in shareholdings were not required to be disclosed under Part XV of the SFO.

The references to 435,691,137 shares of the Bank in Notes 3 and 4 relate to the same block of shares. Guoco Management Company Limited
was the beneficial owner of 435,691,137 shares (equivalent to approximately 14.92% of the issued shares of the Bank as at 16th April,
2021, i.e. at the time of disclosure pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, and approximately 14.91% of the issued shares of the Bank as at 31st
December, 2021). GuolLine Overseas Limited held a 71.88% interest in Guoco Group Limited which in turn owned a 100% interest in Guoco
Management Company Limited. GuoLine Capital Assets Limited was deemed to be interested in the 435,691,137 shares held by Guoco
Management Company Limited by virtue of its 100% interest in GuoLine Overseas Limited. GuoLine Overseas Limited and Guoco Group
Limited were all deemed to be interested in the 435,691,137 shares held by Guoco Management Company Limited.

QUEK Leng Chan was deemed to be interested in the 435,691,137 shares held by Guoco Management Company Limited by virtue of his
49.11% interest in GuoLine Capital Assets Limited.

The references to 435,691,137 shares of the Bank in Notes 3 and 4 relate to the same block of shares. Guoline Capital Assets Limited was
34.49% held by Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. which was in turn 33.59% held by Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited.
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. and Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited were deemed to be interested in the 435,691,137
shares (equivalent to approximately 14.92% of the issued shares of the Bank as at 16th April, 2021, i.e. at the time of disclosure pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO, and approximately 14.91% of the issued shares of the Bank as at 31st December, 2021) held by Guoco Management
Company Limited by virtue of their interests in GuolLine Capital Assets Limited.

KWEK Leng Kee was deemed to be interested in the 435,691,137 shares held by Guoco Management Company Limited by virtue of his
41.92% interest in Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited.

GuolLine Overseas Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuoLine Capital Assets Limited and Guoco Management Company Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited. With the filing of the substantial shareholder notices by GuoLine Capital Assets Limited and
Guoco Group Limited, GuolLine Overseas Limited and Guoco Management Company Limited do not need to file their respective substantial
shareholder notices under the “wholly-owned group exemption” as provided in the SFO.
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6  Elliott International Special GP, LLC ("EISGP") was deemed to be interested in these shares comprising 117,872,021 shares held by Elliott
International L.P. (“EILP"), 108,601,552 shares held by Wakeland Securities L.P., 200 shares held by Milton Investments Ltd, 200 shares held
by Parlan Investments Ltd and 200 shares held by Trevet Investments Ltd. Please also refer to note 7 below.

Wakeland Securities L.P., Milton Investments Ltd, Parlan Investments Ltd and Trevet Investments Ltd. were 100% controlled by EILP which in
turn was 100% controlled by Hambledon, Inc..

Hambledon, Inc. was 100% controlled by EISGP which is accustomed to act in accordance with the directions of Paul Singer.

7 Elliott Investment Management GP LLC (“"EIMGP”), as Investment Manager, was deemed to be interested in these shares comprising those
shares disclosed in note 6 above, 20,035,600 shares held by The Liverpool Limited Partnership, 200 shares held by Artan Investments Ltd and
200 shares held by Frasco Investments Ltd. EIMGP 100% controls Elliott Investment Management L.P., which has investment discretion with
respect to all these shares.

EIMGP is accustomed to act in accordance with the directions of Paul Singer.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Bank were recorded
in the Register.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year, other than the Staff Share Option Schemes as set out in the above section under “Information on Share
Options” and Notes 2(y)(iv) and 39 to the accounts, the Bank has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this Report, the Bank has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Bank and within the knowledge of the Directors.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year for charitable and community purposes amounted to approximately
HK$12 million (2020: HK$11 million).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. Information on the corporate governance

practices adopted by the Bank is set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE) RULES AND THE DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS IN PART 6 OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (RESOLUTION) (LOSS-ABSORBING
CAPACITY REQUIREMENTS — BANKING SECTOR) RULES

The Annual Report for the financial year ended 31st December, 2021 complies with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules and the disclosure requirements in Part 6 of Financial Institutions (Resolution)
(Loss-absorbing Capacity Requirements — Banking Sector) Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Bank is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
David LI Kwok-po

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th February, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annual Report 2021

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BANK OF EAST ASIA, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 170 to 363, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Audiitors responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment allowances of loans and advances to customers
Refer to notes 2(h)(vii), 28(a), 43(a)(ix) to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s advances to customers as at 31 December 2021 amounted
to HK$548,808 million, with total expected credit losses (“ECL")
amounting to HK$4,371 million as at 31 December 2021. Hong Kong
and Mainland China Operations contributed to 55.6% and 27.3% of the
Group's advances to customers, and 46.8% and 41.5% of the Group’s
total ECL respectively.

Impairment allowances of loans and advances to customers across
the banking industry continues to be an area of elevated focus as the
recovery from the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic continues.

Our audit procedures to assess the Group's impairment allowances
on loans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost with
regards to the methodology, data and assumptions used in the estimate
included the following:

Methodology

e understanding and assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls on the ECL model
monitoring and governance process and on the controls around
the final review and determination of impairment allowances by
management;

e involving credit risk specialists in assessing the reliability of the
ECL models used by management in determining impairment
allowances; and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Impairment allowances of loans and advances to customers

Refer to notes 2(h)(vii), 28(a), 43(a)(ix) to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group applies its ECL models to assess impairment allowances of
loans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost. Loan
exposures that are not already credit-impaired are classified as stage 1 on
origination and a 12-month ECL provision is recognised. Loan exposures
will remain in stage 1 until they are repaid, experience a significant
increase in credit risk (stage 2) or become credit-impaired (stage 3), for
which a lifetime ECL provision is recognised.

The difficulty in identifying those loans which may have significant
increase in credit risk or impaired has remained high. Past historical
experience on repayment may be less representative of the borrowers’
financial conditions and therefore more judgement is required.

Impairment allowances may be materially misstated if the exposures
with a significant increase in credit risk are not properly identified and
classified in the appropriate stages.

The Group applies its ECL models to assess impairment allowances of
loans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost. Loan
exposures that are not already credit-impaired are classified as stage 1 on
origination and a 12-month ECL provision is recognised. Loan exposures
will remain in stage 1 until they are repaid, experience a significant
increase in credit risk (stage 2) or become credit-impaired (stage 3). A
lifetime ECL provision is recognized for loans which are in stage 2 and
stage 3.

e in respect of assessing the accuracy of ECL calculation, calculating
the amount of credit loss allowance for 12-month and life-time
credit losses using the ECL models based on the above parameters
and assumptions for a sample of loans and advances to customers
where the credit risk of the loan has not, or has, increased
significantly since initial recognition, respectively and comparing to
the results from the Group;

Data

e understanding and assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls on financial reporting
over approval, recording and monitoring of loans measured at
amortised cost, including the recording of key data elements used in
the ECL model ;

e involving credit risk specialists in assessing the appropriateness of
the key parameters in the ECL models, including the probability of
default, loss given default, exposure at default and discount rate;

e assessing the completeness and accuracy of data used for the
key parameters in the ECL models, by comparing individual loan
information on a sample basis with the underlying agreements and
other related documentation to assess the accuracy of the loan
information in the ECL models. For key parameters derived from
external data, we selected samples to inspect the accuracy of such
data by comparing them with publicly available sources; and

e for key parameters used in the ECL models which were derived
from system-generated internal data, assessing the accuracy of
input data by comparing the input data with original documents
on a sample basis. We involved our information technology
specialists in assessing the information systems controls critical
to the financial reporting process, such as the compilation of the
overdue reports for advances to customers. We also assessed the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of relevant
automated application controls within these systems, as well as key
internal controls over these underlying systems, including controls
over access to these systems and controls over data and change
management;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Impairment allowances of loans and advances to customers

Refer to notes 2(h)(vii), 28(a), 43(a)(ix) to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The determination of impairment allowances using the ECL models is
subject to a number of key parameters and assumptions, including the
identification of loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss
given default, exposures at default and discount rate, adjustments for
forward-looking information and other adjustment factors. Management
judgment is involved in the selection of those parameters and the
application of the assumptions.

In particular, the determination of the impairment allowances is heavily
dependent on the external macro environment and the Group’s internal
credit risk management strategy. The expected credit losses are derived
from estimates including the historical losses, internal and external credit
grading and other adjustment factors. The expected credit losses for
personal loans are derived from estimates whereby management takes
into consideration historical overdue data, the historical loss experience
for personal loans and other adjustment factors.

Management also exercises judgement in determining the quantum of
loss given default based on a range of factors. These include available
remedies for recovery, the financial situation of the borrower, the
recoverable amount of collateral, the macroeconomic factors, the
seniority of the claim and the existence and cooperativeness of other
creditors. Management refers to valuation reports issued by qualified
third party valuers and considers the influence of various factors including
the market price, location and use when assessing the value of property
held as collateral. The enforceability, timing and means of realisation
of collateral can also have an impact on the recoverable amount from
collateral and, therefore, the amount of impairment allowances as at the
end of the reporting period. The assessment of the recoverable amount
of collateral is particularly challenging in Mainland China as the extent of
judgement exercised by management in the process of determining the
strategy of recovery and assessing the collateral value of these exposures
is high. As a result, the impairment allowances of loans and advances to
customers in this particular part of business is subject to a higher inherent
risk of material misstatements.

Assumptions

understanding and assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls on financial reporting
over the credit grading process;

understanding and assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls on the monitoring
and governance process for the assumptions used in the ECL
models;

involving credit risk specialists in assessing the appropriateness of the
key assumptions in the ECL models, including the identification of
loss stages, adjustments for forward-looking information and other
management adjustments;

for key parameters involving judgement, critically assessing
input parameters by seeking evidence from external sources and
comparing it to the Group’s internal records including historical loss
experience and type of collateral. As part of these procedures, we
challenged the reasons for modifications to estimates and input
parameters and considered the consistency of judgement. We
compared the economic factors used in the models with market
information to assess whether they were aligned with market and
economic development;

evaluating the validity of management’s assessment on whether
the credit risk of the loan has, or has not, increased significantly
since initial recognition and whether the loan is credit-impaired by
selecting samples for which we checked loan overdue information,
made enquiries of the credit managers about the borrowers’
business operations, checked borrowers' financial information
and researched market information about borrowers’ businesses.
Our sample of loans and advances to customers selected for
credit review, including in Mainland China Operations, focused on
accounts with high risk characteristics, including industries, features
of loan arrangements, types of collateral and credit quality of the
accounts;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Impairment allowances of loans and advances to customers

Refer to notes 2(h)(vii), 28(a), 43(a)(ix) to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified the impairment allowances of loans and advances to
customers measured at amortised cost as a key audit matter because of
the complexity of the inherent uncertainty and management judgment
involved and because of its significance to the financial results and capital
of the Group.

for selected samples of loans and advances to customers that
are credit-impaired, evaluating management’s assessment of
the recoverable amount of the exposure including evaluating
management’s assessment of the value of any property collateral
held by comparison with market prices based on the location and
use of the property and the prices of neighbouring properties.
We also evaluated the timing and means of realisation of other
collateral, evaluated the forecast cash flows, challenged the
viability of the Group's recovery plans and evaluated other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contract terms; and

assessing the appropriateness of material manual adjustments and
overlays on ECL model outputs.

Other audit procedures to assess the Group'’s impairment allowances on

loans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost included
the following:

in respect of evaluating the accounting treatments of disposal
of impaired loans during the year, inspecting the loan disposal
agreements and documents, enquiring of management and
assessing whether the transactions are recognised appropriately;
and

evaluating whether the presentation and disclosures on impairment
allowances of loans and advances to customers measured at
amortised cost meet the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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Impairment assessment of an investment in associate, AFFIN Bank Berhad (“AFFIN")

Refer to notes 2(r), 31 to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The quoted market price of the Group's investment in AFFIN has been
persistently below the carrying amount for a period of time. This is
considered an indicator of potential impairment.

HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” requires recognition of impairment loss
when the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use (“VIU").
An impairment test was performed by the Group using a VIU model to
estimate the investment’s value assuming the Group continues to hold
this investment.

As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amount based on the VIU
calculation was HK$3,975 million. The recoverable amount was higher
than the carrying value of HK$3,504 million and no impairment charge
was recognised in 2021.

The VIU model is based on the requirements in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” and is dependent on many assumptions, both short-term
and long-term in nature. These assumptions, which are judgemental,
are derived from a combination of management estimates, forecasts
and market data. The assumptions considered the current levels of
uncertainty, due to the continuing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, on
the economy in Malaysia.

Our audit procedures to assess the carrying value of the Group's
investment in AFFIN with regards to methodology, data and assumptions
used in the estimate included the following:

Methodology
® engaging our valuation specialists to evaluate the methodology used
in the VIU calculation;

Data

e comparing AFFIN's budgeted income and profits with the
assumptions used by management in its discounted cash flow
forecast; and

e comparing the actual results of AFFIN for the past years to forecasts
prepared by management for the preceding years to assess the
accuracy of management’s forecasting process;

Assumptions

e discussing with management, who sit on the board of AFFIN, to
understand business performance and future business plans of
AFFIN;

e evaluating the assumptions and judgements adopted by
management in its discounted cash flow forecast relating to
growth rates, terminal value and the discount rate used to derive
the recoverable amount of the Group's investment in AFFIN,
with support of our valuation specialists, through the following
procedures:

e conducting research on the assumptions and judgements
relating to growth rates, terminal value and the discount rate
based on market information available;

e performing an alternative calculation of the discount rate and
comparing this calculation with the discount rate applied by
management to assess reasonableness of the discount rate used
by management;

e evaluating the assumptions used in forecasting regulatory
capital adjustments required and checking the mathematical
accuracy of the forecast regulatory capital adjustments
required;

e comparing the estimated key performance indicators and
ratios with externally derived data, comparable companies and
analysts’ reports to assess their reasonableness;
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Impairment assessment of an investment in associate, AFFIN Bank Berhad (“AFFIN")

Refer to notes 2(r), 31 to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

A number of key judgements were made by management in determining
the inputs for the VIU calculation which included:

e forecast cash flows;

o forecast regulatory capital adjustments required;
e growth rates and terminal values; and

e discount rate applied to the forecast cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of the Group's investment
in AFFIN as a key audit matter because of the increased uncertainty
of the VIU estimation and its significance to the consolidated financial
statements, and because assessing the key assumptions involved a
significant degree of management judgement which may affect both the
carrying value of the Group’s investment in AFFIN at year end and amount
of impairment charge for the year.

e evaluating the sensitivity analyses prepared by management for
each of the key assumptions adopted in the discounted cash flow
forecast, including growth rates applied, cash flow forecast, and
discount rate assumptions, and considering any management bias in
formulating these assumptions; and

e evaluating the probabilities assigned by management to the various
economic scenarios in the VIU calculation by assessing whether they
were aligned with market and economic development.

In addition to the above audit procedures, we also considered whether
the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessment of the Group’s investment in AFFIN reflected the
risks inherent in the key assumptions with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'’S

REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is McSheaffrey, Paul Kevin.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 February 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ekl ax

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 & F20214F 12531 H 1L FE
2021 2020
Notes A7 BGLEIVINEEAEE- PN HKS Mn BB E T
Interest income FEHA 5 18,055 21,107
Interest income calculated using the BEMREREEDN
effective interest method RN 19,123 21,718
Other interest expense HAiF B (1,068) (611)
Interest expense FEZH 6 (6,870) (9,557)
Net interest income R BN 11,185 11,550
Fee and commission income MR8 RAS KA 7 3,916 3,714
Fee and commission expense REERAEZ M (847) (792)
Net fee and commission income RISE KA KA FE 3,069 2,922
Net trading profit RS mMEE 8 879 984
Net result on financial instruments BREEARMATEESR
at FVTPL TEMFRR 9 234 198
Net result on financial assets measured BRZEANEARKERFEE
at FvOC FREENFRR 10 45 153
Net loss on sale of investments measured HERBHERATEREY
at amortised cost FEE (14) (14)
Net hedging profit HihRFFE 11 144 62
Net insurance profit N E el 12(a) 411 771
Other operating income H At 48 & A 13 330 684
Non-interest income JEF B A 5,098 5,760
Operating income "IN 16,283 17,310
Operating expenses mEZ 14 (9,321) (8,963)
Operating profit before impairment losses RIBRIREIE K 2 & HF 6,962 8,347
Impairment losses on financial instruments & & T AR EEX 15 (1,679) (4,674)
Impairment losses on assets held for sale BAEELEAERBRERX - (12)
Impairment losses on intangible assets EVEEREBKX 32(b) - )
Impairment losses on associate A YNEINRIE = ES 31 - (402)
Impairment losses REE R (1,679) (5,090)
Operating profit after impairment losses BEMBRIAERLRE ZEEER 5,283 3,257
Net profit on sale of assets held for sale HERBIELHEEEZ FRM 16 1,042 32
Net profit on disposal of subsidiaries/ HE S, A A
associates 23 A 181 341
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets HERTEEFER 17 4 (33)
Valuation losses on investment properties BERREVMEEE 33 (132) (301)
Share of profits less losses of associates and ~ JE{FEE & A B K& B EEF
joint ventures R IE1E 31 (234) 310
Profit for the year before taxation FENBRBATRF 6,136 3,606
Income tax PRIS T 18 (823) 79
Profit for the year FE MR F 5,313 3,685
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

REWER (E)

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 &iZ2021F 12531 H 1L FE

2021 2020
Notes fz# BLGLERLNERAER-PAN  HKS Mn BB H &

Attributable to: AEER:
Owners of the parent REERR 42(k) 5,270 3,614
Non-controlling interests ESE G 43 71
Profit for the year FE AR 5313 3,685
HKS 8% 7T HK$ % 7T
Earnings per share BRAF
Basic YN 20 1.53 0.97
Diluted g 20 1.53 0.97

The notes on pages 179 to 363 form part of these financial statements. Details of
dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Bank attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in Note 19.

1792363 A MEBAUBREZ — 8D
B R E M R T AITRR 2 BB R
EEFHNHE19
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeZEBRRE
2021 2020
Notes fifi7 BGLCINORERAEE- PN HKS Mn BB E T

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 & F20214F 12531 H 1L FE

Net profit %8 Al 5313 3,685
Other comprehensive income for the year: FENEMEERE
Items that will not be reclassified to
income statement: TAEEKERMIER
Premises: 7k
— unrealised surplus on revaluation of —ERTIMEENKRER
premises vackia 42(b) 5 57
— deferred taxes —RIERIE 42(b) 6 (@)
Fair value reserve (equity instruments): NTEERFE(RATIA)
— net change in fair value —AFEEZY 42(g) (571) 228
— deferred taxes —EERIE 42(g) 1 12
Liability credit reserve: BEEERE
— net change in fair value attributable to -BEEEEHEERRKM
Group's own credit risk SIBMATEES 35,42() (18) (29)
~ deferred taxes —RFEHIA 42(3) 4 4
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement: VA& FTaEEEE s R EVIAE
Fair value reserve (debt instruments): NTEERE(BEIA)
— net change in fair value —NFEBEZE 42(g) 735 439
— amount transferred to income statement  — R H &R E AR K
on disposal k| 42(g) (492) (618)
- on amortisation — B84 42(g) - M
— deferred taxes —RERIE 42(g) (213) 74
Hedging reserve (cash flow hedges): e R mEh) -
— effective portion of changes in fair value —$HRITARFEEZHEN
of hedging instruments BREH 42(h) - 2
— fair value change transferred to income —BARGROATEER
statement ) 42(h) - €)
Share of changes in equity of associates and (GBS & N A A B D ¥R
joint ventures & 42() (165) (17)
Exchange differences arising from TSR VNCTI
translation of accounts/disposal of BERNTREEDCEMIRIE
overseas branches, subsidiaries, WE/HEMEENER
associates and joint ventures ] 757 1,931
Other comprehensive income Hi2mEla 49 2,075
Total comprehensive income SEW LR 5,362 5,760
Total comprehensive income attributable to: ~ 2 HE Mz BB A BER ¢
Owners of the parent AEERR 5,319 5,688
Non-controlling interests IR 43 72
5,362 5,760

The notes on pages 179 to 363 form part of these financial statements.

F1795363 B 2 MABABBHRE 2 —HH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SEMBRAE

As at 31st December, 2021 2021412531 H

2021 2020
Notes fi77 BLGLERIRELAER-PAN  HKS Mn BB B & T

2021 F3, 173

ASSETS BE
Cash and balances with banks Be RERTNET 24 55,088 56,377
Placements with and advances to banks FERITHNERRBRK 25 74,742 66,849
Trade bills BS9EE 26 10,772 11,793
Trading assets RHRBEE 27 2,483 1,190
Derivative assets TTETREE 45(b)i) 3,381 8,059
Loans and advances to customers BEFERREBR 28 544,437 509,070
Investment securities REES 29 147,507 144,171
Investments in associates and joint ventures ~ BtZ N B RABLERE 31 8,947 9,182
Fixed assets ElE&E 33 13,844 14,065
~ Investment properties —REME 4,992 4,961
— Other properties and equipment —HEmERZE 8,015 8,208
— Right-of-use assets —FRAEEE 837 896
Goodwill and intangible assets EERENAE 32 1,885 1,912
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 36(b) 1,861 2,022
Other assets HmEE 34 42,523 59,730
— Assets held for sale —REEHEEE 55 2,264 26,657
- Others —Hft 40,259 33,073
Total Assets BERE 907,470 884,420
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES RRERREE
Deposits and balances of banks RITE R R AR 31,766 31,143
- Designated at fair value through —BERBBERARMR
profit or loss NEEE 35 3,639 5,442
— At amortised cost —BHERA 28,127 25,701
Deposits from customers BFEER 633,505 589,202
Trading liabilities RHBBER 5 =
Derivative liabilities TTETABRE 5,050 13,016
Certificates of deposit issued BEITERE 64,327 60,852
- Designated at fair value through —EBERABBEBERURMR
profit or loss NEEE 35 32,618 24,494
— At amortised cost — B R 31,709 36,358
Current taxation REFHIF 36(a) 958 624
Debt securities issued BEITEKES 5,847 5,057
- Designated at fair value through —EERABBEBERURMR
profit or loss NYEEE 35 620 155
— At amortised cost — BN 5,227 4,902
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 36(b) 559 460
Other liabilities Hib & & 37 42,915 59,959
~ Liabilities held for sale —-RHEELEERE 55 1,637 26,864
~ Others —Hfth 41,278 33,095
Loan capital — at amortised cost EEER — BHEKA 38 6,488 10,311
Total Liabilities aEEE 791,420 770,624
Share capital EREN 40 41,645 41,557
Reserves Gl 42 60,133 57,328
Total equity attributable to owners
of the parent GERAEERAEREE 101,778 98,885
Additional equity instruments BOMERATA 41 13,968 13,968
Non-controlling interests R 304 943
Total Equity MR e 116,050 113,796
Total Equity and Liabilities R ER R E ELEE 907,470 884,420
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 24th February, 2022. EESN2022F2 B24 Bz RIRIER T o
Executive Chairman David LI Kwok-po HiTEE TEHE
Co-Chief Executives Adrian David LI Man-kiu BT A% ERE
Brian David LI Man-bun TR
Director Meocre LI Kwok-wing FE &

The notes on pages 179 to 363 form part of these financial statements. FI179ZE363EZMEBANBEREZ — 5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReEREBR

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 & F20214F 12531 H 1L FE

Capital
Revaluation esere -
reserve of Exchange  staffshare Liability Additional Non-
Share  General bk Capital revaluation  options  Fairvalue  Hedging credit Other  Retained equity  controlling Total
capital  reserve  premises  reserve reserve issued  reserve  reseve  reserve  reseves'  profits Total instruments  interests equity

BiE-
fistEfh iEfE DRARR  ATEE afEE EARE
Bk -Rik ] : it fif  HhGR fif  AbRE ERE a8 I5 FEREE BEARE
HKSMn — HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn  HKSMn
EYAET EMEET AWAET HWEET RMEET AMAET MWEET RMEET AMAET AWAET AMAET AMAET ANAET AMAEER AMAER

At 15t lanuary, 2021 R01E1A1H 055 13,657 1895 895 301 157 2465 - (2 5138 0852 98,885 13,968 93 1137%
Changes nequity By
Proft forthe year ERMEA - - - - - - - - - - M 500 - B 5313
Other comprehensive income £ 2 g - - 1 - 7 - (540) - (14) (163) - L] - - 1]
Totel comprehengie ncome 2 NG EE - - 1 - 1 - (540) - (19) (165) 5210 5319 - 5] 5,362

Shares isued n e of WA SR HIRE

didend (hore 49) Wz 8 - - - - - - - - - - 8 - - 8
Fuity setted shareased ~ DUR(AERAERH 2
transaction (ote 42/ ReWEOn - - - - - 19 - - - - - 19 - - 19
Transer 8% - 1 () - - (4 - - - m (19) - - - -
DistibutionDividends decared £ EREIAERZET
orapproved durng theyear S RERS - - - - - - - - - - 053 (25) - ) (258
Change of ownership in
subsidiaries WEATZEREES - - - - - - - - - - - - - (630) (630)
At 315t December, 2021 BNENA3NE 1,645 13,658 1905 895 1,058 152 1925 - (46) 5191 335 101778 13,968 304 116,050
1. Other reserves include statutory reserve and other reserves. 1. BEM@EEEELTEEREMERE -

The notes on pages 179 to 363 form part of these financial statements. E179F 363 A MEBAMBIHRK 2 —HH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

GAMBED R ()

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 &iZ20204F 12531 A 1L FE

Capttal
Revaluation Teserve -
reserve of Bichange  staff share Liabity Additondl Non-
Share  General bank Capital ~ revaluation ~~ options Fainvalue  Hedging cedit Other ~ Retained equty  controllng Total
el resene  premses  resene resene ived  resene resene  resene  resenes’ profis Total instuments  interests equity

g EfEf ATEE SEEE ERE
kE -Rik B ERER L BE  HAEE BE  EbER  2mE £ 15 #EhEE EALE
HKSMn HKSMn  HKSMno HKSMn HKSMn o HKSM o HKSMR HKSMn o HKSMno HKSMn HKSMno HKSMn o HKSMn o HKSMn HKSMn
#BBEn #¥EEm AREEn ABAET RYAET AYAET RMAET AMEEn AYREn AY¥REn A¥EEn AYAER AMAED AMAET AEAER

At 15t January, 2020 RUNEIA1R 4319 13,651 1848 1090 (1,629) 163 231 1 M 5347 3113 95,307 13,963 368 109638
Changes n equiy ERRY
Profitfor theyear ER g - = - - - - - - - - 36 3614 - i 3685
Other comprehensiveincome - 124 - - 5 - 1930 - 134 (1) ) (1) - 2074 - 1 W
Totel omprefiensiee ncome - 2E4&EE - - 53 - 1930 - 134 U] ) (17 3614 5,688 - n 5,760
Issue of additional equty
nstruments' BRI - - - - - - - - - - - - 5001 - 501
Sharesisued i leu of WRRERfHRE
diidend flote 49) (i) 178 - - - - - - - - - - 17 - - 1

Fquty sttedsharebased WA BZRIERHZ

asacionfloe ) REHE4N) - - - - - 1 - - - - - 1 - - 11
Tranfer 8K - 6 (3] (195) = (1) - = - (192) 404 - - - -
Distrution/Divdends decared A8 RE £

or approved durng the year  RERERS - - - - - - - - - - 2.215) 2275 - 5 23%9)
Change of ownership in
subsidares KBAAZER RS - - - - - - - - - - - - - 55 556
Redemption of addftional
equity insruments EOgiRATA - - - - - - - - - - ) (4 (01 - ()

At 31st December, 2020 0205128318 41,557 13,657 189 895 30 157 2465 - 3 5138 3852 98,885 13,968 93 1137%

1. In 2020, the Bank issued HK$5,037 million (USD650 million) undated non-cumulative 1. R2020%F ' A778775850.37 87T (6.5 (5%

subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities. Direct issuance costs of HK$16 million are TT) SR H R IEEIEFES —RIRATA -
accounted for as a deduction from the equity instruments. EEZETHAEE1,6008TABE AL I E
HIRA T A HIk:
2. In 2020, the Bank redeemed HK$5,016 million (USD650 million) undated non-cumulative 2. R2020% - A77ME[EE#50.16 (7T (6.5 (85
subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities issued in 2015. JL)R2015 FZ7TaESRI H IR &1 15589/
—RIRATA -
3. Other reserves include statutory reserve and other reserves. 3 EMBEEEELITEEREMERE -

The notes on pages 179 to 363 form part of these financial statements. F179E363AZMEBAABRR L —#5 -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FEBEERER
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 & F20214F 12531 H 1L FE

2021 2020
Notes 7t BGLENIREEAER- PN  HKS Mn B E T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REERTH
Profit for the year before taxation FE AR A 6,136 3,606
Adjustments for: HE
Charge for impairment losses on financial
instruments SRMITERERAXHE 1,679 4,674
Charge for impairment losses on assets REELEBERE
held for sale BAX 8 - 12
Charge for impairment losses on intangible
assets BREERBERAZE 32(b) - 2
Charge for impairment losses on associate B /X Rl (E 1B K 5 #5 - 402
Share of profits less losses of associates and ~ FE(GEEE A B] RA BB
joint ventures wm AR R 234 (310)
Net loss on sale of investments measured at I EREHM AT ERE 2
amortised cost FEE 14 14
Net profit on sale of debt securities HEBBEERENREAT
measured at FVOC| BEEBERFEM (95) (661)
Net profit on disposal of subsidiaries and HENBARRBEERRZ
associates el (181) (341)
Net profit on sale of assets held for sale HERAIEHEEEZ FH T (1,042) (32)
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets HERTEEZFER 4 33
Interest expense on debt securities issued BERTEBESFFMEX L 131 122
Interest expense on loan capital issued BEATEREEAFEZH 368 449
Interest expense on lease liabilities HERBNEZH 29 35
Depreciation on bank premises, furniture, 73k~ AL BB R
fixtures and equipment HETE 33 581 556
Depreciation on right-of-use assets CREEERE 33 374 425
Dividend income from equity securities BAZENENRENTEE
measured at FVOC| Befn 38 BB A 10 (22) (13)
Amortisation of intangible assets EAESH 14 14 14
Amortisation of premium/discount on debt ~ EETEBEFREEEAMN
securities and loan capital issued HIE/ s 1 8
Revaluation (gains)/losses on debt securities ~ EEEHTEHEFLEE
and loan capital issued AR (BF) /B (46) 33
Valuation losses on investment properties ERBREMEEBE 33 132 301
Equity settled share-based payment
expenses AR {D AERESFER 14,42(f) 19 "

8,340 9,340



(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Cash and balances with banks with original

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31st December, 2021

MEEEE) /R
RAHBBRAIBANELNRE

RERTERAA

2021 F£38, 177

RERERER (&

2021
Weyikza HKS Mn 8% 58T

2020
HK$ Mn & # B & T

)

BE2021F 12531 HIF FE

maturity beyond three months RIERITERNEF 1,492 1,775
Placements with and advances to banks
with original maturity beyond three JRANHARR & 318 A LA L RTT
months R KRB 378 15,641
Trade bills EEES 1,026 285
Trading assets RHRBEE (1,471) 261
BERBREREIRBMATE
Financial assets designated at FVTPL BENEREE - 446
Derivative assets SETREE 4,678 (2,366)
Loans and advances to customers BEFERRBR (36,838) (8,468)
Debt investment securities measured at
amortised cost REENAGTEEBIRARS (1,602) 896
Debt investment securities measured at BT ENENRBEATE
FVOCI B EEBREES (5.634) (15,174)
Debt investment securities mandatorily seHiREBER AR A TE
measured at FVTPL B BEBRER? 180 2,252
Non-trading equity securities mandatorily 58 1z BB B A R T (B
measured at FVTPL BIERHBERNE S 135 (1,820)
Other assets HiEE (10,684) 2,296
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: REARBE/ Ol
Deposits and balances of banks RITMIF R R A 623 3,228
Deposits from customers BEFER 44,303 15,675
Certificates of deposit issued BEITERE 3,461 (13,236)
Trading liabilities RHABER 5 =
Derivative liabilities TETAGE (7,966) 5,362
Other liabilities HiBE 9,976 4,119
Exchange adjustments BE 5 0 B (383) (1,095)
NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATIONS RETHHESRAFE 10,019 19,417
Income tax paid BRMREHR
Hong Kong profits tax paid BT (167) (1,539)
Outside Hong Kong profits tax paid BRHEINFIEH (176) (214)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FREREERTH RS FHE 9,676 17,664

The notes on pages 179 to 363 form part of these financial statements.

F179E363HEZMEBAYBRERZ —=/5 -
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CONSOLlDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
n'/T\ (=] EE: % I i ;!% ( fi= )

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 & Z20214F 12 531 A IEFE

2021 2020
Notes it BGLCINOPELAEE- PN HKS Mn BB E T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Dividends received from associates and
joint ventures H&HXW%QT&/—\QTL\%HQE’ - 61
Dividends received from equity securities L ER 3 A 2 T I s DA R B A
measured at FVOC| BERHEFRE 22 13
Purchase of fixed assets BABRTEE (605) (599)
Proceeds from disposal of other properties
and equipment HEHMYERBBENERE 113 5
Proceeds from sale of assets held for sale HERBELEEEMBRE 3,135 43
Proceeds from disposal of associates HEHE A RIS HIE - 906
Returns of/(additional) investments in
associates B A AR ARE, (M) 7 (61)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING
L ACTIVITIES RERAEBoASER 0 2672 . 368
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
Ordinary dividends paid A AR AR B (1,686) (1,358)
Distribution to Additional Tier 1 issue RETEIN-—RERTA
holders ESE=UN 19(0),42(k) (811) (792)
Issue of additional equity instruments BITHEINRATA - 5,021
Issue of debt securities BITBEBES 692 1,867
Issue of loan capital BITEEENR - 4,632
Payment of lease liabilities XNEEERE (388) (444)
Redemption of debt securities issued BEBEBRITEBES 4 (163)
Redemption of loan capital BEEHTEEER (3,898) (4,651)
Redemption of additional equity
instruments BEEINRATA - (5,040)
Interest paid on debt securities issued TRBBEITRBEELRFS (125) (117)
Interest paid on loan capital TREEERHNE (391) (560)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
,,,,,,,, ACTVITIES  FRREZEBZReRE® 000 66 (1,605
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS ReRERBESERFEM 5,737 16,427
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MMB1EZESRERES
1ST JANUARY 1HH 47(a) 113,702 94,638
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes BE R E B R 1,207 2,637
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R12AMAZEERERAES
31ST DECEMBER HE 47(a) 120,646 113,702
Cash flows from operating activities REREEBTHNRS
included: MERRE:
Interest received S WA 17,894 21,653
Interest paid FEZH 6,828 11,290
Dividend received GO 44 38

The notes on pages 179 to 363 form part of these financial statements. F179Z 363 B 2B AMBREZ —&5H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES EE XK

Bt ¥ 8 & I &

2.

The Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the provision of banking
and related financial services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FE=:HE

FITREMBAR ([KEE]D N ETEEBR
RERITRE @O BRS

(a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
HKFRS, which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRS, HKAS and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules.
A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
3 provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2021
comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is
historical cost except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— financial instruments classified as trading, designated or mandatorily measured
at fair value through profit or loss and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Note 2(h)(ii));

— derivative financial instruments (Notes 2(I) and 2(k)); and
— investment properties (Note 2(0)(ii)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(a) MEHEsIBHA

(b

~
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BB AEE R BRI REERTN
(CEEMBHEER)  YRAFEREEDN
BRI E R AR R R R AR AN o PHRE3 1R
HEBRERZSENMSIRETBRED
AR MZEEMRBEEREEARRN
ARMEARREFEHHOMBIHRE -
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BHE2021F12831 B IEFEMNGE B
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BN 51K T3 @ ETEOR -
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B RS AR M AR (&)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNnueD) F E 25T IBUEK (&)

(9]

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate

is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and

future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Details of judgements made by management in the application of HKFRS that

have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in Note 52.

Basis of Consolidation
These consolidated financial statements cover the consolidated position of the Bank

and all subsidiaries unless otherwise stated and the Group’s interest in associates

and joint ventures. For information required to be reported in accordance with the

Banking (Disclosures) Rules, the basis of consolidation is set out in Note 1 in the

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information.

0

Subsidiaries and Non-controlling interests

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year. Subsidiaries
are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by
the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Bank, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Bank. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the net
profit and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and equity shareholders of the Bank.

BRMG RRRAREFRE - HETRY
BZETH - SFAENEBIIRZETHRN
R MZETTELRR ARG
APMERT I R R R G 5T A AERR

FEMES2A - BIREERER Y BHRE
BEAZENCEBUBIRE LR FrERIRE
A e T B BA R AT B = B RIR

REEE

FRAINRISN - AIR B M BERERBEATR
HrEMBRRRAEEMGHE AR LA
BREZESNEAMRN - RIFGERITE (I
B)RADMERERNEN - FIRANES
EEDEAREEZ MM BEMME 1 51% -

() KB &I
RERMBHRRBEANTREMBNE
ARBESABEFEZ12HA318 1D
MR - B AR AAEEMZE 2
B -AKBEENHERERZERN -
SEERENLFTERUEGRTATZE
HAGBE®R  AIEAAREHZRER
BIRhIRE - AT AR B EGIEE - K
SEREEEENE) (BAKERE
ALFHBER) °

MEARZEAEMENEERALEE
FIERM A L ELRE M B RAANTE -
ERASEAMBHRRE  KREZHNE
% RHERERMENEEEZBHR
HIELRARBIVENIGHEH - RAR
BERAMNER  REEZMRXHMES
MAERBRETRAEMEE  BRER
NARERERE

FERESIEERREERNEEL TR
BRATZMBRRMERD » A
SEWAREZ SRR A & EKM NG
#OBSAEEER L HZERRES
NEaTMAEERNEERY -8 —
EBRHME  AEERERATE
BRI AR & IR L B A5 4 T B X =]
B R] R80T B EE DA 2 FF I AR o

RS AR A MR R AA AR
HEEFIR - BETBENARERR
DR  FFEREREANEEZEE
e RER NS BF M2
FIR - MAESAZ2EERRADBEF
EEEREARE TIFHERESER TR
BRASBEBRRER Z AR



(ii)

REH|TERDA

2021 F3 181

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(h)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate and
joint venture (Note 2(c)(ii)), and is offset against the gain or loss on the loss of
control of that subsidiary.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, if any (Note 2(r)).

Associates and joint ventures

The consolidated financial statements include the attributable share of
the results and reserves of associates and joint ventures based on financial
statements prepared at dates not earlier than three months prior to 31st
December each year.

An associate is a company in which the Group or the Bank has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the Bank and other
parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement.

(ii)

B RS dR AR MY AR (48)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %% R & MY &t (4R )

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNnueD) F E 25T IBUEK (&)

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method, unless they are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) (Note 2(ad)). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the associate or joint venture’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (Note 2(g) and
2(r)). Any excess of fair values of the investees’ net identifiable assets over the
cost of investment upon acquisition, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Any dividend income received from associates and joint ventures reduces the
carrying values of the investments in associates and joint ventures, respectively.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate or a
joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For these
purposes, the Group’s interest in the associate or the joint venture is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except when unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(h)).

The Bank accounts for the results of associates and joint ventures to the extent
of dividends received. Investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the Bank’s statement of financial position at cost less any impairment losses
(Note 2(r)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currencies transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) and derivative financial instruments are included in gains less losses from
trading securities or financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss. All
other exchange differences relating to monetary items are presented as gains less
losses from dealing in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising from translation of equity investments for which an election has been made
to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Items in the statement of financial position, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1st January, 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwiill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1st
January, 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to the
income statement when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(e) Interest

Effective interest rate

Interest income for financial assets held at either FVOCI or amortised cost, and
interest expense on all financial liabilities held at amortised cost is recognised in the
income statement using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial
liability.

B RS dR AR MY AR (48)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNnueD) F E 25T IBUEK (&)

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than
credit-impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but not expected credit losses. For
financial assets that were purchased or originated as credit-impaired on initial
recognition, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using estimated
future cash flows including expected credit losses (i.e. no expected credit loss
provision is required at initial recognition).

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees
and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

The Group adopts Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 (the “Phase 2 amendments”),
which allows a practical expedient for changes to the basis for determining
contractual cash flows to be treated as changes to a floating rate of interest,
provided certain conditions are met. The conditions include that the change is
necessary as a direct consequence of interest rate benchmark reform and that the
transition takes place on an economically equivalent basis (Note 3).

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The 'amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which
the financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance.

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial
asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to
the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to
the amortised cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired,
then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were purchased or originated as credit-impaired on initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the credit-adjusted effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income
does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.
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For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, please refer to Note
2(h)(vii).

Fee and Commission

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest
rate on a financial asset or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate
calculation (Note 2(e)).

Other fee and commission income is recognised in the income statement when
the corresponding service is provided. Origination or commitment fees received/
paid by the Group which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate. If it
is uncertain that a loan commitment will result in draw-down of a loan, then the
related loan commitment fee is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over
the commitment period.

Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees,
which are expensed when the services are received.

(g) Other Revenue Recognition

Other revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised
in the income statement as follows:

(i) Net income from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and
net trading income
Net income from financial instruments designated as at FVTPL, net income from
non-trading financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL and net trading
income comprises all gains and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued
coupon) of such financial assets and financial liabilities, together with foreign
exchange differences and dividend income attributable to these financial
instruments. Coupon interest from these financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at FVTPL is accrued and presented as interest income or interest
expense.

(ii) Finance income from finance leases
Finance income implicit in finance leases is recognised as interest income over
the period of the lease so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of return of the outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting
period.

(iii

=

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised as other operating
income in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
the income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNnueD) F E 25T IBUEK (&)

(iv) Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established unconditionally. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment is quoted ex-dividend.

Net insurance profit

The Group’s operating income from its insurance business is presented as net
insurance profit in the consolidated income statement. The Group follows the
relevant accounting policies for the recognition of such operating income. Gross
insurance premium income represents gross premiums received and receivable
in respect of long-term and general insurance business, net of discounts and
returns. Details of net insurance profit are set out in Note 12.

(h) Financial Instruments

0

Initial recognition

The Group initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets at FVTPL, investment securities classified
as measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI), derivative transactions or debts issued are recognised using
trade date accounting. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised using settlement date accounting.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which normally will be
equal to the transaction price plus, in case of a financial asset or financial liability
not held at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset or issue of the financial
liability. Transaction costs on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed immediately.

Any gains and losses of the financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair
value are recorded from the date of initial recognition.

Accrued contractual interests from financial assets and liabilities are presented
as accrued interest receivables and payables separately in the financial
statements.
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(i) Classification

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised
cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets
to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income — (Note 2(n)). This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Business model assessment BRE L
The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which AEEFTEEAAEOBAEAENEE
an asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business BAZER ARERERMEBER
is managed and information is provided to management. The information WIERREREREERNT N -
considered includes: ZERHERBIE
e the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of o HEHWBEIEBEME EARZEFR
those policies in practice. In particular, whether management’s strategy ROEBERBEE- LHRE EBEN
focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular REZFRBIA LTI BWA - 4
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the FRETHAEMEG HeREED
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows HRELAZSEERHECHNERE
through the sale of the assets; SRBHEREZRRSMOIR
GiEL
e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the o MAFHHAESHRRALAAEER
Group’'s management; ERERE
e the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the o FE/ERN (KHAERATHE
financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are HEREE) RRENEBRIARAAE
managed,; BZERR
e how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether o HEBEBABMMEESIHEE—FIW -
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the HESEREMEREENRFE
contractual cash flows collected; and B EBBE KRS REE &
e the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons o MAAMRMNEEHEE HEMHE
for such sales and its expectations about future sales activity. However, B3 HEREURHEEHRRHE
information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of EBH A - A HEFBHNE
an overall assessment of how the Group’s stated objective for managing the KIS ZE - R fERBRNA
financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised. SENMMERMENEREEERE
BIE RN BRI & i B 88 3T (A
B—&5 -
Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is RBEX SR B EB NIRRT EEEF
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither HMERANEREERBBIERIAR
held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash MATFEESSE  BAEBRFRERRE
flows and to sell financial assets. WREMRZA  TEREEREOERESR

RELESREEZR -

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and GRS RBMERZ A 2R
interest FiE

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the RUEBEFEMS (AN EERES R
financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the BEEVREIARNDTEE - [FE]
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount B TE 3 2 B W 0 5 [ B (B A I SRS TE
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks BAREBERSEANEARRIAKRE
and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin. B R B KRR A AR (7 40 7 D 1 &

RAMEEER) RMBRORE -
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In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Group considers:

e contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

e leverage features;

e prepayment and extension terms;

e terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g.
non-recourse asset arrangements); and

e features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodic
reset of interest rates).

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition,
except in the period after the Group changes its business model for managing
financial assets. When (and only when) the Group changes its business model
for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all affected financial assets in
accordance with the new business model. The reclassification should be applied
prospectively from the ‘reclassification date’, which is defined as, ‘the first day
of the first reporting period following the change in business model that results
in reclassifying financial assets’. Accordingly, any previously recognised gains,
losses or interest will not be restated.

If a financial asset is reclassified out of the amortised cost measurement
category and into the FVTPL or FVOCI measurement category, its fair value is
measured at the reclassification date. Any gain or loss arising from a difference
between the previous amortised cost of the financial asset and fair value is
recognised in profit or loss (if reclassification as FVTPL measurement category)
or is recognised in other comprehensive income (if reclassification as FVOCI
measurement category).

If a financial asset is reclassified out of the FVOCI measurement category and
into the amortised cost measurement category, the financial asset is reclassified
at its fair value at the reclassification date. However, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is removed from equity
and adjusted against the fair value of the financial asset at the reclassification
date. As a result, the financial asset is measured at the reclassification date as if
it had always been measured at amortised cost.

B RS dR AR MY AR (48)

EFEEHNReRRETARRLNAE
RAEH AEEERTANEAGRK
EEREFHEREERT R WRNE
BHRSROEHRTE  BEETH
BRGNS - EER - AREER

s KENBEREARSERBHNLE
=

o EREHE
o IRBIEMIEHRK
o REIAEEZKEUSEEEE (Hlan

BERBEERH) MESMAG
xR

AMERE R (FIn

ches el
BHE) -

Hi 3

B OHE
BRRAEERNEEREREENHEE
HNRHPEIN  EREECEVHRART
SELEFN IR - B (LEEE)FAEE
FRHERSBMEENPEERR - T
ERXFENEREESRETBERA
ENOB BN ERAIELRR A
W ER - EX0BERIEERIAS
FEABCMEM S REHMEERNS
—ERERER] - Bt - EJZ ATHER
M BRIAFETEER -

NEMEERRBHERANEET S
REBEEURBAFEEFTEXEA
Hth2EREARRAFEETZ - 8
HAFEBESEENBATE - 2@E
ERNEAT#EEKNARAFEEZHANE
MELNEMEEIBRAGEREEA
BR(WESELABBEEARRDTF
BE2) W EEMEEREAER (1
REFHRABBEM D EU AR
NEEEE) o

e REENEBE M2 AR
R EEREBEN S ERREHERAG
B leREESEESEHRAAY
BESHOE - AW EANEMEE
W R ) Rt s s 1B I iR s
HE - YRESRAKSBEENA T
BEAER At ERMEEEEHHEA

EITRE  BFRE —EREREAR

—te

I



190 The Bank of East Asia, Limited | Annual Report 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %% R & MY &t (4R )

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNnueD) F E 25T IBUEK (&)

If a financial asset is reclassified out of the FVOCI measurement category and
into the FVTPL measurement category, the financial asset continues to be
measured at fair value. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment at the reclassification date.

If a financial asset is reclassified out of the FVTPL measurement category
and into the amortised cost measurement category, its fair value at the
reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.

If an entity reclassifies a financial asset out of the FVTPL measurement category
and into the FVOCI measurement category, the financial asset continues to be
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair value will be recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and
loan commitments, as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial liability as
at FVTPL in either of the following circumstances:

(i) When doing so results in more relevant information because either:

e a group of liabilities or a group of financial assets and liabilities is
managed and its performance is evaluated and reported internally on a
fair value basis; or

e the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases.

(i) If a liability contract contains one or more embedded derivatives unless
the embedded derivative(s) does not significantly modify the cash flows
that would otherwise be required by the contract or if it is obvious that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.
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Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market prices,
where available, at the end of the reporting period without any deduction for
estimated future selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted market price on
a recognised stock exchange or a price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-
traded financial instruments or if the market for it is not active, the fair value of
the instrument is estimated using valuation techniques that provide a reliable
estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows
are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate used is a
market rate at the end of the reporting period applicable for an instrument with
similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are
based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset,
together with substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, have been
transferred.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the
asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any
new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in the income statement. Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of equity investment securities designated as
at FVOCI is not recognised in the income statement on derecognition of such
securities, as explained in (Note 2(n)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Group uses the weighted average or first-in first-out method, where
appropriate, to determine realised gains and losses to be recognised in the
income statement on derecognition.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group evaluates whether the
cash flows of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows
are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the
original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original
financial asset is derecognised (Note 2(h)(iv)) and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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(vi

=

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not
substantially different, then the modification does not result in derecognition
of the financial asset. In this case, the Group recalculates the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting
the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in the income
statement. If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties
of the borrower (Note 2(h)(vii)), then the gain or loss is presented together with
impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the
cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the income
statement.

In the context of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group’s assessment
of whether a change to an amortised cost financial instrument is substantial
is made after applying the practical expedient introduced by the Phase 2
amendments. This requires the transition from an interbank offered rate to a
new alternative benchmark rate to be treated as a change to a floating interest
rate as described in (Note 2(e)) above.

The Group updates the effective interest rate of the financial asset or financial
liability to reflect the change that is required by the interest rate benchmark
reform if the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial
asset or financial liability measured at amortised cost changes as a result of
the reform. A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
required by interest rate benchmark reform if the following conditions are met:

e the change is necessary as a direct consequence of the reform; and

e the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis, i.e. the basis immediately before the
change.

If changes are made to a financial asset or financial liability in addition to
changes to the basis for determining the contractual cash flows required by
interest rate benchmark reform, then the Group first updates the effective
interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that
is required by interest rate benchmark reform. Subsequently, the Group applies
the policies on accounting for modifications set out above to the additional
changes.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the statement of financial position only where there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(vi)
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(vii) Impairment (vii) &
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the AEEFUATIEBBERARMRAFE
following financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL: EfENeMITANEHEREBAER
B LER
e financial assets that are debt instruments; s BEBIANSRMEE:
e lease receivables; o MERUARR
e financial guarantee contracts issued; o BEEHHNMBEREL
e |oan commitments issued; and o BEHMETEE: R
e contract assets o SHEE
No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments. EERRMNIRESERE -
The Group measures loss allowances for 12-month or lifetime ECL using a AEEFEAIBREAR12EARERD
3-stage approach as follows: ARz BRAEERANREEBDT
Stage Description Impairment Loss Allowance Measurement
P ER fi REBXERTE
1 Performing 12-month ECL
Bf7e 12BARZEREERX
2 Performing but with a significant increase in credit risk at reporting date Lifetime ECL
compared to initial recognition BHHRNEREERKX
AR BB E A TR SRR RS B K= F Rk A I8 18 i
3 Non-performing Lifetime ECL
TR BHHN BREERXKX
12-month ECL is the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial REAARzEHEERAEeRIAR
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. BREBRZI2EAR  FEEEENSE
HERERNEEELX -
The Group’s stage allocation can be matched to the HKMA's 5-Grade Asset REENBERIEFESERNSRE
classification as follows: BRI AT
HKMA's 5-Grade Asset classification Stage Allocation
SERMSREEER P ER 2
General (i.e. do not meet the Bank’s criteria of “Significant Increase of Credit Risk”) 1
Pass — R (B EARTE = SRR EEZE L] f2%ER])
&1 Meet the Bank’s criteria of “Significant Increase of Credit Risk” 2
FERTHIEERRBEE N HER
Special Mention 2
FEMT
Substandard
KR
Doubtful 3
R
Loss

BB
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The criteria of “significant increase of credit risk” takes into consideration of
three key factors:

1. The exposure has a significant deterioration of internal or external rating as
compared with the rating at the time when the exposure was originated;

2. Being Special Mention under HKMA classification; and

3. The rating of the exposure falls out of the “Low-Credit Risk Threshold” that
is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses under different
economic scenarios. They are measured as:

Exposure at Default x Probability of Default x Loss Given Default

Credit-impaired (non-performing) financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired.
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes but not limited to the
following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

e abreach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise;

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence
that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly
and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a loan that is
overdue for 90 days or more is considered impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as
follows:

e financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the assets;

e |oan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a
provision on the liabilities side; and

e debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is presented in
the statement of financial position because the carrying amount of these
assets is their fair value, inclusive of any ECL. However, the loss allowance is
recognised in the fair value reserve and profit or loss.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due.

Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities which are acquired or
incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing them in the near
term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognised and subsequently
measured at FVTPL.

Contract Assets and Liabilities

When revenue is recognised by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the consideration is received or before payment is due, the Group presents the
amount of revenue as a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. A contract asset is recognised in statement of financial position when
there is a right to consideration that is conditional on factors other than the
passage of time. The contract asset is transferred to receivables when the right to
consideration becomes unconditional. Impairment of a contract asset is measured
on the same basis as a financial asset as (Note 2(h)(vii)) above. The Group includes
the contract assets in “other accounts” of other assets in the statement of financial
position.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays non-refundable
consideration or when the Group has a right to an amount of non-refundable
consideration that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer. The Group includes the contract liabilities in “other accounts” of
other liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNnueD) F E 25T IBUEK (&)

As a practical expedient, the Group does not adjust the promised amount of
consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if the Group
expects, at contract inception, that the period between when the entity transfers a
promised good or service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good
or service will be one year or less. The Group may recognise the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred if the amortisation period of the
asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.

(k) Hedging

Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on income statement of changes
in the fair values of the hedging instrument and the hedged item. The Group
assesses and documents whether the financial instruments that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of hedged items attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis. The Group discontinues prospectively hedge accounting when
(i) the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised; (ii) the hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting; or (iii) the Group revokes the
designation.

(i) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the
variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable
forecast transaction, or the foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on remeasurement of the
derivative financial instrument to fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

If the hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition
of a non-financial asset or non-financial liabi